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. GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
2R AR

Countries and Regions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Y-0-Y Changes
ERRZME 2023%3H31H | 202243531H RELE
“Lukfook” Shops 75181 &

¢ Mainland China "B Pyttt

* Hong Kong SAR & B BIITTE &2 +1
* Macau SAR JEPIFFBITEN @2 +1
* Canada & A 0
* The United States 0
o Australia J2M +1
* Malaysia 557538 0
* Singapore F AN -1
Sub-total /st 6

Sub-brands/Product Lines in Mainland PithEl S H8 /& R4
* “Goldstyle”

 “Dear Q"
o “Lukfook Joaillerie” 7542 &R R
« “Heirloom Fortune” M@ E X

o o = u
5

* “Goldstyle”
o “Lukfook Joaillerie” 75325 fa R
« “Heirloom Fortune” M@ E X
Worldwide Total 214 i

* Mainland 773t y +224

o The Philippines JE/2 8 0

 Cambodia RIHZE +1

o Laos & 0

Sub-total /\ET +225

Total 485t +219
305

! Mainland China: Hereafter refers to as “Mainland” Rt BRI
: Hong Kong SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Hong Kong” EAHBITHE - TBiEAEH)
3 Macau SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Macau” 2P RIITE R © & B AR

“LUKFOOK” DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN MAINLAND | 7548 Patth o) 844848

As at 31 March 2023
#2023F3H31H

Total No. of shops [ #4288 2,862 (+216)
]

Total No. of Licensees & h& 48 8 836(+69)
Total No. of Provinces 2 48 27(0)
Total No. of Municipalities B &5 488 4(0)
Total No. of Cities 1 1 4884 624(+29)

14.7% Wi

Self- operated MunlCIpahlIeS/CltlEﬁ?
i

Tier | —42 53(-3) 807(+82) 860(+79) 16(0)
Tier Il =48 0(3) 421(+23) 421(+20) 19(0)
Tier Il =4 8(-3) 461(+36) 469(+33) 610)
Tier IV & below P94 R U F 8(+1) 1,104(+83) 1,112(+84) 532(+29)

Self- operated Licensed Total Prnvmces Munu:lpalmes Cmes
RIE £

Northern China #3158 24(-1) 756(+64) 780(+63) 70) 2(0) 199(+12)
Central China £HE 219 611(+72) 638(469) 60) 10) 1719
. Nc;réhern China Tier | Southern China #%IE 00) 810(+:36) 810(+36) 40 00 E
EIE ) i Eastern China £XE 1814) 461(+49) 479(+49) 40 10 )
. Central China Tier Il Weslorn China #5E o0 155043 15503 60) 00 280
EhE = ern China 0) (+3) (+3) () 0 0
. Southern China Tier Il Remarks & :
';_‘Eﬁ@ :,‘ﬁ . “Lukfook” shops only R ELIE 718 &
Eastern China Tier \Yi & below . The percentages refer to the contribution to the total no. of shops in Mainland
\ BN LARZEHBE S NMEHEH (5T
. & "
ERE ) PR R IAT . Figures in brackets refer to the 12-month changes #ESEIIBIFE A+ B8 > &1t
. Western China
EREE



. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS | WA R &EFRID

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
IS EI S M A B 2 3R F

55.0% ofit | Segment Profit
U7 S E— b I\
(42.9%) 33.5% HK$M B & & T U 7
(10.7%)
it - 6,586 577
(gg.?:f) +30.9% +208.8%  +5.1 p.p. EED 2
. 0
5,392 1,147 21.3%
-19.6% -26.6% 20 p.p. EEDH
Segment
Revenue  Profit
WA DEREF 11,978 1,724 14.4%
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas . +2.0% -1.5% -0.5 p.p. B E 7 2L
& mPIRKIEI
Mainland
P H N
Revenue and Segment Profit by Business
BRI D HIA B 73 BB
8.8%
(10.7%)
N
45.0% Revenue | Segment Profit | Segment Profit Margir
(55.1%) D EBEF b2
15.4% 39 69 8,772 682 7.8%
470) (20.79 +18.4% +88.5% +2.9 p.p. =
(24.2%) (207%) 18.4% 88.5% 2.9 p.p. EEDA
Tano 73.2%
18.0%
(26.2%) [63.1%) 2,153 265 12.3%
-30.0% -37.4% -1.5p.p. EEDE
Segmv:ent 4,080" 265 6.5%
Re&e;ue QZ&;U 6.8% -37.4% -32pp. BEEDE
Retailing
BE . 1,053 77 73.7%
*Vt\'lzgglesaling . . -15.9% -19.5% 33 p.p. EEDH
Licensing
ARHE AT L L 11,978 1,724 14.4%
+2.0% -15%  -05p.p. BEDEH

Remarks:  Figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are shown in brackets
3 B E2022F3A31 B I FEZ MFHRIESRAET
! Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesaling Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesaling Revenue

ICRBRAHL B = HIMEBEFWA + DRI BBA



. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (continved) | YA R HAI D #r @

Sales' and Gross Profit? by Product

HREMBSHHE REN?
63.0% Sales Gross Profit Gross Margin
(52:7.,/:) HK$M B & & TT = EX ESRIES
6,887 1,197 17.4%
37.0% +24.6% +22.0% 0.3 p.p. EEDE
(47.3%)

4,038 1,224 30.3%
-18.5% 27%  +4.9p.p. BEEDE

Sales Gross Profit
HE E7 10,925 2,421 22.2%
gg &gzginuma . +4.2% +8.1% +0.8 p.p.fAE 723

& 3

Fixed Price Jewellery
TEEER . .

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | ZEHERIR

For the year ended 31 M
HZESH3IHIEEE

Overall 88  +18%

Gold & Platinum & K% O $21% +51%
Fixed Price Jewellery TE{E & i 2% +34%
Hong Kong & Macau & # R :®F  433% +42%
Gold & Platinum & & iHE O 448% +44%
Fixed Price Jewellery 718 & &  43% +39%
Mainland it 9% +40%
Gold & Platinum &£ & ins 4% +61%
Fixed Price Jewellery EE & &h . -30% -4%

Remarks:  Figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are shown in brackets

3 HE2022F3A31 HILFEZ HFRIERAET

! Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
THE = WA - RAREFBIRA

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income
EF) = IREEF - RIBEBRAET]

8 Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price
HERHESRRFERTHEEREBHENESRIACER BIIFEM®)

4 Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such data did not include
sales of licensed shops and Mainland's e-commerce business

FIEHERE (REHSRE) BRA—HAEENRILEERANEREAEENHERLEE ARRBI T OERMEERNMETBHEBNHER



. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | B1#%IR

HK$M BB AT 2022/2384 5 2021/2281 42

Revenue M A - 11918 11,738

Gross Profit EF - 3280 3,234

Operating Profit 4X %7 S 1516 1,643

Profit for the Year £ 337 - 1,285 1,392

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 58 AREMEER [0 111,285 1,392

Basic Earnings per Share &R & A2 _ HK$2.37%87T

Final Dividend per Share MRk 8 © HKS0.55%7T HK$0.557 7% -
Annual Dividend per Share &4& 2 £ 12 8 © HKS$110#T HK$1.1038 7T =
Dividend Payout Ratio & th % - 503% 46.4% +3.9 pp. EEDE
Gross Margin EF% _ 27.6% 06 p.p. BB
Operating Margin 48 & % F % o 182% 14.0% -0.8 p.p. EEDE
Net Margin 7% o 107% 11.9% 12pp. BESH
EBITDA® k5HHI8 I T & R SHRI B AL 1959 2,084 -6.0%
EBITDA Margin® & 3t7) 8 RIB TEREHARNZ  [164%" 17.8% 1.4 pp. BEDR
Adjusted EBITDA® _

ERBRART R RE TER BRI ERAS 1,748 -4.4%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin®* _

RRERARAF B RB TER SRR 14.9% -1.0pp. BESH
Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio® _

ARG WA HE = 15.5% +0.1 p.p. EEDE
Effective Tax Rate FFEHIE S 179% 17.3% +0.6 p.p. EEHE

FY2022/23: Hereafter refers to as “FY2023" 2022/23% 4F . 1118 7 202881 4F )

FY2021/22: Hereafter refers to as “FY2022" 2021/22f44F : 18 7 202281 4F

Represent non-HKFRS measures 163F & B M5 R SR 2

Adjusted EBITDA represents the EBITDA without adding back depreciation of right-of-use assets. Management considers the adjusted EBITDA better reflects the operating performance of
the Group after the adoption of HKFRS 16. £ B & AR 57 8 118 T R I A BAMCRAR ST B RIS ITEE R B IR B A A I CIE AR E EITE - B R A KRR KT
B RENTEREH B BERMAEERBAEBMHRELRF16 BRI EERR-

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | FZEB#I51Z

FY2023
HKSM BEH T 2023814

Inventories 75

Average Inventory Turnover Days' ¥ EE&EH"
Closing Inventory Turnover Days? Hik7Z S A& H?
Cash and Bank Balances IR% KR {745 6%

Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans $RITER R ELEE 1,955 -72.4%
Net Cash ;3#IR& 1,537 +17.6%
Debt-to-Equity Ratio® & &% 2 34.3% 121 pp. BEHE
Return on Equity (ROE)* & 54 i o] ¥R =R+ 11.5% -1.0p.p. BEDE
Return on Total Assets® 48 % /£ [5] #; 25 8.6% =
Current Ratio &L= 3.3 +1.6

" (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) + 2 <+ Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
(HAMEE + IARES) ~ 2 - CEFERA X EREH

2 Closing Inventory =+ Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
HREE - BEEFERA x FREH

2 (Long-term Liabilities + Current Liabilities) <+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(RIABE + MBBM) + AARERFE AEEERRHE

4 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company =+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
AABEDTFE ARG ER - AR REFEARGERRFE
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company - (Long-term Assets + Current Assets)
AABEEFEARGEN — (REBEE + RHEE)

1 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 752 E (B HIRAE



CORPORATE PROFILE
EXEGIT

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong
and Mainland. The Group principally engages in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a
variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of over 3,100 points of sale in 11 countries
and regions across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Malaysia,
Cambodia, the Philippines, Laos, Thailand, the United States,
Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in May 1997.

NEEE BER) BRAE (28l RENBAE (i IE
EEH) RN F > BEBRAMEIBRETEFH L — &
EETENFSZERHTERAKEAHERZRE Rt
e ARERERTEEF AEEFRKEEE R M-
FEZRPESE  SRIBMEE  JERE B HE RE S MERFEM
T—ERE XM E A ES,100EZ ERE

AREN097ESAEEBH AR BRAT (XA =
R

CORPORATE VISION

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for “Lukfook” to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

MEBRE « BRERE AE-EENEERShaEZOEE-
FEE-HEFAME BO0BNEINE RAEKRNKREE
- EREBNRECZRE  AEER B2 IRERRH
BEEH UE—PRUHNERTS LHEE-

Annual Report 2022/23 R



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FERS

WONG Wai Sheung & &%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 3 J& T 1T AR &,

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75{25&E (Ef%) BIRAE




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “We”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (‘FY2023” or the “Year under
review”).

Looking at the past, the Group had undergone an arduous
journey amidst of the global economic turmoail, geopolitical risk
and pandemic resurgence. With the reopening of boarders
amongst Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland in the fourth quarter,
the Group’s business regains momentum with the society moving
forward along the path to normalcy.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year under review slightly
increased by 2.0% over the corresponding period last
year to HK$11,977,844,000 (2022: HK$11,737,803,000).
Profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 7.7% to
HK$1,284,757,000 (2022: HK$1,392,364,000), and the basic
earnings per share was HK$2.19 (2022: HK$2.37). The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.55 per share, together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share paid in December
2022, the total dividend for FY2023 amounted to HK$1.10 per
share (2022: HK$1.10 per share). The dividend payout ratio is
50.3% (2022: 46.4%) on a full year basis.

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of 296
“Lukfook” shops worldwide, including 224 net addition of licensed
shops in Mainland. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a global
network of 3,105 shops (2022: 2,809 shops), including 2,938
“Lukfook” shops (2022: 2,719 shops), with business spanning
across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, Laos, the United States, Canada and Australia.

BRER

TANEARNEBEERE @R ARAF (M
81) REMBAT (i AL/ 5 1FHF)
EILREAEEEE2023F3A3HILEFE
(20238 FF | N EEFE) 22 F XK

BE—FRKEESE GBS TR BIE
REH<EBEXHMIB LEFNFE
EAKRAFMEANMEEBER L EHLEER
2 EEEBRUERT# -

75 B A 0] B 5 2 VAR WA B 2 SR [B) HR 8% 4
BE2.0%E11,977,844,00058 7T ( 20224
11,737,803,0008 70) > #miFHE AL EF
BRI 7. 7%%E1,284,757,00058 75 ( 20224
1,392,364,000%7T) » BREAEBF A2.1948
70 (2022%F : 2.3787m) - ARRAEEE (&
=g BRI REERESIR0.558 T &R
ER2022F 12 BRI F IR E & R0.557%8
70 2023 ER B A HAETA.108 7T (2022
FER1.108T) > 2FIRELEEA50.8%
(20224F : 46.4%) ©

CEEER AEBMRECFIL K296/ E
& BIER HB IS 5522475 T/NIB) AR ©
R2023F3831H  ZREENEIKHEFS,105
RSE &8 (20224 © 2,809R) » HhE#E2 938/
(7578 B8 (20224F : 2,719R)) » B RE B
RPN BRI IR TERE  E
B~ =6 INEAREMN o

Annual Report 2022/23 R



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

During the Year under review, due to the low base effect and the
benefit from the reopening of boarders amongst Hong Kong and
Macau and the Mainland in the fourth quarter, the business in
Hong Kong and Macau was on its way to normalcy, and its SSSG
during the Year under review maintained a positive growth. The
momentum of recovery in Hong Kong and Macau continued in the
first quarter of FY2024, with SSSG of approximately +70.0% from
April to 21 June 2023 and relatively flat for Mainland.

The pandemic that caused global disruption is behind us.
All walks of life are in gradual recovery. However, the macro
economic outlook, especially Mainland, remains uncertain. The
Group will continue to expand its business pragmatically in Hong
Kong, the Mainland and overseas with a view to restore our pre-
pandemic performance in the upcoming year.

The Group will net add 5 shops in the Hong Kong market, 5 self-
operated shops and 5 licensed shops overseas in the coming
year. Under the “dual circulation” policy and prioritizing the
expansion of domestic demand by the Mainland government, the
Group remains optimistic about its mid- to long-term business
prospects. Accordingly, the Group will still focus its expansion in
the Mainland market, and expect to net add 350 shops in the
coming year.

The Group has set up its brand new three-year corporate
strategy before commencement of FY2023 with Mainland Market
Expansion, Branding and Operational Efficiency as its three main
focuses so as to foster its future business growth.

In the upcoming financial year, the Group expects to net add 300
new “Lukfook” shops in Mainland which will be mainly licensed
shops in fourth- and fifth-tier cities, while the target for net addition
of new brands is 50 shops, and will also be mainly licensed shops
in Mainland.

The Group will further strengthen its brand image and positioning
to strengthen brand recognition through leveraging of innovative
approaches and making use of various media. Apart from that, the
Group will also enhance its product quality assurance, optimise
service quality, improve support for licensees and adopt a multi-
brand/line strategy to offer products that meet market needs.

REBEFER AR EESENERZIENE
BE MR E4T 2 EBER BREREBLUE
AERS HoOBEFEANREHEIE RINEE
HRFEER B REMEMNBENR 20240 FH
TR H20283F4B E6B21HW RIS HE
EELA+70.0% MAMBAERFF

HEE2KNEREECBE  BETIFETER
BHEBRME - ERECE  THAMAYE
BEARMEIABEREZE  AEBER @S
BEMPEE At RBINIEER  LUEITE
REMERZIBRIBYRIT

AEBRFRENEBHHIEIMCHEH 1
P INME NS B & 15 K58 an b & o 72 A 3l
B FEES) T2 1BIR) WE DB ARNFEER
T AERHREPRGEBIRRAEE
EIE AR RIER TR E PR AT 5 > IR
I R 75 18 3R 3501 [ &

RERP2023M FHRBAI B LEMHN=F
R TR ISR  TREHEER
B R TE @B ERA=AREL UBIEESE
EEBHRRIER

7 £ [ TR AR 7S 7 — B 65 72 A9 3 0F 1R BR300

NS T2RmEE WERRMER
AT o AT AR 75 H » B 1R% 18 & A50fE
JE & > ZE TR A AR o

REAMAD ZRESBEEENER EEF
#— 2 580 qh R 2 B e TE 3L DA 58 m 4 3% oA
Eeltsh ZEBTEMABEREERE B
ERFBER TEHDMRBENER TRAOZ
mhg F IR URBHETIBBRNE

O
an °

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

Recognising the increasing importance of environmental
protection and climate change, the Group will set up a long-term
goal of carbon reduction to enhance the Group’s contribution to
environmental protection.

In order to enhance its competitive edge, the Group will
improve its operational efficiency by revamping its supply
chain management and implementing automation, big data
management and data analytics system. The Group will also strive
to maximise employees’ productivity by cultivating and nurturing
cultures of continuous improvement and innovation.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

HRIRERENRGEECHEmEE K
EERFTURFPANNREER UREeEXE
E IR REBIERA

BEABRFED AEERKEBENREM
FEEEE BT EHT  ABBREERK
BOMBRBUNEHEENm AEETE
HNOREBERBBFENE KA XU
RABIELEERSKT

FEBFENMT 2BEMANET KRR
BE EFBAHMEMFNENRIZHM
Bl AAZERUROHR I RE > A&EH
MRUBERENEREBE  NRGFES,
E—SREAEENTS LRBREM &
IR ER A AR B [0 #R e 4 17 B DO B (b ZE SRS o

HEEG
FEFITHAEH
B5EE

E7# > 2023FE6H27H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEER eSS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

©

Revenue
KA
HK$11,978M
11,978EE#E T
+2.0%

Basic Earnings per Share
SREFEF
HK$2.19
2.19%87T
-7.6%

! Dividend Payout Ratio: 50.3%
IKEEEE [ 50.3%

7 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 752 E (B HIRAE

MERB

Operating Profit
REE
HK$1,576M
1,576 B AT
-4.1%

E—..$'

Profit Attributable to Equity
Holders
R E ARG
HK$1,285M
1,285F B AT
-7.7%

.90

Proposed Final Dividend
per Share'
RS iRIRS
HK$0.55
0.55787T

[1]

Overall Net Shop Additions
BRBIERES
+296




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

SEERE

Results

The Group’s result remained broadly flat in the first half of FY2023.
Given the resurgence of pandemic in the third quarter of FY2023,
its business performance was far below expectations, albeit
a lower base in the second half of FY2023. Fortunately, the
Group’s business regained momentum in the fourth quarter of
FY2023 when pandemic situation has stabilised. Stimulated by
the gradually relaxed anti-pandemic measures and fully reopened
borders amongst Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland, the retailing
business in Hong Kong and Macau resumed to its normalcy
which brought the Group’s business back on track.

The Group’s retailing revenue experienced a favorable growth
during the Year under review. However, such growth was
netted off by the drop in wholesaling revenue owing to the
sluggish demand for diamond products especially in Mainland.
Consequently, during the Year under review, the Group’s total
revenue increased marginally by 2.0% to HK$11,977,844,000
(2022: HK$11,737,803,000), while the Group’s overall gross profit
margin slightly decreased by 0.6 p.p. to 27.0% (2022: 27.6%)
because of the increase in gold sales mix. The Group's gross profit
was almost flat at HK$3,230,397,000 (2022: HK$3,233,827,000).

Operating profit decreased by 4.1% to HK$1,576,175,000
(2022: HK$1,643,224,000) and operating profit margin declined
by 0.8 p.p. to 18.2% (2022: 14.0%) as a result of reduced
government subsidies relating to value-added-tax from decreased
diamond imports to Mainland due to lackluster diamond sales
performance there. In addition, under the high interest rate
environment, the Group substantially reduced its bank loans to
minimise interest expenses, resulting in a significant reduction
in interest income because of the reduction in time deposits
and notable decrease in net finance income by 80.8% to
HK$12,362,000 (2022: HK$64,247,000). Net profit lowered by
7.7% to HK$1,284,727,000 (2022: HK$1,392,337,000) with a
net profit margin of 10.7% (2022: 11.9%). Profit attributable to
equity holders decreased by 7.7% to HK$1,284,757,000 (2022:
HK$1,392,364,000) and basic earnings per share reduced by
7.6% to HK$2.19 (2022: HK$2.37) as well.

E 35

ERERBN2023 EF M FRBIFF > FHHF
BHAEYRM BE=FTEZRBEALETE,
EBRREERP LEENFTEREBR
B hRERSUZRI KR MEARRPIA
Rt EEER BEBRTEXBBOES
EPEEREFERA-

EEZEWRANRLIEFEFENE AL R R
HEOEMBRIE CEHAM » SHLBERKIR
AT EETEEWANIE R - RAILL > 7 E
BEERN EEMNAKRAREMILE2.0%E
11,977,844,0003 7T, ( 20224F : 11,737,803,000
BT) O MAEENERENRAZSHE
fEEE EFFMESH FE0.6MEE DB E27.0%
(20224 : 27.6%) > HAEFE LA FF =
3,230,397,0005 77 (20224 : 3,233,827,0004
7T) °

R AR A A S E R e HEOMERE
b2 18 (E R0 AR RA B9 BT 4 RS T PR A8 E A
HE T B41%ZE1,576,175,0005 7T (20224 :
1,643,224,000587T) » K& & A EINE0.88
BOE13.2% (20224F : 14.0%) o b9 7
EXgtHBERT ERARBFNEXZHM
KIER DIETER  ERFEWARTERE
R MANE T B B RS UR AP 8 R R L
80.8%ZF12,362,0007870(20224F : 64,247,000
B T) o BRI /7. 7%ZE,284,727,00078
70 (20224 : 1,392,337,0005& 7)) » BF KA
10.7% (20224F : 11.9%) - HEZFIFHE AEL G
BRI 7. 7%ZE1,284,757,0005 7T ( 20224
1,392,364,000/7T) » S REAEBF] 7R E D
7.6%ZE2 195 7T (20224F : 2.37#7T) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

SEERE

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group operated a total of 1
brand and 4 sub-brands/product lines under the multi-brand
strategy. There was a net addition of 296 shops globally, including
a net of 219 “Lukfook” shops and a net of 77 shops of sub-
brands/product lines in the Mainland. Details are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a global network of 3,105
shops (2022: 2,809 shops), including 2,938 “Lukfook” shops
(2022: 2,719 shops), with business spanning across Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, Laos, the
United States, Canada and Australia, and operated 73 “Goldstyle”
shops (2022: 84 shops), 13 “Lukfook Joaillerie” shops (2022:
2 shops) and 81 “Heirloom Fortune” shops (2022: 3 shops) in
Mainland.

s

REBEFER £ZmERE T AEEGH
REVERERMER MR ERE 2H0F
1E5e 72968 5 & > BLE R 1B R219/ [7318 )
JE R B IR R 77 R R E R AR
[EER e sEBUIT ¢

R2023F3A31H  ZEBENEIKHEFES,105
5 & (20224 © 2,809f8) » EHB1#52,038
(7578 [E 88 (20224F : 2,719R)) » B RS HE
P s EARPEI  RIHRTERE  E
8~ =B INE RN > LU AE i 48 73
[ Goldstyle | [E & (20224F : 84f5) ~ 13/ /<8
5 SR ER [5 87 (20224F © 2R8) K&81R @ ey
588 (20224 : 3[9) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

REBE DRI A R D ER i F)

8.8%
(10.7%)

S

45.0%
(55.1%)

15.4%

oy 39.6%
(@42%) 20200

73.2%
(63.1%)
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18.0%
(26.2%)

Segment

Revenue Profit
WA S ERiEF]

Retailing
5

}leltr%glesaling . .
eees W W

Segment
Revenue Segment Profit Profit Margin
HKSM BEETE A 5 i) PEEHIE

8,772 682 7.8%
+18.4% +885%  +2.9p.p. EEDE
2,153 265 12.3%
-30.0% -37.4% -1.5p.p. EEDH
4,080' 265 6.5%
-6.8% -37.4% 32 p.p. BEDH
1,063 7 73.7%
-15.9% -19.5% -3.3 p.p. EEDH
11,978 1,724 14.4%
+2.0% -15%  -05pp EESH

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets
5F | RSN A20220 2 LE R H T

! Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesaling Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment wholesaling Revenue

R WA = EIMEBE B + DEREHLE WA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year under review, retailing business was the main
source of revenue of the Group. Benefiting from the significant
improvement in tourists traffic and spendings in Hong Kong and
Macau after the reopening of borders, coupled with the favorable
gold sales, the Group’s retailing revenue increased by 18.4%
to HK$8,771,929,000 (2022: HK$7,407,905,000), accounting
for 73.2% (2022: 63.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. With the
recovery oOf retail sales in Hong Kong and Macau, its segment
profit increased significantly by 88.5% to HK$681,982,000 (2022:
HK$361,768,000), accounting for 39.6% (2022: 20.7%) of the
total and its segment profit margin was 7.8% (2022: 4.9%),.

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, due to
the sluggish demand for diamond products in the Mainland,
the Group’s wholesaling revenue decreased by 30.0% to
HK$2,152,453,000 (2022: HK$3,076,720,000), accounting
for 18.0% (2022: 26.2%) of the Group’s total revenue, and its
segment profit decreased by 37.4% to HK$265,127,000 (2022:
HK$423,676,000), accounting for 15.4% (2022: 24.2%) of the
total, and its segment profit margin was 12.3% (2022: 13.8%).
As the segment profit of wholesaling business included profits
from inter-segment sales to self-operated shops, if including inter-
segment sales in the denominator, its segment profit margin
would be 6.5% (2022: 9.7%).

During the Year under review, the licensing income decreased
by 15.9% to HK$1,053,462,000 (2022: HK$1,253,178,000),
because of the decrease in the number of new licensed shops as
compared to last financial year and shrinking demand of diamond
products, accounting for 8.8% of the Group’s total revenue (2022:
10.7%). Its segment profit margin was 73.7% (2022: 77.0%),
while its segment profit decreased by 19.5% to HK$776,527,000
(2022: HK$964,435,000), accounting for 45.0% (2022: 55.1%) of
the total.

CEFERN TEEXEBRAELRERBTERAR
FoSENBBEBBRENKEARKHEKX
TEIEN N EEEHBEGRESE EENEE
WA IN18.4%%8,771,929,0007 75 ( 2022
£ 1 7,407,905,000787T) » (G AEEAEU A B
73.2% (20225 1 63.1%) o HE & F) £ 788
TEEP T RIEIE188.5%E681,982,00054
7 (20224F : 361,768,000 7T) * 14 EE439.6%
(2022F 1 20.7%) * ED W EFIEAET7.8%
(20224F : 4.9%) ©

BARBIEEFREN EERAMERE
o0 BB KK 2K > ARE BB W AR L30.0%E
2,152,453,0005 7T ( 20224 : 3,076,720,000
Bro) CEAREBELIAMNIS.0% (2022
F126.2%) EPZHEF R AI7.4%E
265,127,000 70 ( 20224 : 423,676,000
70) 1 EEA&15.4% (20224 : 24.2%) » EER
EHEHER A12.3% (20224 : 13.8%) o L3
EBENDTRMEEDBEHEEETEEEN
A WOt ADIEBEE  HoIEH=x
£6.5% (20224 : 9.7%) ©

CIEEFEER > REEBWAREMIENREE
HYEEE L —HERD REREREKRSE
BT T E15.9%%E1,053,462,0008 73 (2022
£ 11,253,178,000587T) hAREBBUA
B98.8% (20224 : 10.7%) » H 7 &% F =
A73.7% (20224 : 77.0%) » HO &8 8
B19.5%FE 776,527,000 75 (20224
964,435,000/ 7T) * {hEEA45.0% (20224 :
55.1%) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Sales' and Gross Profit? by Product
BRERESHHE REFR?

63.0%
(52.7%) 49.4%
(52.7%) (43.8%)
50.6%
29
(56.2%) 37.0%
(47.3%)

Sales  Gross Profit

HHE E#

Gold & Platinum?®
RS N

Fixed Price Jewellery
EHE H N

Gross Profit Gross Margin
HKSM B&ET 7 FH=

6,887 1,197 17.4%
+24.6% +22.0% 03 p.p. EEDEH
4,038 1,004 30.3%
-18.5% 27%  +49pp. EEDE
10,925 2,421 22.2%
+4.2% +81%  +08p.p. EADE

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets

R B20220 FE 2 LB H F

! Sales = Revenue — Licensing Income

HHE = WA - RIBEFIA

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EF = G5 EFN - mEEBWAET

Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price
E2RiHERIEREBEERTSERRESHENSEAHEER BIFEB

N

©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Due to strong demand in the Year under review, the sales
amount of gold and platinum products increased by 24.6% to
HK$6,886,227,000 (2022: HK$5,526,978,000), accounting for
63.0% (2022: 52.7%) of the overall sales amount (the Group’s
revenue minus licensing income). Gross margin of its gold and
platinum products was almost flat at 17.4% (2022: 17.7%). Its
gross profit therefore increased by 22.0% to HK$1,196,586,000
(2022: HK$980,728,000), accounting for 49.4% (2022: 43.8%)
of the overall gross profit (consolidated gross profit of the Group
minus gross profit from licensing income). On the other hand,
the sales of fixed price jewellery products decreased by 18.5%
to HK$4,038,155,000 (2022: HK$4,957,648,000), accounting
for 37.0% (2022: 47.3%) of the overall sales amount (the
Group’s revenue minus licensing income). Gross margin of fixed
price jewellery products increased by 4.9% to 30.3% (2022:
25.4%) as a result of reduced discount offering and elevated
retail selling prices in response to the increase in replenishment
cost. Their gross profit therefore decreased by 2.7% only to
HK$1,223,925,000 (2022: HK$1,258,395,000), accounting for
50.6% (2022: 56.2%) of the overall gross profit (consolidated
gross profit of the Group minus gross profit of licensing income).

During the Year under review, the overall SSSG of the Group was
+24.4% (2022: +45.4%). SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau
market was +34.0% (2022: +42.0%), and -16.9% (2022: +40.1%)
for the Mainland market. SSSG for gold and platinum products
was +35.0% (2022: +51.5%) and +1.9% (2022: +33.8%) for fixed
price jewellery products.

The Group strives to diversify its product mix so as to offer
customers with more varieties and choices. Since 2010, the
Group has been engaging in the mid-to high-end watch business.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group was the authorised dealer of 6
watch brands, including COINWATCH, DOXA, DARWIL, OMEGA,
ROMAGO SWISS and BIJOUMONTRE. For the Year under review,
the watch business contributed revenue of HK$50,518,000
(2022: HK$71,702,000), accounting for 0.4% (2022: 0.6%) of the
Group'’s total revenue.

RELCBEERHBESE s MHSER
£ E FE 12 N24.6% £ 6,886,227,00078 75 (2022
£ 1 5,526,978,000/87T)  {hEEFEIHEZE (4
EEWARE RIEEFEWA) 8963.0% (2022
F152.7%) c HEFER L FIFFER17.4%
(2022%F17.7%) » EEFEHIL EF22.0%FE
1,196,586,0003 7T ( 20224F : 980,728,000
7o) CEEBERN (RERLGEENRELE
WA EF]) 8949.4% (20224 : 43.8%) o
B EEEHERNIBEEERDI185%E
4,038,155,00038 71 ( 20224 : 4,957,648,000
BT HERHEE (RERRARERE
EFUWA) B937.0% (20224 : 47.3%) °H
RBDITNES R EEEM S EERERE
A MM LR EEEMERENELH
4.9%%E30.3% (20224 : 25.4%) » HEF| AL
SR L2.7%E1,223,925,00054 70 ( 20224
1,258,395,000/87T) BB EF (KAEE 4R
BEMFMEZERWAERN) 1950.6% (2022
1 56.2%) ©

REBEFER FAEBERREHEEES
+24.4% (20224F :+45.4%) o BT IENEE
IHE R A+34.0% (20224 (+42.0%) ° WA
5 A-16.9% (20224 (+40.1%) - &%
KA EmNEEHEEREA4+35.0% (2022
Fi+51.5%)  TEEMERAB+1.9%
(20224F :+33.8%) ©

FEBRBIAEZ A TCER AEREMSE
ZBRAKIEE . B2010F ERERT S EE %
I R2023F3A31H » ANEE A6EEK
MRS  REEEREXST
E-BEEB BKM - WEIERREEE
FoNEOIBEFEER REEHEKENIKAS
50,518,000 7T (20224 : 71,702,000 7T) *
{EAEBABULA0.4% (20224 : 0.6%) ©

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

BUSINESS REVIEW e 0] ]

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market

BiIRE D HI AR 3 BB iEF)

55.0%
(42.9%)

33.5%
(10.7%) 66.5%

(89.3%)

45.0%
(57.1%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
WA bar:ityiawill

Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas

EH  RPIRES .

Mainland
Pasth

Segment
Revenue Segment Profit Profit Margin
HKSM B E BT A DA il

6,586 577 8.8%
+30.9% +208.8%  +5.1pp EEDH
5,392 1,147 21.3%
-19.6% -26.6% 20p.p. BEEDEH
11,978 1,724 14.4%
+2.0% -1.5% 05p.p. EEDEH

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets
5 BRI A2022 FEZ LB H T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

BEVRM Kigsh

3.0%

—(13.6%) 95.2%
~1.8% (78.3%)

(8.1%)
0.2%
98.2%
(05%) (97.0%)
1.6%
(2.5%)
Segment
Revenue Profit
WA DEBEF

%itgai ling .
}/t\ggglesaling . .
pr o

Segment
Revenue rgin

HKSM BE& AT A ; T o

6,465 549 8.5%
+32.5% +2755%  +5.5p.p. EEDE
105 11 9.9%
-17.3% -316%  -2.1pp. EEDE
1,976" 11 0.5%
+50.7% -31.6% 0.7 p.p. EEDE
16 17 106.5%
-34.1% -325%  +2.5p.p. EEDE
6,586 577 8.8%
+30.9% +208.8%  +5.1 p.p. EEDE

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets

5 FESEAA20220 FE 2 LEEEH T

! Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesaling Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesaling Revenue
EREBHM WA = HIMEE B + D EBREHL WA
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

According to the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong
published by the Hong Kong Tourism Board in January 2023,
visitor arrivals from Mainland in 2022 increased by approximately
4.7 times year-on-year to approximately 380,000. With the
reopening of boarders amongst Hong Kong, Macau and the
Mainland, the number of Mainland tourists visiting Hong Kong
has increased significantly, with visitor arrivals statistics released
in April 2023 showing an increase of approximately 390 times
year-on-year to approximately 3.36 million from January to March
2023. In respect of tourist spending, according to the retail sales
statistics released by the Census and Statistics Department of the
Hong Kong Government in May 2023, the provisional estimate of
the value of sales of jewellery, watches and clock, and precious
gifts from January to March 2023 increased by 88.0% year-on-
year. As a result, the Group’s retailing revenue in Hong Kong
increased significantly by 57.9% to HK$4,239,220,000 (2022:
HK$2,684,577,000) for the Year under review. As at 31 March
2023, the Group operated 45 self-operated shops (2022: 44
shops) in Hong Kong.

Macau

According to the market figures released by the Macao
Government Tourism Office, Mainland visitor arrivals to Macau
in 2022 decreased by 27.5% over last year to approximately
5.11 million and per capita spending of Mainland visitors slightly
decreased by 0.3% year-on-year. With the full resumption
of normal travel with the Mainland, the number of Mainland
visitor arrivals to Macau from January to March 2023 increased
significantly by 88.2% year-on-year to approximately 3.24 million,
and the per capita consumption of Mainland tourists in the first
quarter increased by 8.9% year-on-year. The Group’s revenue
generated from Macau decreased by 6.2% to HK$1,626,973,000
(2022: HK$1,734,715,000) during the Year under review. As at
31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 16 self-operated shops
(2022: 15 shops) in Macau.

Overseas

As at 31 March 2023, the Group operated a total of 15 overseas
shops (2022: 14 shops), including self-operated shops of 2 in
Malaysia, 3 in the United States, 2 in Canada and 2 in Australia,
as well as 3 licensed shops, 2 licensed shops and 1 licensed
shop in Cambodia, the Philippines and Laos respectively.
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o
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During the Year under review, retailing revenue from the
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas markets increased by
32.5% to HK$6,464,974,000 (2022: HK$4,880,879,000),
accounting for 98.2% (2022: 97.0%) of these markets’ total
and 54.0% (2022:41.6%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit
increased significantly by 275.5% to HK$549,384,000 (2022:
HK$146,299,000), accounting for 95.2% (2022: 78.3%) of these
markets’s total and 31.9% (2022: 8.4%) of the Group’s total, with
a segment profit margin of 8.5% (2022: 3.0%). The overall SSSG
in the Hong Kong, Macau and overseas markets was +33.0%
(2022: +45.1%). The SSSG of their gold and platinum products
was +46.9% (2022: +47.4%) and +5.8% (2022: +40.8%) for fixed
price jewellery products.

On the other hand, the wholesaling business revenue decreased
by 17.3% to HK$104,987,000 (2022: HK$126,955,000),
accounting for 1.6% (2022: 2.5%) of these markets’ total and
0.9% (2022: 1.1%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit
decreased by 31.6% to HK$10,399,000 (2022: HK$15,204,000),
accounting for 1.8% (2022: 8.1%) of these markets’ total and
0.6% (2022: 0.9%) of the Group’s total, while its segment profit
margin was 9.9% (2022: 12.0%). As the segment profit of
wholesaling business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin would be 0.5% (2022:
1.2%). Apart from that, Hong Kong licensing income decreased
by 34.1% to HK$16,058,000 (2022: HK$24,358,000), accounting
for 0.2% (2022: 0.5%) of these markets’ total and 0.1% (2022:
0.2%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit was HK$17,097,000
(2022: HK$25,333,000), accounting for 3.0% (2022: 13.6%) of
these markets’ total and 1.0% (2022: 1.4%) of the Group’s total,
and its segment profit margin was 106.5% (2022: 104.0%).

Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets increased by 30.9% to HK$6,586,019,000
(2022: HK$5,032,192,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 55.0% (2022: 42.9%) of the Group’s total.
Its segment profit increased substantially by 208.8% to
HK$576,880,000 (2022: HK$186,836,000), accounting for 33.5%
(2022: 10.7%) of the Group’s total, while its segment profit margin
was 8.8% (2022: 3.7%).

REIBEFERN 8 B EITIENEE
U AEN32.5%E6,464,974,0005 75 (2022
£ 1 4,880,879,000587T)  1hEE BFIEIE
SATIZELRRAN98.2% (20224F 1 97.0%) K&
EEFEUABI54.0% (20224 © 41.6%) o &
D ERE R A NI NN275.5%ZE549,384,0007 7T
(20224 : 146,299,000 70) * hZE™HH
FREM05.2% (20224F : 78.3%) MEE LR
BU31.9% (20224 : 8.4%) » EDEHEFMNEKA
8.5% (20224 : 8.0%) o &AE BRI BT
HHEER R IHEIE R 5+33.0% (20224 !
+451%) HEs kit ER2 REHEE R
A+46.9% (20224 1+47.4%) > EEEHHE S
Bl A+5.8% (20224 :+40.8%) ©

S MEBEBEHFRBATHRI7T.3%F
104,987,000 75 (20224 : 126,955,000
70) A E TR ERERT.6% (20224F 1 2.5%)
FEBEEREMN0.9% (2022F 1 1.1%) » H5
EB3EF B T BE31.6% 210,399,000/ 75 (2022
F 115,204,000/ 70) » G E M IZEAEN1.8%
(2022%F 1 8.1%) REEEFEN0.6% (2022
F:10.9%) HOZHEHNZEA9.9% (2022
F:112.0%) cHRMBEBEN DI ENES
DUEHEEZFEENFE MO Pt AR
BRI E > H oI iaf] E£A0.5% (20224F
1.2%) o BRILLLIN > & B @A ZEFE W AR D
34.1%2%16,058,00078 7T (20224 : 24,358,000
BIT) hEETIHEREMN0.2% (20224F !
0.5%) FREBEZEEEM0.1% (20224  0.2%) »
HOERE A B A17,097,00058 75 ( 20224
25,333,000/ 7t) »hZEMHEFEMZ.0%
(20224F : 13.6%) KREEEEEFEM1.0% (2022
F11.4%) > EDEaEFESR106.5% (2022
F 1 104.0%) ©

weEms PEEFER &8 B REN
T IZ I AEI130.9%%6,586,019,0007 75
(20224 : 5,032,192,00038 7T) > (HEE
BY55.0% (20224 : 42.9%) » EE8EF) 8
K NE1E NN208.8% £576,880,0003 7T (2022
£F 1 186,836,000/ 7T) > B EHEMI33.5%
(2022%F 1 10.7%) *» ED R FIE%E8.8%
(20224F 1 3.7%) ©

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Mainland

Aaith

42.8%
(37.7%)

11.6%
(13.8%)

22.2%
(26.1%)

66.2%
(60.1%)

38.0%

19.2% (44.0%)
(18.3%) -

Segment
Revenue Profit
YA DEREF

Retailing

8 |
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HE2% .

Licensing
kR .

Segment
Revenue Profit Ma

HK$M BB LN

2,307 5.7%
-8.7% -385%  -28p.p. EEDE
2,048 254 12.4%
-30.6% -37.6% Adpp BEEDEH
2,104! 254 12.1%
-31.4% 376%  -12pp EEDE
1,037 760 73.2%
-15.6% 19.1%  32pp AEHH
5,392 1,147 21.3%
-19.6% 266%  -20p.p. EEDE

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets
5 LIRS A20220 EZ LB EH F
" Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesaling Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesaling Revenue

ACRBR A B = WML EFURA + DEFRBHEE WA
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Mainland

The Mainland was affected by the pandemic most of the time
during the Year under review, and coupled with a slow recovery
in consumer sentiment, its retailing revenue decreased by 8.7%
to HK$2,306,955,000 (2022: HK$2,527,026,000), accounting for
42.8% (2022: 37.7%) of the Mainland market’s total and 19.3%
(2022: 21.5%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit declined by
38.5% to HK$132,598,000 (2022: HK$215,469,000), accounting
for 11.6% (2022: 13.8%) of the Mainland market’s total and 7.7%
(2022: 12.3%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit margin was
5.7% (2022: 8.5%). The overall SSSG of Mainland was -16.9%
(2022: +40.1%), and the SSSG for its gold and platinum products
was -14.3% (2022: +61.2%) and -26.4% (2022: -4.3%) for its
fixed price jewellery products.

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, with
lackluster sales of diamond products, which was the primary
source of revenue for wholesaling business in the Mainland
market, its revenue decreased by 30.6% to HK$2,047,466,000
(2022: HK$2,949,765,000), which accounted for 38.0% (2022:
44.0%) of the Mainland market’s total and 17.1% (2022: 25.1%)
of the Group’s total. Its segment profit declined by 37.6% to
HK$254,728,000 (2022: HK$408,472,000), accounting for 22.2%
(2022: 26.1%) of the Mainland market’s total and 14.8% (2022:
23.3%) of the Group’s total. Its segment profit margin was 12.4%
(2022: 13.9%). As the segment profit of wholesaling business
included the profit from inter-segment sales to self-operated
shops, if including inter-segment sales in the denominator, its
segment profit margin would be 12.1% (2022: 13.3%).

Due to the impact of the pandemic, the addition of new
licensed shops in the Mainland was less than prior year.
Together with reduced demand in diamond products, licensing
income decreased by 15.6% to HK$1,037,404,000 (2022:
HK$1,228,820,000), accounting for 19.2% (2022: 18.3%) of the
Mainland market’s total and 8.7% (2022: 10.5%) of the Group’s
total. Its segment profit decreased by 19.1% to HK$759,430,000
(2022: HK$939,102,000), accounting for 66.2% (2022: 60.1%)
of the Mainland market’s total and 44.0% (2022: 53.7%) of the
Group’s total, and its segment profit margin was 73.2% (2022:
76.4%).

To meet the customer needs of different profiles, the Group
actively created different sub-brands and product lines. The Group
has developed the popular product collection of “Goldstyle”,
which was well known for pioneering exquisite techniques, into
independent shops since May 2019 and newly added shops
of “Lukfook Joaillerie”, which was targeting at high-end market,
and “Heirloom Fortune”, which was famous for traditional
craftsmanship, in the financial year of 2022. In May 2023, the
Group also launched “Love LUKFOOK JEWELLERY”, which was
targeting at the affordable luxury market.

it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 3,029 shops
(2022: 2,736 shops) in the Mainland, including 2,862 “Lukfook”
shops (2022: 2,646 shops), 73 “Goldstyle” shops (2022: 84
shops) which comprised 72 licensed shops (2022: 79 shops) and
1 self-operated shops (2022: 5 shops), 13 “Lukfook Joaillerie”
shops (2022: 2 shops) and 81 “Heirloom Fortune” shops (2022:
3 shops). Apart from that, the Group added a net total of 224
“Lukfook” licensed shops (2022: +434 shops), while the number
of “Lukfook” self-operated shops decreased by 8 shops (2022:
remained unchanged). Details are as follows:

Mainland Distribution Network

Shop Number of Different Brands/Product Lines
& mh/E RIS E

“Lukfook”
73481

“Goldstyle”

“Dear Q”

“Lukfook Joaillerie

I7Rt@rEmlR

“Heirloom Fortune”

MEmER)

Total
FEE

Self-operated
BHEE
Licensed
RS
Sub-total
/et
Self-operated
BHEE
Licensed
RS
Sub-total
gt
Self-operated
BEE
Self-operated
BEE
Licensed

mmhR s
Sub-total
gt
Self-operated
BHEE
Licensed
RS
Sub-total
/et
Self-operated
BHEE
Licensed
RS

Total
my

(20224 : RANE) -FBUT :

R2023F3A31H  AEEK M A F3,029
RS & (20224 @ 2,736f) » Eh 152,862
R MN18l1 /58 (20224 © 2,646R3) ~ 73/
MGoldstyle | 5 &8 (20224 : 84R5) (E13&72R
MR E(20224F 1 79M8) K18 B & 15 (20224 !
5f8)) ~ 13751248 MR [& i (20224 © 2fF)
K817 M@ im B 5 5 & (20224F @ 3f8) o BRIt
ZHN s JRFIEER T 224/ [7548) SHHRTE (2022
F 1+434f8) - M I7NE BE S BRI eH

Poith 53 S5 4 4%

31 March

2022
20224 Changes
383180 =)
- 2,569 +224
- 2,646 +216
- 2,653 +293
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth
of “Lukfook” licensed shops in Mainland was -9.5% (2022:
+15.7%), while the same store sales growth for its gold and fixed
price jewellery products was -4.2% (2022: +31.7%) and -20.3%
(2022: -5.8%) respectively.

REIBEER > Wil 7558 RhEEEERTE
HEHIEA-9.5% (20224 1+15.7%) > ME
B REEBEMERNBEHEAER DR
#5-4.2% (20224F 1+31.7%) ’%-20.3% (2022
F 1-5.8%) °

FY2023 Mainland E-commerce Business Performance

2023 F RPN EFEHEH KRR

’ lIR&e)\l\enue ‘

17.5% Y-o0-Y Changes &b

‘ Contribution to Mainland Retailing
Revenue’

ERMEEKRA
63.2% (20224F : 53.7%)

¢

’ Contribution to the Group’s Retailing
Revenue’
HEETERA"
16.6% (20224F : 18.3%)

Remarks: Figures for FY2022 are shown in brackets

5t | FESR N A20228 FHF

! Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce business
BEEKREFEHBHER

2 ASP included value-added tax (VAT)
THEBGIIBER

Average Selling Price?
THER

RMBA K #1,6007T

16.7% Y-0-Y Changes #ZF &1t

FY2024 Revenue Growth Target
202481 F IR AL R B R
10%

Sales by product
SHE M ERE S

Gold & Platinum
HER#EE
Fixed Price Jewellery

EEEH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue of e-commerce business from Mainland increased by
7.5% to HK$1,457,853,000 (2022: HK$1,355,791,000) during
the Year under review, accounting for 63.2% (2022: 53.7%) of
the retailing revenue in Mainland and 16.6% (2022:18.3%) of the
Group’s retailing revenue. Sales of gold and platinum products
accounted for 88.0% (2022: 84.0%) of its sales mix and 12.0%
(2022:16.0%) for fixed price jewellery products.

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, total revenue from
the Mainland market decreased by 19.6% to HK$5,391,825,000
(2022: HK$6,705,611,000), accounting for 45.0% (2022: 57.1%)
of the Group’s total. Its segment profit decreased by 26.6% to
HK$1,146,756,000 (2022: HK$1,563,043,000), accounting for
66.5% (2022: 89.3%) of the Group’s total, and its segment profit
margin was 21.3% (2022: 23.3%).

Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH? & Its Subsidiaries

Gain/(Loss)
Wes, (B

FY2023
202301 £

RNHBFEFEBZWRARLBEE L
F7.5%%F1,457,853,0005 75 (20224 :
1,355,791,000787T) > 1 AUt ZE UL A BI63.2%
(2022%F 1 53.7%) MEEZTEUWAR16.6%
(20224 : 18.3%) - =& KMiAE E MmNV
E(EEE788.0% (20224 : 84.0%) > TEEME
EHHEREIA12.0% (20224 : 16.0%) ©

BEms REBEEERN REAMTIENE
U AR/ 19.6%E5,391,825,00078 7 (2022
£ :6,705,611,00087T) > hAREBEEEHN
45.0% (20224 : 57.1%) o 8 A Bl
0 26.6%ZE1,146,756,00078 7T ( 20224
1,563,043,00078 7t) » hHEEEFERI66.5%
(20224 : 89.3%) » HAEFE A EAH21.3%
(20224F : 23.3%) ©

RERERER'REMBARNIGER
EEERBIMBEE

Y-0-Y Changes

HK$M
BEBT

50% Results of Associate
B A BI50%EAE

Reversal of Impairment Provision on Amount Due
From HKRH
BOIEKREBERIER

Wholesale Gross Profit

HEEF]

Loss on Provision for a Financial Guarantee Contract

MBRFREOREBR

Interest Income on Working Capital Loan
MEE £ GHF WA

Total
2E

During the Year under review, the total losses in relation to
investments and operating activities in HKRH & its subsidiaries
narrowed to HK$22,000,000 (2022: loss of HK$31,000,000).

# HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise businesses under
the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong and Mainland.

)
&
—
|

FY2022
202287 5

(24) +1

(17) +17

2 -2

(31) +9

REBEEER REBERERKENE
RENREREETHNEABERKRESE

22,000,000 75 (20224 : 31,000,000 7T
1)

o
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Non-HKFRS Financial Measure

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures,
EBITDA, EBITDA margin, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA
margin and total operating expenses to revenue ratio have been
presented in this report. The Group’s management believes
that such non-HKFRS financial measures provide investors with
clearer view on the Group’s financial results, and with useful
supplementary information to assess the performance of the
Group’s strategic operations by excluding the impact of certain
non-cash items. Nevertheless, the use of this non-HKFRS
financial measure has limitations as an analytical tool. These
unaudited non-HKFRS financial measures should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Group’s financial
performance prepared in accordance with HKFRS. In addition,
these non-HKFRS financial measures may be defined differently
from similar terms used by other companies.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$2,348,000,000 (2022: HK$3,492,000,000).
Net cash was HK$1,808,000,000 (2022: net cash was
HK$1,537,000,000). The debt-to-equity ratio was 22.2% (2022:
34.3%), being the ratio of total liabilities of HK$2,708,000,000
(2022: HK$4,142,000,000) against total shareholders’ equity of
HK$12,221,000,000 (2022: HK$12,079,000,000). As at 31 March
2023, the Group'’s banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$4.09 billion (2022: HK$4.20 billion), of which HK$0.54 billion
(2022: HK$2.00 billion) has been utilised. The Group’s income
and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
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Inventory

=8

Inventory Turnover Days (By Product)
FERBERH UERES)

Average Inventory

Turnover Days
BEA%

Closing Inventory

HREFR
FY2023 | Y-o-Y Changes
2023E44F e

Gold

=HE 14 -32
Fixed price jewellery

EEEE +178 +124
Overall

2E 22 -8

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s inventory slightly increased
by 1% to HK$8,853,000,000 (2022: HK$8,769,000,000). The
average inventory turnover days was 378 days (2022: 356 days)
with the average inventory turnover days of gold products being
237 days (2022: 251 days) and 656 days (2022: 478 days) for
fixed price jewellery products.

The inventory turnover days calculated basing on closing inventory
were 380 days (2022: 388 days) with the closing inventory
turnover days of gold products being 250 days (2022: 282 days)
and 637 days (2022: 513 days) for fixed price jewellery products.

R2023F3B31H AEBENEFEEGE&M
1 h01%ZE8,853,000,0003& 75 (20224 :
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Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to approximately HK$107,000,000 (2022:
HK$558,000,000), including the costs of properties, leasehold
lands, land use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures
and equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to HK$23,000,000 (2022: HK$23,000,000).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had corporate financial
guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2022:
HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated
amount of banking facilities granted to an associate. As at 31
March 2023, the banking facilities utilised by the associate were
HK$1,644,000,000 (2022: HK$1,564,000,000).

As at 31 March 2023, a loss allowance amounted to
approximately HK$37,000,000 estimated under the expected
credit loss model in respect of such corporate financial guarantee
of the Group was recognised (2022: HK$37,000,000).

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, save as disclosed above, the
Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2023, the number of employees of the Group was
6,000 (2022: 6,000). The management reviews and examines the
remuneration policies on a regular basis to ensure that fair rewards
and compensation are provided to our employees. Remuneration
packages are determined with reference to comparable market
rates while bonuses and other rewards are linked to the
performances of the Group and the employees. This policy aims
to motivate employees with monetary incentives to work together
to enhance the Group’s business performance.
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The Group’s tireless efforts in escalating brand influence and
spreading brand value have been recognised with numerous
awards from the industry and market for our outstanding
achievements in branding, corporate governance, customer
service, community welfare and environmental protection.

During the Year under review, due to the low base effect and the
benefit from the reopening of boarders amongst Hong Kong and
Macau and the Mainland in the fourth quarter, the business in
Hong Kong and Macau was on its way to normalcy, and its SSSG
during the Year under review maintained a positive growth. The
momentum of recovery in Hong Kong and Macau continued in the
first quarter of FY2024, with SSSG of approximately +70.0% from
April to 21 June 2023 and relatively flat for Mainland.

The pandemic that caused global disruption is behind us.
All walks of life are in gradual recovery. However, the macro
economic outlook, especially Mainland, remains uncertain. The
Group will continue to expand its business pragmatically in Hong
Kong, the Mainland and overseas with a view to restore our pre-
pandemic performance in the upcoming year.

The Group will net add 5 shops in the Hong Kong market, 5 self-
operated shops and 5 licensed shops overseas in the coming
year. Under the “dual circulation” policy and prioritizing the
expansion of domestic demand by the Mainland government, the
Group remains optimistic about its mid- to long-term business
prospects. Accordingly, the Group will still focus its expansion in
the Mainland market, and expect to net add 350 shops in the
coming year.

The Group has set up its brand new three-year corporate
strategy before commencement of FY2023 with Mainland Market
Expansion, Branding and Operational Efficiency as its three main
focuses so as to foster its future business growth.

FEETRAREEZENNEEREEES
EE MR EEERKRHERE I amE
S EEEL BERS AmnkRIERES
BHHBEKRS 5E T AEEN ST

REBEEERN ARBEESNERZERE
HENHMNE4TEEEBER BREFFIU
BHES HOBEFEERNEEHEE RN
BEEISIEIR R - BIRIEHM M TEN20248 £
B FRF 0 H2023F48 E6 521 HMWIE S
B ELA+70.0% > AR B AR EFF o

AEE2XMNEREEBE  JSTRFTEN
BOEENMER ERECEIEEET (L
HAh) » AEBEREEHEMINES > Rith
RgIMNERER  LBERFEMER BT
Ko

AEERFRHENEBH IS FILROMEE
TR BTN F IR RO B &S KMOE MRS ° 1E
WM BT REHEE [ERIR WENEARNSE
BERT  AEREHNAEPFREGEZBIRDRK
L8 FILRRBERIDKEDRA TS I
FRHRIN SR G5 18 SR 350 5 & ©

REBM20238 F MR B L 2MB=F
R TR ISR  TREHEER
BE) R TE @M ERA=REL UBHEESE
EEBHRRIER

Annual Report 2022/23 R
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FOCUS ON MAINLAND MARKET
EXPANSION
FiER A TIGRRE

FOCUS ON
BRANDING
FIER Gn R HE R SRS

Mainland Market Expansion

In the upcoming year, the annual target for net addition of
“Lukfook” shops in Mainland is 300 shops, mainly focusing
on opening licensed shops in fourth- and fifth-tier cities, while
the target for net addition of new brands is 50 shops, which
will also be mainly Mainland licensed shops. In addition, the
Group is also committed to further developing its e-commerce
business and strengthening cooperation with various e-commerce
platforms in Mainland, and at the same time will also optimise
its own e-commerce platforms, aiming to sustain the growth
in e-commerce revenue at a target of 10% sales growth of
e-commerce business in the upcoming year. In light of the
enormous spending potential of young consumers on online sales
platforms, the Group will continue its endeavours to promote the
sales of affordable luxury jewellery products to expand its footprint
in the young consumer market.

SUSTAI NABLE GROWTH
;% nﬁ E

FOCUS ON
OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCY
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Branding

The Group will further strengthen its brand image and positioning
to strengthen brand recognition through leveraging of innovative
approaches and making use of various media. Apart from that,
the Group will also enhance its product quality assurance,
optimise service quality, improve support for licensees and adopt
a multi-brand/line strategy to offer products that meet market
needs. Following the launch of multiple sub-brands/product
lines including “Goldstyle”, “Lukfook Joaillerie” and “Heirloom
Fortune”, in May 2023, the Group also launched the sub-
brand “Love LUKFOOK JEWELLERY” which mainly aims at the
affordable luxury market to attract a new generation of young
people who are fashionable, characterised, and pursuing quality
life. Moreover, the Group will adopt holistic approach to seize
the development opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and
generation Z markets by understanding customers’ spending
habits. It will also continue to attract customers and encourage
local consumption by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-
selling boosting and VIP promotional activities, so as to improve
sales and profits. Given the importance of social media in product
promotion, the Group will continue to allocate more resources
on various online media including RED, Tiktok and Bilibili and to
reach out to target customers and catch up with online marketing
trends. Besides, we will also explore the enhancement of offline
shopping experience and possibility of cross-over collaboration
with other industries or brands to further enhance synergy
between online and offline sales channels. The Group also
recognises the increasing importance of environmental protection
and climate change. Therefore, the Group will set up a long-term
goal of carbon neutrality to enhance the Group’s contribution to
environmental protection.

Operational Efficiency

In order to enhance its competitive edge, the Group will
improve its operational efficiency by revamping its supply chain
management, implementing automation, big data management,
and data analytics system. The Group will also strive to maximise
employees’ productivity by cultivating and nurturing cultures of
continuous improvement and innovation.
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In order to consistently align with the branding theme of “Love
is Beauty”, the Group has built a welcoming and warm-hearted
brand image to strengthen customers’ emotional attachment
to the brand, and has strived to become a globally recognised
jewellery brand through outstanding marketing campaigns and
excellent customer service programmes.

Adhering to the service motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship,
Quality Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group acts in
the customers’ best interests in our operational management,
and is meticulous from product design, quality assurance to sales
services. To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” standard, we
are dedicated to fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental well-
being in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster a
corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

7 e IhES

LUKFOOK JEWELLERY
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Targeting the mid-to high-end markets, the Group has adopted
comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched diversified
product offerings with exquisite designs, together with meticulous
services to seize the development opportunities in the middle-
class, wedding and generation Z markets.

HEPBIRWHEN S AEEXRNEENT SRR BT
?&Eﬁﬁ&éiﬁ\%ﬁfbﬁ’ﬂéuuﬁ‘\&iﬁﬂfﬁfﬂ BIBIRRTS > IME R E
IBGAZE RIS H RN RIS

To cope with our market positioning, we have endeavoured
to further penetrate the middle-class market through various
channels. During the pandemic, the participation rate of running
increased significantly. During the Year under review, the Group
continued to sponsor medals for the Hong Kong and Beijing
marathons to honour marathon finishers, and also organised
promotion activities on the well-known sports mobile application,
“KEEP”, to enhance brand communication, promote sports
culture and raise our brand awareness among the middle-class
population.
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Middle-class pays attention to quality and details. The Group
meticulously crafted the latest “Hexicon” Collection. Four-
prong setting, paired with hexagonal design and multi-angle
refraction, brings out the stunning brilliance of natural diamonds,
demonstrating the simple yet stylish beauty. We also unveiled
the latest “Goldstyle” products crafted with patented techniques
to greatly increase the hardness of gold jewellery and showcase
exquisite craftsmanship. Featuring a blend of gold and diamond,
the brand new “GoldstyleeX” is innovatively set with diamonds
by using the sophisticated micro setting technology to create
a selection of beautiful yet valuable trendsetting gold jewellery
tailored to the middle-class customers’ demands for best value-
for-money products.

In response to the middle-class customers’ demand for trendy
diamond jewellery, the Group continued to introduce the
latest “Love is Beauty” Collection featuring a blend of brilliant
diamonds and fluid openwork twisted designs. Our patented
“Shiny Diamond Setting” enhances the visual effect of the pure
main stone to bring out sophisticated elegance. The Group also
continued to hold the 7th “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday” featuring
the theme “Shine for the Beauty of Love”, and invited famous
actress Ms. Eliza Sam as our image ambassador to showcase
different styles of radiant “Love is Beauty” diamond jewellery.

With the popularity of the China-chic elements among the
middle-class in recent years, the Group introduced the “Heirloom
Fortune” Collection to interpret the essence of traditional culture
with finely crafted gold pieces. Inspired by the design concept of
“passing down the traditional virtue of filial piety and conveying the
blessing for a blissful life”, a wide array of exquisite gold jewellery
is delicately crafted with traditional handicraft skills to showcase
the charisma of antique style, convey cultural values and best
wishes, and live on as a treasured family heirloom.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7548 E (B HIRAE)
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WEDDING MARKET

During the Year under review, the Group has actively participated
in wedding expos in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Xiamen
and Chengdu, in order to increase brand exposure and build an
innovative brand image.

To meet the increasing consumer demand in the wedding market,
the Group continued to introduce “Share Love in Wedding
5201314” Collection, which together denotes the meaning of
“| love you for a lifetime” in Chinese, into a portfolio of stylish
wedding jewellery products and caring services. The Group
introduced the “Light of Love” diamond ring to celebrate the
promise of lifelong love with timeless diamond ring. We use
light with shadow effect to project “1314”, “| & U”, “520” or
other special symbols onto the specially designed gift box to
create a unique statement of lifelong love. Meanwhile, “Wedding
Ambassador” is available at our shops to offer wedding couples
advice from wedding rings selection to wedding preparation,
aiming to deliver caring wedding services for the couples. It is a
traditional custom to wear gold jewellery in Chinese wedding. The
Group has launched the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding
jewellery, integrating the traditional Chinese wedding culture into
trendy gold jewellery designs.
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GENERATION Z MARKET

As time changes, different generations play different roles in
the consumer market. Nowadays, Generation Z has gradually
become the largest consumer group that has a significant impact
on the global economy. Lukfook Group endeavoured to seize the
opportunities to bring it closer to Generation Z consumers. In light
of Generation Z’s great interest in games, especially mobile games
and e-sports, the Group has created the “King Pro League”
champion rings for 12 consecutive seasons, with a view to
actively reaching new audiences and enhancing brand exposure in
the e-sports market.

We strived to promote new marketing modes in our marketing
campaigns and product development to cater for the needs
and preferences of Generation Z. We promoted our products on
social media platforms such as Douyin, Bilibili and RED, and also
introduced the first-ever “God of Wealth” digital human in our New
Year live-streaming event to enhance the interactions in the live-
streaming session. We also launched various customised NFT
products, created the 1314-carat NFT diamond ring, pioneered
the introduction of the NFT metaverse wedding certificate and
established two “Love oo Metaverse Pop-up Stores” in Beijing and
Xiamen to achieve cross-marketing between the virtual and real
worlds. It has realised brand exposure to over 300 million viewers
that greatly made a splash in brand and awareness.

In view of Generation Z's preference for diversified and innovative
products, the Group launched the brand new concept collection
— “Silververse”. Inspired by a combination of the English words
“Silver” and “Metaverse”, “Silververse” symbolises the unlimited
creativity in silver jewellery. Featuring trendy geometric designs,

this collection showcases modern chic and sophistication.
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MULTI-BRAND/LINE STRATEGY

In light of customers’ growing demand for diversified products,
the Group introduces multiple product lines and brands in
accordance with the market changes to cater for different tastes
of customers, in order to increase our market share, enhance our
competitiveness and further strengthen our leading position.

HEIRLOOM FORTUNE

To tie in with the development of China-chic culture, the Group
introduced the “Heirloom Fortune”, which integrated cultural and
historical elements and traditional handicraft skills with modern
creatively designed gold accessories to pass down the sincerest
blessings from generation to generation and live on as a treasured
family heirloom.

LUKFOOK JOAILLERIE

With the increasing purchasing power, customers are looking for
high-quality stylish products that can reflect their personal taste.
During the Year under review, the Group revamped and enhanced
the shop image of “Lukfook Joaillerie” with high-end market focus.
Apart from providing a curated selection of sophisticated jewellery,
the brand new “Lukfook Joalillerie” is also dedicated to integrating
the brand into life, creating a novel and elegant jewellery aesthetic
experience space, and delivering superb shopping experience to
customers.

GOLDSTYLE

The trendy “Goldstyle” is crafted with innovative techniques to
double the hardness of gold and provides the style effects of karat
gold. “Goldstyle” not only retains the advantage of gold as a good
store of value, but also puts a new twist on gold jewellery, adding
on-trend sparkle to customers.

Lukfook

alirer |e

Zmhd EmARRER

BEZMERETNESR AEARED
BEL RUTAERGRRELUDE S
ERRB O BEFARLTBESE R

BAREERFE N E—SBEREFBELHM
fiL o
mimE=x

BERSAXCHNER AEREL ERE
Ko MA SRS REE e T XEE
e EARBEMRAA ERE ARG
HHERFETE AAKKBELEEND

Y8

7 a5 an R

BEACHESE DB R 2 EREmE
RET R B EETI)\uuU%E’JEDDOﬁAIEIEEEFE
N AEERTIEHHSHEETIHBH @
BmBARTER UeHERSHE RTE
BEEMKNKRERBRIN > IRF R @ IE R
AEE TSR SRNKEEERRT
M AEESRESRE REENEYEES -

GOLDSTYLE

B 5 BY [ Goldstyle | @B 2 IKEAINEERE
TERARTEMNERE  BOI-—REELH
ME I EHSRAIBEKERSANEESE
R T RERTHRENES EREEER
ANBHES] AR E RS

Annual Report 2022/23 4R 34



BRANDING
m R FEE R R B

With a strategic initiative to increase brand awareness and
secure our market share in Mainland and Hong Kong, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty,
which is in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”.

The Group has been staying innovative and keeping pace with
the market to adopt different promotion approaches to enhance
brand image and strive for continuous innovation and changes.
We actively capitalised on different promotional channels, such
as public relations activities, advertising and various kinds of
sponsorships, to enhance our brand visibility. We also captured
the rapid growth of online marketing by placing advertisements on
major social media platforms and search engines, and promoted
our products via live broadcast platforms, influential we-media
accounts, KOLs and other popular new media platforms.

To celebrate the Group’s milestone of approaching 3,000 shops,
we rolled out the “Share Love and Fun Anniversary Promotion”
campaign covering a series of online and offline activities, which
achieved exposure to a total of more than 690 million viewers.
The globally influential Xinhuanet also produced a documentary for
the Group to mark Lukfook Jewellery’s milestone of approaching
3,000 shops and project Lukfook Jewellery’s image as an
industry-leading national jewellery brand. The documentary
recorded total exposure of over 21 million views, underscoring the
Group’s strengths in the jewellery industry. The Group then held a
press conference for the campaign and showcased the image of
Lukfook Jewellery concept shop through the giant LED screen to
enhance brand recognition. We also held a lucky draw and gold
giveaway campaign to present more than HK$9 million

worth of jewellery and rewards to share the joy.
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The Group also actively collaborated with artists. During the
Year under review, we sponsored the concert of popular singer-
songwriter Mr. Jay Fung, and invited him to act as the celebrity
store manager at Lukfook Jewellery shop to introduce our
wedding jewellery products and services and interact with fans
at the site. During the Chinese New Year, we joined hands with
zodiac blogger Tao Baibai to host the live-streaming event on both
Tmall and Weibo, which recorded over 5 million views and created
hot topics. We also sponsored the Hong Kong annual music event
“Metro Radio Hits Music Awards Presentation” and the popular
variety show “Memories Beyond Horizon”.

PRODUCT DESIGN

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to striving for excellence in
product design and quality, and bringing diverse elements to
our products to create a wide range of jewellery with ingenious
designs and exquisite craftsmanship.

Qur professional jewellery design team is the fashion-conscious
trendsetter. They have also actively taken part in various local and
international jewellery design competitions, and have won more
than 210 awards up to now.
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The Group’s continuous efforts in brand building have been ZAEBERBEER EHFES I EB/ER
recognised with the following awards and accolades from the RHIRREL FmEMU FERIERED 015 !
industry and market, which included:

- “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category -  EE16EREIEFBRBAE—EHE
(Jewellery and Gold)” for sixteen consecutive years TEARR] BRER1T)

- “Hong Kong Star Brand Award - Enterprise” for ten - ZBEIOFHREIEBERRE 1%
consecutive years, and the first enterprise to receive the RO EHEERSRETAFARI®
highest honour — “10th Anniversary Award” E S

- “2022 outstanding QTS Merchant Award — Bronze (Retal -  [2022FEHEEmE—ZE4EF | iF
Sector)” 82

- “2021-22 Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Customer -  [2021-22F B THE%E | EEIRFL
Service”

-  “Outstanding Jewellery Retail Service Award” in “01 -  TO1BEESEAE2022 2 MEHHES
Corporate Gold Medal Award 2022” ERB AL

'-‘éf:* i, 50 i 3 S 1R R 20 ) R AR

amEEEn ' e 2 2022ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ
Elﬁgﬂﬁm E 2022 OUTSTANDING G5 MERCHAN] 8 SE0VK i s
a"’—l-t:'?’éMEDEE:. : MR-

0

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication HAEE+O FTELBEIERET  HFRAE
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from FBHERZ—MNE0RE AREEEEH—
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory — #4 F~%) o jR1996F » I A EB 2 BB A
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which is ﬂ—qﬂifﬁkgfﬁﬁiqﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁa P HEFRK
operated and managed by experienced and certified gemologists, =RA B LTS EEE  IBRHELETE T
was established to provide services including authentication and #R R R EGERECKKEEEHRAZE
grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite jade and coloured — ARF% ©

gemstones, and quality testing for jewellery.
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In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, which principally engaged in jewellery authentication and
professional training. With branch offices established, the institute
provides services for the jewellery sector and customers. The
institute has passed the ISO/IEC 17025 accreditation of the ANSI-
ASQ National Accreditation Board (ANAB) and the accreditation
of the International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC),
and is authorised to issue internationally recognised reports for
diamond grading, jadeite jade, ruby, sapphire and emerald testing.

Besides, the Group also collaborated with the National Gemstone
Testing Center and became one of the first jewellery brands
to launch e-certificate, making joint efforts to provide quality
assurance for consumers and protect the interests of consumers.

The Group also cooperated with the De Beers Group Institute of
Diamonds to provide a report for Hearts & Arrows diamond sold
at our shops, so as to give customers a more comprehensive
understanding of the diamond products purchased.

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the service motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’
needs with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to
customers, with a view to providing the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers and relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt
Services to each customer all over the world.

In view of customers’ increasing demand for instant response in
recent years, during the Year under review, the Group embraced
a new omni-channel approach which integrated various official
messaging platforms and enabled our shop staff to directly
respond to customers, in order to strengthen communication with
customers and provide more caring services. Meanwhile, with our
all-new one-on-one video shopping service, our sales associates
can show the in-store products to customers in real time and
customers can shop from the comfort of their home.
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To keep abreast of market trend and create more diversified, AZREETHIRM > SEENZ T FENEY
comfortable shopping space, the Group has revamped and  ZEf > AREBFARLITSE RG] TEEEE]
unveiled four types of new shop image - “Image Shop”, TEI&/E] - B mEB WEFRFZRMEE H0
“Affordable Luxury Shop”, “Concept Shop” and “Joalillerie”, aiming  AERIEHZ T RBERE IR HEREE
to provide diversified and cohesive consumption experience for

customers.

Featuring the brand logo colour tone and simple, fashionable [TERE| U GIEEEAERE  SFEHL  BFE
and youthful design, the “lmage Shop” also sets up a photo- KEEIL > FEEENEBEZTENBEZIELTT
taking zone featuring Lukfook’s iconic packaging box to cater for <3 mEEBEIRIIEE o [EE[E | ENL
the needs of customers who value memorable experience. The  E1&E AR » & &2 B S MET 78 - B (& BRFE RV &L
“Affordable Luxury Shop” features sophisticated and luxurious  #&BEIRE A )‘LE’JD%UEF ML= 5 TE 7B o hE
design, spacious and comfortable environment, and chic and XEERE FRHGAIRER  UAREEES
elegant style that reflects impeccable taste. The “Concept Shop” B4 EkE & ﬁ?}%ﬁ BANER > EHEETRE
features a blend of Lukfook’s brand culture, creative concepts, BEAMAISTIE ERETIAITR e B AEE>
different themes, innovative commercial space design and # MR AAEE IR B H X R&BE -

artistic presentation, subverting the gorgeous and cool image of
traditional jewellery shops. Featuring the theme of “Home e Love”,
the “Joalllerie” integrates the brand into life to create modern,
stylish and heart-warming design.

oldings (International) Limited 75155 (EF%)
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
ESgREFZEENEE

As at 31 March 2023

122023F3831H

Remarks: #3E

1 Executive Director HI{T#HHE

2 Non-executive Director JFHITHE S

3 Independent Non-executive Director 17 JFHITE S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERQRS

The Board of the Company recognises that sound and
effective corporate governance practices and procedures,
with an emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interests. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
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The Group is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted
in accordance with its corporate and governance culture and
values of practicality, innovation, integration and excellence and
high standards of business ethics, which form the basis of a set of
principles that are relevant to the entire business of the Company
and underpin the corporate behaviours. The Group believes that,
in the achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to
act with probity, transparency and accountability. Guided by the
Group’s core values, the Board plays a leading role in defining
the purpose and strategic direction of the Group, setting the tone
and shaping the corporate culture of the Company to ensure the
Group’s vision, mission, core values and strategies remained in
alignment with its corporate culture. In addition, the Board, as
the core of our corporate governance structure, is committed
to assisting the Group in reinforcing its well-established vision,
mission, core values, as well as a deeply engrained culture of
sustainability, accountability, and governance tradition with an aim
to integrate the concept of risk management and internal control
into our culture. More information about the Group’s Vision,
Mission, Values and Management Philosophy is available on the
website of Lukfook Group.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in the then Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange during the
Year under review, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in
the Mainland market due to its norms on “status parity” when
future business negotiations are conducted in Mainland. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals and
other prominent and experienced individuals from our community.
The Board considers that the existing Board composition, with
the support of Board Committees and two Deputy Chairmen,
can ensure a balance of power and authority. The Board will
nevertheless review this structure from time to time and will
consider the segregation of the two roles at when appropriate.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company
is not, or was not for any part of the Year under review, in
compliance with the CG Code.

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
Year under review.

@

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
three non-executive directors and four independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, securities industry, banking industry and legal
profession. The Board possesses a balance of skills,
experiences and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. The composition
of our Board complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The current members of the Board are
set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairmarn)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmar)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 77 to 87 of this Annual Report.
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(ii) Attendance Records at the Board, Board
Committees and General Meetings

The attendance records of the individual directors at
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meetings during the

Year under review are set out as follows:

Directors =

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & &RE&EE (FEF
Chief Executive Offcer) TR

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmEEE
(Deputy Chairman) e,

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FrERLtT

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEFUT

Dr. CHAN So Kuen BREREEL

Non-executive Directors EHTES

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BSRERE
(Deputy Chairman) (B2

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRAPLFELT

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP FEIEBBS MHA 4L

Independent Non-executive BiFRiTESR
Directors

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP  E 5GBS A T4+

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin TxEBRE

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BREATET

Mr. HUI King Wai FmESTE

During the Year under review, the Chairman held a meeting with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without presence of

other directors.

Board
Bxg

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

(i) EFEER - EFZETTERK
RRE 2z HFEDE
BRI EENEBEFERRTZEEEY
& OERZEZECER REEZETER
HINEZE T TR MRRAG ZHEL

ESR 7l
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/BITEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

BREEE RHAEBT FHEEE KRREFKE

N/A 1A 1/1 N/A R 11
N/A R 58 1/1 N/A R 1/1
N/A 18 N/A RE N/A R 11
N/A R B N/A R N/A R B H 11
N/A RiBF N/A 1B R N/A R iBF3 il
N/A R B N/A R N/A R B H 11
N/A R 58F N/A 1B R N/A R 5EF il
N/A 18 N/A RE N/A R 11
2/2 i 2/2 il
2/2 il 2/2 il
2/2 11 2/2 il
2/2 il 2/2 il

REBEFER TRELIFBEHMESHET
SEIIFTERRIT T —REFH-
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others stakeholders are understood and fulfilled by the
members of the Board.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin,
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having taken into account
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

(iii)

(iv)
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(vii)
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Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for nearly 9 years.
She will retire and offer for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be
held on 17 August 2023. Pursuant to CG Code Provision
B.2.3 of the CG Code, her re-election as Director should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. The Company’s circular to be despatched
to shareholders on or about 18 July 2023 will contain the
biographical information of Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
the reasons why the Board believes she is still independent
and should be re-elected.

During the Year under review and up to the date of
this Annual Report, the Board had at all times met the
requirements under (i) Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (ii) Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

Mechanism for the Board to Obtain Independent
Views and Opinions

Apart from the independence assessments of independent
non-executive directors mentioned above, the Company
has established mechanisms to ensure that Directors will
be given adequate opportunities and channels (formal
or informal) to communicate their independent views
and inputs in an open and candid manner and, where
necessary, in a confidential manner. The independent non-
executive directors meet with the Chairman in a closed-
door-meeting at least once annually and they can interact
with management and other Directors including the
Chairman through formal and informal means. Independent
professional advice is also available to all Directors whenever
necessary.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s AGM in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii) Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during their
terms of appointment which covers the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
the relevant continuous professional training to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has also
engaged consultants to provide the training programmes.
The average training hours that the directors received were
not less than 10 hours.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
arranged a seminar covering the topic of cybersecurity. The
current directors’ training records during the Year under
review are summarised as follows:

(viii) EENFEERE

FIEESERRNTAEREEIEEART
HHZHFNEREI RABREREXEE
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Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FRSEEER ESSXAMEN

Directors 55 HthiBRAE ARSI

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung =EBLEE 4
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (F/EFITHAEH)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmeitE v
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FIEkEL+ v

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEFLT v

Dr. CHAN So Kuen REEEL v

Non-executive Directors JEMITES

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BERRSTE v
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SRR T AL v

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP 2 EBBS » MHA 4+ v

Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIJEHITESE

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP B EIGBS A 4+ v

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BRFZREE v

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BRBERTEHLT v

Mr. HUI King Wai ST R v
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The Chairman leads the Board in the formulation of strategies and
in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings
and receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authority and responsible for running the Company’s business,
implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business
objectives. Both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
positions are currently held by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the
executive director. The Board believes that the current governance
structure, with one person serving as both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer and the majority being non-executive
Directors, provides an effective balance of power and authority for
the management of the Company and is in the best interest of the
Company at the present stage.

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at AGM.

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, with
three other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. All
Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, exceeding the requirement of a high majority of
independent non-executive directors by the Listing Rules.
In compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules, majority of the members possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the CG Code and the internal
audit plan and functions of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the view that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2023 comply with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules,
and that sufficient disclosures have been made.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditor
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external auditor
is responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s
financial statements and evaluating the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, to the extent
that they consider necessary to support their audit report.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire
process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, the interim and annual reports and
Sustainability Report before submission to the Board
for approval;

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor, and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

(i)
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Audit Committee (Continued)

o approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

o reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
risk management and internal control matters;

° reviewing the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
establish and maintain effective risk management
and internal control systems, and particularly, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
issuer’s Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) performance and reporting; and

° reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2023, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with five
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this
Committee and four out of six members are independent
non-executive directors, which is in compliance with the
requirement of the CG Code that a majority of the members
should be independent non-executive directors.

(i)

(ii)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulffil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
processes to be adopted when considering candidates to
be appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee would also
take into account whether the candidate can demonstrate
his/her commitment, competence and integrity required
for the position, and in case of independent non-executive
directors, the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules and their time commitment to the Company. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and would review and recommend any
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval, when
necessary, to enhance effectiveness.

(i)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
the board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members of
the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range of
diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution which would be brought by the candidates to
the Board if he/she is selected as a director. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the current composition of
the Board has achieved the objectives set out in the above
board diversity policy.

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. The chief financial officer, an executive director
and two independent non-executive directors are qualified
accountants. There is also an independent non-executive
director who is a qualified solicitor. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was the Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour of the Government of Hong Kong.
Six directors have experience sitting on the boards of other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. The directors
have extensive experience in the retail jewellery business,
finance and accounting, taxation, business strategy,
securities and investment, communications and marketing,
branding, and exposure or experience in various countries
including Mainland, etc. They are members, or committee or
panel members of various industry bodies, public service or
government bodies or charities. The Directors bring a wealth
of diverse experience to the Board, which is conducive to
the business development and growth of the Company over
the years.

In terms of board gender diversity, the Company excels in
gender equality as female directors account for one third
of the whole Board. The Board is of the view that it is not
necessary to set numerical targets and timeline for board
gender diversity for the time being. However, the Board
is committed to maintaining an appropriate percentage of
female members, which shall be no less than 30% at all
times. The Board also places tremendous emphasis on
diversity (including gender diversity) across all levels of the
Group and maintain a workforce with balance of male and
female staff members. Details of the diversified talent team
including gender diversity in the workforce are disclosed in
our Sustainability Report.

(i)
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Board Composition & Areas of Diversity

Age Group
FHeAER!

ERgHEHGRETILER
Gender
451

66.7%

Male Female

Bl it

58.3%
40-59 60-69 270
40E598% 60ZE6975% 70BREM £
Designation
25.0%
£2-0h
41.7%
33.3%
Executive Non-executive Independent
Director Director Non-executive
HiTES JERITES Director
BIFRITES

Length of Services of Non-executive Directors

IFRITESZRARF R

57.1%

7-10 years Over 10 years
TE105F BB 104
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director,
with three other members namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King
Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and all members
are independent non-executive directors, meeting the
requirement of a high majority of independent non-executive
directors stipulated in the Listing Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2023, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2022 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the headquarters.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band during the Year under
review are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 106 to 231 of this Annual Report.

(iii)
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Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was
as follows:

ERSNEZHMBERB KB G EMEBFTR
HES RIFEFRBZIEORWT ¢

2023

HK$’000

TAT

Audit services BEETIRTS 6,052
Non-audit services JEE RS

— Review service —BRR 571

— Tax related service — M EIERARRTS 1,277

Total “Ect 7,900

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the results and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company'’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
The published consolidated financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective risk management and internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department,
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Head of the
Internal Audit Department directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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In order to achieve enhancement of corporate governance of
the Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the
Audit Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are aligned
with the Internal Control Integrated Framework of the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSQ”), which comprises 17 principles under 5 components,
including Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department. The reports summarised information relating to the
work carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system on an annual basis have been adequately executed by
the Internal Audit Department during the Year under review.
The Audit Committee acknowledged that the management has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations.
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Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

The Group set up the Risk Management Committee in 2016 and
renamed it as Risk Management and Sustainability Committee in
2022, which comprising the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
four executive directors (including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN
So Kuen) and a senior executive of the Group. The aim of Risk
Management and Sustainability Committee include establishing
and improving the risk management system, ensuring timely
identification and management of risks for the achievement of
corporate objectives, so as to advise and assist the Board on the
strategies and implementation of the Group’s sustainability, and
the assessment of the associated risks.

The Risk Management and Sustainability Committee is
responsible for including but not limited to): (i) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code regarding risk
management requirements; (i) coordinating staff training, which
includes risk management principles, assessment methodology
and its implementation; (iii) assigning personnel to support
departments to perform risk assessment for newly established
business or projects, if necessary; (iv) formulating sustainable
development strategy and approach; (v) monitoring and evaluating
the implementation of sustainable development policies and
measures; and (vi) identifying sustainability risks. This committee
reports directly to the Audit Committee.

During the Year under review, the Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee held two meetings to discuss and
review, inter alia, reports on effectiveness of risk management
processes, reports on departmental risk assessment, the
implementation progress of the Group’s corporate strategies and
KPI targets and sustainability working report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management process,
which is embedded in the system of internal controls as an
integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for
stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate
governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group. Departments &
Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
RIRERRE

Report
BEZR

Audit Committee

BZEEY

AEEIRRNEPEEEE @

EREREE
FABNAREERESRREEREFREM
RIFIERREER TS A MABREF AR
WEEIERIE  REEERP TR NRAVE
B—IR-EBEKREEREA MR BB
BHREEREEANTEEBREAITEBR
o RFENEREBERXEEFETRTH
TCEREAET -HIIKEERFERERES
NEEEAERREEEETRRAREER
ANREREZEGER-

KRBWEMET

PIBRN USRI

Policy
R

Control
B

Risk Management and Sustainability

Committee
R ml‘ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ Procedures &
g;cért Standards
: Departments & Management BEREE

BAREEE

l

Objective Setting Risk

BRREREE B R

and Categorisation mp Identification mp Analysis mp Treatment mp Monitoring and Reporting

Risk Risk Effectiveness of

RSN ERREE BT EEIRA R
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Board of Directors

Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

Approving the Group’s risk management and sustainability
policy; and

Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee

Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerance level and criteria;
Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
regarding risk management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner;

Coordinating staff training;

Proposing and recommending on the Group’s sustainability
objectives, strategies, policies and framework;

Overseeing and monitoring the Group’s ESG reporting and
the implementation of the Group’s ESG-related policies and
initiatives;

Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of
the measures relating to the Group’s ESG;

Overseeing the setting and achievement of targets under
the Group’s sustainability strategies; and

Identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG related risks and
opportunities
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Risk Management Framework (Continued) A EIRLEIE @)
Departments & Management MR ERE

Departments and management are responsible for the IFILEEEESHEEHERNNERERD
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of  JR&sf& :
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation BER IR EE

e Strategy; o REK;

e Operation; . EE

e Financial reporting; and o  UIHER; &

e Compliance . =

Risk Identification Va3 2l

e The Group provides examples of risk factors; and o  AEHEREHRREEREKEHG ; &
e Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives e [RAMBHREKBERR
Risk Analysis EEHT

e Considering existing control measures; o ERIBHEEEEN;

e Using a consistent scoring criteria; and e  KE#H—RERERESEL; K
e Assessing the residual risks o FHMEFIERER

Risk Treatment [ [ =

e Choosing a risk treatment strategy; o EIZR[REHEKE;

e Establishing a treatment plan; and o  FINEHEE K&

e Appointing risk owners e ZERABESEA
Effectiveness of Monitoring and Reporting EERREIR XA

e Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and e THIRZERERERR &

e Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism o HRUTEERmERSIE
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Internal Audit Department also
conducts independent audit of the effectiveness of these systems.
Separate reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for its
review and appraisal. A final report will be submitted to the Board
for assessing the effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Department will follow up and the management will classify
the defects as “severe” risk, where appropriate, in the risk
management system for further measures formulation to resolve
or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced promptly.
The Company has established a policy for the disclosure of
inside information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with
close regard to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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Anti-Bribery, Anti-Corruption and Whistleblowing
Policies

Integrity, fairness and justice are the three pillars of the operation
of our Group, and business ethics and integrity are regarded as
the our core values. We have developed a robust anti-corruption
system, strictly complying with applicable laws and regulations
regarding anti-bribery and corruption in every regions, as well
as industrial standards, in order to prevent corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering and other illegal behaviours.
In terms of whistleblowing policy, we actively encourage
employees, customers, suppliers and partners to report any
suspected behaviours that are against business ethics and illegal
behaviours, with all reported cases being investigated in a rigorous
and timely manner. Details of the anti-bribery and corruption
and whistleblowing policies are disclosed in the Company’s
Sustainability Report.

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by
the Internal Audit Department which reports administratively
to the Company’s management and functionally to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department is authorised to obtain
all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit, financial reporting functions as well as these relating to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Department. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly
to closely monitor the business or operation changes. Regular
audit tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation.
The Internal Audit Department also conducts other projects and
investigating work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Department are reported to the Audit Committee. A
summary of the internal audit activities and audit results are
also submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year. The Audit
Committee will review and assure the adequacy of resources of
the internal audit team.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM
to be called by the Board. The written requisition () must state the
purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, either any number of shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
or not less than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (i) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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We have always placed great importance on effective two-way
communication with our shareholders. The Board maintains an
ongoing dialogue with shareholders and in particular, endeavours
to provide transparency and strives to ensure that all shareholders
have ready, equal and timely access to all publicly available
information of the Group. With the following measures in place,
the shareholder communication policy is considered to have been
effectively implemented throughout the Year under review:

@)

Note:

Interim and annual results, the interim and annual reports
and other corporate communications of the Company
(“Corporate Communications”)\°® are published in a timely
manner on the websites of Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the Listing Rules;

The Group’s Chief Financial Officer and the Investor
Relations Team presented interim and annual results through
conference calls and provided immediate responses to
questions during the meetings. In addition, the Group
also released quarterly operational data and enhanced
the capital market’s understanding with regard to the
Group’s business development and competitive edge
through various communication channels such as online or
physical meetings, non-deal roadshows, one-on-one/group
meetings;

Press releases and presentation materials were posted
on the Company’s website to facilitate stakeholders’
understanding of the Group’s latest developments and to
promote transparency;

Shareholders’ and investors’ enquiries are promptly
addressed by the appropriate Board Committees or the
Board, if necessary;

The AGM is an important forum to engage with
shareholders. At the AGM, separate resolutions were
proposed for each issue and were voted on by poll. The
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the
meeting prior to the polls being taken; and

The Company’s website serves as a handy communication
channel for the Shareholders. They can access our
Corporate Communications electronically via the Luk Fook’s
website.

“Corporate Communications” refers to any document issued or to be issued by
the Company for the information or action of holders of the Company’s securities
including, but not limited to, annual and interim reports, notices of meetings,
circulars, or other publications of the Company (including any “corporate
communication” as defined in the Listing Rules).
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The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at 25/F, Metropole Square, 2 On
Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories. Shareholders may also make
proposals at the general meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Bye-Laws is posted on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s respective websites.

On 27 June 2023, the Board has proposed the amendments to
the Bye-Laws (the “Proposed Amendments”) in order to, among
others, (i) comply with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
as set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Bermuda; (i) provide the flexibility to the Company in
relation to the conduct of general meetings by allowing a general
meeting to be held as an electronic meeting or a hybrid meeting in
addition to a physical meeting; and (i) make certain housekeeping
and consequential amendments. In this regard, the Proposed
Amendments will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders
by way of a special resolution at the forthcoming AGM. A circular
containing, among other matters, further details of the Proposed
Amendments and the notice of the forthcoming AGM will be
despatched to the Shareholders together with this annual report in
due course.

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders
of the Company. The Company intends to distribute 40% to 45%
of its annual net profits as dividends to shareholders, having
taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial results; cash flow situation;
business conditions and strategies; future operations and
earnings; capital requirements and expenditure plans; interests of
shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2023.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold
and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 68 to 96;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(e) Information about the Group’s ESG policies and
performance — “Sustainability Report” posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 68 to 96 of this Annual
Report;
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) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
40 to 67 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 68 to 96;
and

(9 An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others —
“Sustainability Report” posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and “Report of the
Directors” on pages 68 to 96 of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the global
or Mainland’s economy may affect the retail market sentiment as a
whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the sentiment of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, closure of branches
with low profitability and searching for suitable locations in other
areas for new shops.
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Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging policy with ratio of around
20% which mitigates the impact on the profit due to the drop in
gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 29 to
39.

Inventory Turnover

Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland, our inventory turnover bears the risk of
slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their operations are consistent with the Group’s image and
operation standard. We maintain a close working relationship with
our licensed shops and provide one-stop support to them, such
as shop-opening training, provision of operation manuals and
regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitor the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control, Product Quality Control, Distribution Network
Control, Pricing Control, Brand Image Control, and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 71.
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Control System on Licensed Shops

mhE 5 R E R AR

o Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme
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e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERTFERHEA

e DVR System

e 100% of the diamond products in Mainland
market are offered by Lukfook
Py 3t T 3548 A 22 Sh100% H 7S B e 1t

e Authorised suppliers on other products
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e Prior approval on retail locations
AR ERAE

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
EBH—IRERE U —ERTEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
FEERIEAERE

e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion
TRAEBHAERESNE R

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control
BRI U E IR R E

Operational Compliance Audit Team
SEAREEEE/NAE

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
FHEBAES

Cash On Delivery Basis
ISEIENETR

Certificates issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance

Elig, BREEEREERE

Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply

De Beersf L& - R EEE AN 2 H1E

Centralised control on discount policy

o R HTHI R

Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops
FrAEFA—SEYE H : Gk 8255)

Centralised Staff Training
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e Regional training centres & 37 122/l )
e E-Learning programmes #3_E £ 272
e On-site training E #h= 3
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Regulatory Risks

Changes in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could adversely
affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close eye on the
changes in such laws and regulations and adjusts the Group’s
operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the Group’s
market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams
in both Hong Kong and Nansha in Mainland to handle tasks in
respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where “Lukfook” has a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, Laos, Thailand, the United States, Canada and
Australia). Our legal department has reached a consensus with
our product development department, marketing department and
design department that any new product, collection, display prop
and fitting out design should be forwarded as soon as practicable
to the legal department as appropriate for the application of
design patent/copyright in Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau so
as to ensure the maximum protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland, and cooperate with the law enforcement agencies
to fight against infringement. The Group always encourages
colleagues to monitor any infringement during their business
trips and report the infringement to the legal department, and
endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s intellectual
properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements, and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations, and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the Year
under review, as far as the Group is aware, it has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training and
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the
latest development of the market and the industry, while improving
their performance in their positions and helping them to realize
their self-worth.
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Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in a
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationships with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 106.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK$0.55 per
ordinary share. A total of HK$322,909,000 was paid on 23
December 2022.

The Board proposed final dividend of HK$0.55 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$0.55 per
ordinary share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 24 August 2023. Taking
into account of the interim dividend paid, the total dividend for
the year would amount to HK$1.10 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$645,818,000 for the year (2022: HK$1.10 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$645,818,000). Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held
on 17 August 2023, the final dividend will be paid on or around 6
September 2023.
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Donations made by the Group during the Year under review
amounted to approximately HK$1,076,000.

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$807,926,000 (2022: HK$755,641,000).

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:

FEERRBEFERNFHZEROR
1,076,00078 7T ©

RABREIBFERBEITRD Z5F B
G BwRMEE27 -

REIEFEARNNFELRE  AABBEG]
UHFEEAOREHIBHRER G ERAK
NEETRD  WEERAT T L ERHE
BN ERAREETREN

RIEFEBARERBEFE KRB R20234F3
B381H Z At k& & %807,926,000 75
(20224F : 755,641,0005& 7T) ©

FEEHEIAHLES FRAAMBFESSF
ZER - BERBENT

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TF#ERT FET FET FET FET
Results E 4
Revenue WA 11,977,844 11,737,803 8,861,335 11,233,771 15,859,990
Profit attributable to equity RABERFAA
holders of the Company 1R F] 1,284,757 1,392,364 1,017,335 866,315 1,492,747
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets B E 14,928,506 16,220,269 14,512,039 13,925,048 14,423,572
Total liabilities FEN=E 2,707,564 4,141,741 3,187,815 3,512,937 3,860,656
Shareholders’ funds REES 12,221,440 12,078,996 11,324,665 10,371,705 10,517,270

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.

FABKRENBADNEIBEFEANTER
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The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2023 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmarn)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung,
Mr. LI Hon Hung and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM. Al the retiring directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of
the proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular
sent together with this Annual Report.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 72, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group. He
is also a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. WONG
has over 56 years of experience in the jewellery industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of the Group. He is the Honorary Life President of The Kowloon
Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary
Permanent Chairman of Hong Kong Jade Association, the
Chairman of Supervisory Committee of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild,
the Honorary Chairman of Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade
Industry’s Association, the Consultant of the Gems & Jewelry
Trade Association of China, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong
Small and Medium Enterprises Association, the Founding Member
and Vice President of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative
Industry Association, a Honorary Advisor of H.K. Gold & Silver
Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union, a Consultant
of the 7th Term General Committee of Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and the Honorary President of the Jewellers
& Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. WONG is
the father of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and
Non-executive Director of the Group and Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. He is also the elder brother of Mr. WONG Wai Tong,
Senior Business Director of the Group.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 72, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 50 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible
for the merchandising and production functions of the Group.
Mr. TSE is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Vice President of
The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, a Honorary Consultant of The
Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee, a President
of the Kwun Tong District Junior Police Call (JPC) Honorary
President Council, the 35th Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s
Guild, an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Committee for
Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, an
Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Preparatory Community of
National Day, a Vice President of Zhaoging Overseas Friendship
Association, an Executive Committee Member and Vice Director
of Finance of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a
Vice Chairperson of Tsuen Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador
Honorary Presidents’ Association, an Honorary President of H.K.
Gold & Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union,
the 14th Term Executive Director of Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry
Manufacturers Association, the 21th Term Honorary Consultant
of Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association Limited, the
9th Term Honorary President of Tsuen Wan District Elderly Welfare
Association, an Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association and a Vice Chairman (Finance and
Welfare) of the Jewellers & Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong
Limited. Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the “Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service” by the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 50, is the Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer of the Group. She is also a Director of
China Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate
of the Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise
business under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong
and Mainland. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994 and
served various departments for about 8 years until 2002. She
rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible for the
Group’s operations and development of the retail, wholesale and
licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for the
administration and human resources functions of the Group.
She holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is a Member of
Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a Member of The Association
of the Hong Kong Members of Guangdong’s Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Committees Limited, a
Honorary Life President and the 20th Term Vice-Chairman of
Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and Commercial Fellowship
Association, the 6th Term Standing Director of Guangzhou
Panyu Overseas Friendship Association, the 4th Term Director of
Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Exchange Association, a President
of Panyu Hong Kong Charity Fund Limited, a Member and
Vice-Chairperson of The Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee, a Member of Watch & Jewellery Industry Consultative
Networks and a Member of Greater Bay Area Hong Kong Women
Entrepreneurs Association. She has over 29 years of experience in
the jewellery industry.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 42, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design and development functions
and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and
a Master's Degree of Science in China Business Studies from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified
Public Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and
accounting assignments for a variety of business organisations
including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title in 2007 and was awarded the “Young Entrepreneur
of the Year” at JNA Awards 2020. She is also a Member of Young
Diamantaire Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong and a
Member of Greater Bay Area Hong Kong Women Entrepreneurs
Association. Ms. WONG is the daughter of Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director and the younger sister of Mr. WONG Ho Lung,
Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the
Group. She is also the nephew of Mr. WONG Wai Tong, Senior
Business Director of the Group.

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 63, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, joined the Group in 2012 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015.
Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and Oklahoma City University (the United States of America),
with a Doctorate Degree and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Dr. CHAN has
substantial financial and management experiences in vast varieties
of businesses for more than 36 years. Prior to joining the Group,
Dr. Chan worked in international professional accounting firms in
Hong Kong for auditing duties. She also served in various Hong
Kong listed and private companies across different industries in
a senior capacity, such as finance director, chief financial officer
or chief executive officer. Dr. CHAN is currently responsible for
the overall financial management, corporate finance, information
technology, investor relations and company secretarial matters of
the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 46, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Member
of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a Member of The Association of the
Hong Kong Members of Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Committees Limited, a Vice President
of Zhaoqing Overseas Friendship Association, a Permanent
President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association
(Hong Kong) Limited, the President of Sihui Dasha Town
Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong), an Executive Committee
Member of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited,
a Supervisory Committee Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association, an Executive Committee Member of
The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, a Member of Lions Club of
Sham Shui Po Hong Kong, and an Executive Committee Member
of The Jewellers & Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong Limited.
In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title, and was awarded the “CEO of the Year” by Capital
CEO in 2017. He is the son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the
Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
and the elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and the
nephew of Mr. WONG Wai Tong, Senior Business Director of the
Group.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 76, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 52 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of the Stock Exchange, a member of the
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited, a member of the Listing Committee of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed
member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a
member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and
was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He had also been a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is an Independent Non-executive
Director of Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2386), Agile Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3383), FSE Lifestyle Services Limited (Stock Code: 0331) and
HK' Acquisition Corporation (Stock Code: 7841), a Special
Purpose Acquisition Company (SPAC), whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He also serves as an Independent Non-
executive Director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(former Stock Code: 1212), the shares of which were delisted
from the Stock Exchange on 20 December 2022. He was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Asia Allied Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711), Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 0388) and Zhuhai Holdings
Investment Group Limited (a listed public company in Hong
Kong until its listing was withdrawn on 18 June 2021) until his
resignation effective from 1 February 2015, his retirement effective
from 29 April 2015 and his resignation effective from 6 September
2021 respectively.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 66, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. LI holds a
Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber College of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s of Architecture from New
York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr. LI was awarded the
Certificate of Registration Authorized Person (List of Architects) in
1989 and the Certificate of Registered Inspector in 2012, by the
Government of the HKSAR. In professional qualification aspect,
Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a
Member of Architect Registration Board. He also got the PRC
Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has extensive
architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu Associates
Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition, he is a
Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed as a
District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000 to
2007 and was awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2008 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is a member of The Sixth Election Committee of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. He is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Sheung Yue Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 71, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently
pursued further studies in Oxford University and Harvard Business
School. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served various
government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to the rank of
Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government of
the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007.
Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the past included Commissioner
of Insurance, Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic
Services and Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the
position of Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on
1 July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic development
covered air and sea transport, logistics development, tourism,
energy, postal services, meteorological services, competition and
consumer protection. He was also responsible for labour policies
including matters relating to employment services, labour relations
and employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong Kong
Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority
Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks Company
Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics Development
Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry Council and
Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP retired from
the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of the HKSAR in
2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Nameson Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1982), Million Cities Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2892) and C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3309) which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of ISP
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Synergis Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 2340).
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 70, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012
and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the client relationship managers. Prior to that, he
also managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1125), Hong Kong Technology
Venture Company Limited (Stock Code: 1137), Goldpac Group
Limited (Stock Code: 3315) and Crystal International Group
Limited (Stock Code: 2232) which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was formerly an Independent Non-
executive Director of I.T Limited (Stock Code: 0999). Mr. MAK
was admitted as a member of Hong Kong Housing Society
in May 2015 and is currently a member of its various working
committees.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 74, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013.
Ms. WONG is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Ms. WONG had been working with PricewaterhouseCoopers
for over 36 years specialising in the Mainland tax and business
advisory services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the
development of the firm’s business in the Mainland. Ms. WONG
joined Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006
after her retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers
in 2004. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

In addition, Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock
Code: 0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683), Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636) and SUM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0880), which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2015 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently a consultant of
Holman Fenwick Willan. Mr. HUI was a Non-executive Director of
the Group during the period from 1999 to 2013.
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Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 62, is the Senior Business
Director of the Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and
served in various departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr.
WONG rejoined the Group in 2014. He has over 46 years of
manufacturing and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold
industry. Mr. WONG is responsible for the Group’s merchandising
and polishing of rough diamonds and assembly and production
functions of diamond products. He is a Principal Advisor of
Honorary Consul for Republic of Fiji in Hong Kong, a Director
of Guangzhou Diamond Exchange, Director and Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Guangzhou Nansha Association, the 6th Term
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association,
the 4th Term Director of Guangzhou Nansha District Chamber
of Commerce (Chamber), the 6th Term Director of Guangzhou
Overseas Friendship Liaison Association. He holds the titles
of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. Mr. WONG is the younger brother of Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 61, is the Financial Controller
(Financial Accounting) of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group
in 1997. She is mainly responsible for financial accounting and
tax planning matters of the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to
Mainland in search of information on national tax policies and
privileges in order to develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She
has over 37 years of experience in financial and accounting for
commercial firms.

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 53, is the Deputy Corporate Gift
Director of the Group. She has over 35 years of experience in the
jewellery industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible
for the corporate gift business of the Group. In 2001, Ms. CHUNG
won the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing” in the 2nd
Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received the GIA
Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG is a Fellow of the
Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
Limited, an Executive Committee Member and Vice Director of
General Affairs of Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths’ Association,
an Executive Committee Member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association
and an Executive Committee Member and Director of Quality
Control and Trademark of The Jewellers & Goldsmiths’ Association
of Hong Kong Limited, and a committee member of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee.
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Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year under review.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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As at 31 March 2023, save as disclosed below, none of the 202343831 H B TXIKREEIN KAT
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and ZBBERERESTEHAEMERARA S SEMRE
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of B’ E (E & BE 5 R EEE K BIEXVER) 2 i
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning 7~ 1HRARR /D REEE T EH(QIREBEE S K
of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required, pursuant to  HRE1&H 53521 R E BeC i I s PRl &5
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to it ; Bl (b)IR 35 Bk 22 By =/ 75 BI fiY £ 1 0FF # A9
therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code set out  1ZZESF BB E 2N B KR EE RS 2 i 2 S 3K
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, to & :

notify the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ZA TR RIERMB ZIFE :
Company:

Number of Ordinary Shares
LERME
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Other Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interests Interests Shares
EE3 EGRBEA Ef  SENEE  GEEEA Hitviéz ERBE (ROEM
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 8,600,561 454,000 7,362,504 238,501,722 - 254908787 ) 43.42%
BRELE note (a) note (b) note (c)
W5t (@) B3 (b) M (o)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 453,344 - - - - 453,344 (L) 0.08%
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 643,000 - - 238,501,722 - 239,144,722 () 40.73%
BEFEUL note (¢)
Mzt (o)
Dr. GHAN So Kuen 180,000 5,000 - - - 185,000 (1) 0.03%
BREEL note (d
i3k (o)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 - - 238,501,722 - 238,861,722 (1) 40.68%
BEREE note (c)
M (o)
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 170,000 - - 8956,858 9,964,290 (L) 1.70%
TEERE note (¢) note ()
Bz it ()

(L) Long position ##&
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

The directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. were accustomed to act in accordance
with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, hence Dragon King Investment Ltd.
was deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, and in return
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 7,352,504 shares of the
Company held (whether directly or indirectly) by Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung together with other parties acting in concert in respect of
the voting matters in Dragon King Investment Ltd., collectively controlled (whether
directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the founders and settlors of The
WS WONG Family Trust (the “Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary
beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust was interested in 238,501,722 shares in the
Company, comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust and
(i) the 236,990,672 shares in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
The Trust indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

The members of the Trust, together with other parties who act in concert with Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung in respect of the voting matters in Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
collectively controlled (whether directly or indirectly) over half of the voting power of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)
Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
Note (e)

Mr. LI Hon Hung’s spouse, Ms. Irene LI, held 170,000 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, as the administrator of the estate of the late Mr. LEE Shu Kuan,
held () 6,370,229 shares of the Company (which beneficially held by the late Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan); and (i) 33.3% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Investments Limited and 51% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Holdings Limited, which each in turn held 630,624 shares and 1,956,000 shares of
the Company respectively.
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So far as known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2023, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

1202338310 R T XMEEIN  BAER
AEEMRESTHRABSME  MEAMIELR
NBAEFURSTHRABZ ALTRERTRK
DRABBERD T BEEREES A ERA
SEXVERE2 R B3N BHMR X AR R AT REZ

RERRA -

the SFO.

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interests % of Shares
R, 2B R ®E 5 R R ES L
Ms. LUK Chui Yee 454,000 (L) Beneficial Owner 257,990,880 (L) 43.94%
BEERZL BTGB
19,035,158 (L) Spouse
note (a) [
fizk (a)
238,501,722 (1) Beneficiary of a Trust
note (b) EREZmEA
B3 (o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene 236,056,722 (L) Spouse 236,056,722 (L) 40.21%
RER T T note (c) [
fizE )
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,924,672 (1) Beneficial Owner 234,924,672 (1) 40.01%
TNE () BRAE BTGB
LF Holding Services Limited 235,696,722 (L) Interest of controlled 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note (d) corporation
BifEE (o) RERER B
BOS Trustee Limited as Trustee 235,696,722 (L) Trustee 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note (e) ZEEA
fizE (o)
Silchester International Investors LLP 76,073,600 (L) Investment Manager 76,073,600 (L) 12.96%
RELE
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 41,261,000 (L) Investment Manager 41,261,000 (L) 7.03%
RELE
Silchester International Investors 39,518,600 (L) Investment Manager 39,518,600 (L) 6.73%

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position 7 &

RELE
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Note (a)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. LUK Chui Yee was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung.

Note (b)

Ms. LUK Chui Yee and Mr. WONG Wai Sheung are the founders and settlors of
the Trust. Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust.
The Trust was interested in 238,501,722 shares in the Company, comprising (i) the
1,611,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust and (i) the 236,990,672 shares
in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust indirectly
controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited (being
approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Note (c)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. CHEUNG Irene was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny.

Note (d)

LF Holding Services Limited held 100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises
Limited and 46.29% of the issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited, which
held 1,511,050 shares and 234,185,672 shares of the Company respectively. Hence,
LF Holding Services Limited was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722 shares in
the Company.

Note (e)

BOS Trustee Limited owned 100% of the issued share capital of LF Holding Services
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company in
the capacity of the trustee of the Trust.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associates, its fellow subsidiaries, or its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of financial
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries by the Group approximated to 8% of the assets
ratios as defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details
of advances (including guarantee given by the Group) which
were non-trading in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated
company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

Relationship

Name of Company with the Group

YCIEST BB 2 RfR

China Gold Silver Group Company
Limited (“CGS”)
FESIRERBFRAR (HREEIR))

Associated company

YN
3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited? Associated company
EEEURE (FA) BRABP BERE

! The shareholder loan mentioned above was unsecured, interest-free, and not
to be repaid within one year after the end of the reporting period.
2 3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited is a subsidiary of CGS.

The consolidated balance sheet of CGS with financial assistance
from the Group and the Group’s attributable interest in CGS as
at 31 December 2022 (the latest practical date) are presented as
follows:

Non-current asset JERENEE
Current asset MENEE
Current liabilities mEIEE
Non-current liabilities JEREIERE
Net liabilities FaE

2202338310 AEEBR—REB AR K
H2EWBABIRHEZMBEENERELOAL L
MHREE14.07(MEFTRENEELE 28% 0
AEBRZMBAAREZEWBABRM

ZIFEBZUBRN (BIEAERREHEZER 2
BT -

Extent of
Corporate
Corporate Guarantee
Advances Guarantee Utilised
EFERAAT
e AEER #iRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAET FHET
100,000 - -
- 1,075,000 822,000

! LHBRRERDEIER - RERBRANBRESHARE
—FREE-

TESHE (BB ARADATEHSRZMNEL
5o

~

PAEES

EEAERVHFEH 2 TESEEEEE
BEREAEER2022E12831H (BEER

AIYTHED) B EE R e T -
Consolidated Group’s
balance attributable
sheet interest
50%
REEE mE
1 =F i3 FE{LRE
50%
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHET
217,294 108,647
1,499,128 749,564
(1,760,133) (880,067)
(245,636) (122,818)
(289,347) (144,674)
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the
relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former
Directors) of the Company or its associated companies. The
permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the Company’s
Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability insurance
maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability and costs
associated with legal proceedings that may be brought against
such Directors.

During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

The largest customer RAER
Five largest customers combined hBRAERGST

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier BRAMRER
Five largest suppliers combined ARBERAMER G

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2023 are set out in Notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REBEFEARSBEARSARRLL T2
BIRARERNAS BAULRATNER
MBADES (BEMES) A2 AEE
R - BAESFBERXNREHN AT Z
NEHA URRAEEREERERITH
ANEBENSEREAN BRARBRMESRH
BEMETSEEE ARFAMELEFMER
ML EEE

REBEEFEN FEBXT2FFAEERE
ERZBADLENT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
1.5% 1.6%
3.7% 5.2%

REF REZHMBALHNBESAAES
ARBSNUERAZERRE BEERS £
MEEERZED

REBEEEN cEFBTEHEEMREEES
BEZzBEDLEWMT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
41.5% 34.5%
82.6% 74.9%

BES NEZHMBALHNBEEEZFAAES
RRTFSRU ERAZERRER  BIEES L
METEMES -

KEENR2023F3H31HZIRITTER B
REMEESHBHE N G T BRERMEII R
320
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EEUHE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 14 August 2023 to 17 August 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 17 August 2023, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 August 2023.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend will
also be closed on 24 August 2023 and no transfer of shares will
be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 23 August 2023.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Company had 0.71% interest in HKRH as at 31 March 2023.
HKRH is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2023, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of CGS, a subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Dr.
CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI Chiu Chung who were directors of
the Company held certain shares in HKRH, were also considered
as having an interest in HKRH under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

KRB ZABMRT EEIERMETEERE
ZRE B REEGIHZ SR I ERS

MIRRBFEAEMES > A B 2023F88
14HE2023FE8817H (BEMKAEIEEN) Y
EMERMDBFELFE - ATEEREF
B H2023F8 A17THRE T2 REBEARZ > FI
BBRAXHERBBERERIEBN20234F8
B11B T F4R300 RIS E AR N B 2 B AKRMND
BEESLREATREBSFELERAE M
WAEBEFEERNER183FEM L1718
1712-1716Z > LURIBE R FE -

MR EME » AN A BT HR20235F85 24
HEERERMBAELFE-ANAER
EEXRBRE FBBAXHERBRAKRE
BIEARN2023FE8H23H FF4R30D A%k iE
KRBz BBRMIBE B ED B RE
BRARAB MILASTBEFTERFNER
1838 A M AW 7I81712-1716F » LU IR &
SEFE

FEBREZFHMBRDENEEZRE
EREKREN -BEFZHMEFNEZEETES
EXRNBZEBER BERHEERRERAUE
tEEm B EMES REE HEENES
HEEABBEATSEBEEEES ZF

1202343831 B » A AT R BB ERIZRT
BB 0.71909 B © BEE R LR R B 2
Lo

R2023F3831H  ARBEETHHRL LR
BEREENTATEERZERNB AR PR
TIRMNEBFE -ARBDESRZERRE HR2
TENITEBE T BREBEBTEFRPLE
HRFEEBERERNETRD  BUREK L
MHRAESA0)EFENEEANEBER
PR LA e o
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The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (“HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the Group
is engaged.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
under review have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
The Company has not changed its auditor in the past 3 years.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

ERERERKENBAR EBERER
EE)REHERSRHKEEHEMNTE
REFFEEFBRAEBRNRFIEST BN
TABREBRERERABIL LHERERA
TENEILIEEERES  WARTAESRD
R/EANBERENATBEREREBRLTHE
BN MBI EHER-

AAREREENED  ARATBEILIFANTE
ERBEZZEEEERRNTERNEBK
BEXS LURREDER 2EEES KK
BEEMEMNTE HERBEEZERR
kFBEATAEREREBEB ZBEQF
RAIMBIIEE-

BREXRAERESAKRBEEIN IBEAATE
ERREZEHMBEAL (EER DR R
SR EBPTEF B E BB AR T A BB AN
BEREAEBTREA EE

ARABDHANEEEAARRFALRLEE
FMARFRHZIRF RN R

BEFRBDESZ 2AREERBEESHAA
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 106 to 231, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

BEAAE

(I EFRZEA MBI B R E])

NEEE (B BRAE U TEBIEAT)
REMWBAR UUTHBIEER)) JIEHNE
1062231 ENG A BHRK  81F

. FR2023F3A3 T HMNGEEEERER ;
o HEZHIFEEMNGEERZRE,

s HEZALFENFESEEWVARE

s HEZALFENGSEREHK

s REUBHRERMTE SEETEESHER
REMPBREER -
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

HMRD ZEREYBRRECRIES AT
AEEBHN(E BT HRSERN)EEMF
SMERT SHEEN2023FE3F[31ANRS
FHERAREHEZA EEFENGEMER
BizaRERE LEEREE(ABRER)
MIREREEZAEHE-

RAERBEESEBEMAETEMN(EBES
Q) EITES - RAIEREER T AENS
FEAERRS RBEUESH RS BHREK
BB RIEE— DMt

HFIMEE > HFIFTESHES REERERE
EMAHMANTSFERIBMEER-

RIEEBGSMAERMI(FEXESSHNER
TR GATER ISR - JA\IR &%
W EREITTRIPHNEMBEEEEE

HRBESASFEERERMANEEHE 5N
TG EMBERERNEFRDEEZNFE B
LEEEEARMBFERGEMBHREAKRD
AERFETREN RMAFEHELEFRERE
HEBHNER-
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The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to existence

and valuation of inventories.

Key Audit Matter
PR E st H1E

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEFEMRREE

Refer to Note 3.9, 5(a) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is
HK$8,853 million as at 31 March 2023. The Group’s
inventories mainly comprised gold, platinum and gem-set
jewellery products in the stores, manufacturing facilities
and distribution centres. Valuation of inventories is at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. Significant portion of value at
cost includes cost of precious metals and gems which
are subject to the risk of changes in market value. The
assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast
sales performance, marketability of products and the
forecast market price of precious metals and gems used
to make the jewellery products. Furthermore, there is a
higher inherent risk of theft and pilferage given the high
intrinsic value and portable nature of individual inventory
item.

2R E M HIRERNEES.9 5@ M23

EEBEFEENREESS,8538
B EEEGFEEFEQEEFH EERMERDHE
FONES - RERUEGHER - FEHIZMAEHR
AR FEME 2R BEEGE FENHIRFES
HEXEXRBRETIHGHAEBRAETAMNEE S R EH
ERS MAEBABDASEBRUHENLS MZE
BAEASHEEESAR FENEIRFEREEEM®
(b ) &ER N - TARAHERE - EMPEHE M
PR SHERMERMBESBERUENEETE

2023FE3H31H >

BfE ET R FUBRE AT o UES (BRI F ENREEES
BRAGHMTE CHFEIERSHNERBRMR-

HMEBSTHANBRESZTEEE BT
ENEAEERHEBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Bt A B IEAR BT HIE

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of existence
and valuation of inventories and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

We evaluated and validated management’s key controls
over existence and valuation of inventories by:

i) inspecting a selection of daily physical inventory
count reports and the reconciliation of daily ending
inventories recorded in the inventory system;

ii) inspecting a selection of in-house gemological
appraisal or laboratory reports on the authenticity
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
counts close to year-end date and performed sample
count procedures in selected stores, manufacturing
facilities and distribution centres of the Group. We
compared our sample count results with the counts
performed by the Group and the records in the inventory
system. We performed roll forward/backward testing on
the inventory movements between the annual physical
inventory count dates and year-end date, if applicable.

KM TREEENFENGFEN AR EENAIET

K sHEIBAE > W 8B 8 1 5T A HEE M BOAR 2 R B

W EBERZFACE MR TEME  BERHE

EETFE&ETUFE’J@IEQIE  DEHE EREERBRABY A
&L o

HPBBUTREFTEABREEEEHEFS
R EBERGERES

) HMBEREAEBYEFERERS UKEFER
QEB’JT%-T%%E’J;TEEDE%;

i) HERETEREHET - HEAAEEMHERNE
BEMREBENRNISKREETHERRS

ESh PN EAFEA2RE SEENOEH Y E
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HE

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FENFEMRAEE (8

We focused on auditing the existence and valuation
of inventories because the existence of inventories is
subject to high inherent risk given the high intrinsic value
and portable nature of individual inventory item while the
estimation of net realisable value of inventories is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty.

RABERFENEFEEARABENES RASE
RENFEEEREEESRRAERILEE  FEF
AMHEESRERE MESFEIERFERTFE
SEESAREN -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMEet B ERR B HIE

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, ageing profiles
and price for gemmological appraisal carried out by
independent gemmologists engaged by the Group to
verify their authenticity and assess their condition and
valuation. We evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent gemmologists and
obtained an understanding of the scope of work and the
terms of engagement.

In evaluating management’s assessment of net realisable
value and provision of inventories, we:

(i) compared the net realisable values of gold and
platinum inventories calculated based on the
current market price of precious metals with their
purchase or production costs;

HATFERESHKEEH D FMEBEERETRN
B EREKRER) B EEEZENBUYELE

B-RMEHBIBREXNT B ENRERIEE
s 36T BB T (RS E KRB o

FEHEEEEREFE SRR ERER T GIBG
e A

) RRETBENTEAENESKRASEEY
B ERHBENEEMAETER;
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HE

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FENFEMRAEE (8

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMEet B ERR B HIE

(i)

obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the identification of slow moving
gem-set jewellery products and challenged
management the basis adopted for identifying
slow moving gem-set and the related inventory
provision with reference to, amongst others, the
market price movement of the materials, cost to
re-work of gem-set, the ageing profile and the
historical sales pattern and the subsequent selling
prices of these products;

compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal reports of selected
samples above to the cost of gem-set jewellery.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the physical existence of inventories, as well as the
estimates and judgement made by management in
respect of the net realisable value of inventories, are
supportable by the available evidence.

(i)

(i)

THREEEAMBHKERHAEMNMER
W2E (HPaE) ZFERNIMEHEZE &
SHRENME SR AUEHERAUKRZEE
B EREEEMANFIHERE MERFEEE
R EZE |

R EX TR E AN E I RE T EREER
SATRE A EITEERR o

RIEFETHRER RMEEFE FEaEEFE BEE
B E z AP EFH 2 5t R H BT E P15 /RE
SFe
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 2022/23
Annual Report other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon, and the Sustainability Report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

BERREFAHHMESEE - HitWE28E
NEEE BR) BRAT202223FFHRA
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

ZPNER BEHREMBRERERES T
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

s HEERAFEBECESSHERNKGEMN
ELAS o o IR IR PR ENAY B 51 /&8 - B
ERGFAERFENBEREMINEANT
BEML EMAEERY S£EENE
BISERENELEEREE - IWRELMB
WMEAEEARTEENE  MBECEZELE
MR EPIRAERELIRGSMBRE
MEVER R E - REBMNMETE
AIRMEERRIIFEREER -HMAY
iEim e AN MRS B LS E
ST/REE o AT > KRR FIEI BN oI A
N BEETEFELE

o HEREMBERENERIIRAON A
BHMAD BEKE UREEGMHR
REGTBERMRZZMEE-

e T EEREERNBRNEZBIINMBERE
BERTRE BENEERE UEY
REMBRERERZIR -HMEE &
EEBEANFM BERAIT-EMB
Bt ERAEREEE

PREMEEN HARELEZEGEET 58
WESHE RREZH BEASFFERS &
BERMOESSPHEN ERABEFNEFTEKR
AR ©

HPERNELZETRIZN RARMER
GEMBIMHNERERERER Tt
MBEEAECEMKIAERERMEL
MBI AERMEMEMEER  WREERNIER
T BLUBREBI T EL BB ITEI NI
BYPr SEE I ©
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Pui Ling, Sandra.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

NRELZEGEBNEET  HAREW
EEERNTHEGVBERERNESRSE
2 FMiEm R RE S F 8 - R ZHENR
SREABEFE [RIFEARERTIAFA
ARBEEEER HEBHERNBERT W
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BEHERBBEEN AR HFRELR
BERSTBEEZEE

EEABIZHMBENEFTEEGBRAR
Mm% o
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&7 2023F6H27H
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other losses, net

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Net reversal of/(provision for)
impairment loss on financial assets
and financial guarantee

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Finance income, net

Share of results of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to equity holders of
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted

The above consolidated income statement should be read in

Note
B EE
A 6
THE A S 8
EF
HA A 7
HAthEs18 538 9
HERDIHER
THER
B E AT FERFRBE
EiERsm, (B FHE
peg—pinedll 8
B
&R
MFEUA > 5 RE 10
R —REE NBIEE 19
FRERIS IR AR T
i 11
FRiaFl
FEqGER -
KABERFTAEA
JEVERRE R
FATATERIFEA
FELEA 2 SREF
BEARK S 12

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2023
HK$’000
FAERT
11,977,844
(8,747,447)

3,230,397
228,859
(17,398)
(1,653,445)
(214,070)

1,832
1,576,175

33,125
(20,763)

12,362
(23,146)
1,565,391
(280,664)
1,284,727

1,284,757
(30)
1,284,727

HK$2.197# 7T

2022
HK$’000
FET
11,737,803
(8,503,976)

3,233,827
279,344
(43,041)
(1,626,333)
(188,778)

(11,795)
1,643,224

87,344
(23,097)

64,247
(23,838)
1,683,633
(291,296)
1,392,337

1,392,364
(27)

1,392,337

HK$2.3778 7T

bitir e RE R AN T —HREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAERT FAT
Profit for the year FERiEH 1,284,727 1,392,337
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Efth2 & (§518) WA :
ltemns that may be reclassified BIiEB BT D EE
to profit or loss Em s HH
Currency translation differences: PERZERR .
— Group —REE (502,167) 272,924
— An associate ——REERE 19 - 4,059
lterns that will not be reclassified BT EENTHEE
to profit or loss Em s HH
Revaluation of financial assets at BAnES AHMEE
fair value through other WAZEMEEBEEE
comprehensive income 21 423 (808)
Remeasurements of employee benefit EE@HISENEHTE
obligations 30 5,249 (4,191)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income R E 2 E (E548)
for the year, net of tax A > SBRFRIE (496,495) 271,984
Total comprehensive income FAZEEAWRA
for the year 788,232 1,664,321
Attributable to: THIALEW:
— Equity holders of the Company —RANBERTFAA 788,262 1,664,348
— Non-controlling interests —JEERR R (30) @7)
Total comprehensive income FAZEEAWA
for the year 788,232 1,664,321

B

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income | #it4z & & E WA 3R 2% FE B2 B8 I B 5% — 5 B
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Interests in an associate
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Trading licence
Gold loan receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Right of return assets
Trade receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Gold loan receivables
Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

BE
FERBEE

L ENN Sy
REY*
ERREE
R—REEAT 2 Em
BARMESFAEMER
WAZ EREE
R BRI
BHESEE
& FAMRER
H AN FEURARTE
EEFARREE

REBEE

RS

ROIEERIER

B 5 B UARTE

e RIRER
HhAE U AR IE

Bl —EE R ERE

BHESEE

Bl EIFFS R

REKRREFEY

HaE
s

Capital and reserves attributable to Z8ATEHFE A

the equity holders of
the Company

Share capital

Share premium
Reserves

LB A R (R

&N
IR1nim (B

i

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

IR IR
i

Note
B 5

16
17
18
19
21
32

22
29

23
24
22

19
32

27(a)
27(b

-

As at 31 March

#3831H
2023
HK$’000
F#w

918,560
1,127,727
670,058

788
1,080

90,724
146,666

2,955,603

8,852,611
98,878
213,823

440,212
4

19,724
2,347,651

11,972,903
14,928,506

58,710
2,494,040
9,668,690

12,221,440
(498)
12,220,942

2022
HK$'000
TAET

892,590
1,007,606
601,635
23,146

365
1,080
41,798

492,020
158,023

3,218,263

8,769,304
109,627
187,711

403,551

16,719
23,057
3,492,037

13,002,006
16,220,269

58,710
2,494,040
9,526,246

12,078,996
(468)

12,078,528
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

As at 31 March

#3831H
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b= FAET FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTIEM AR 29 59,656 74,692
Lease liabilities HEaR 18 147,605 153,013
Employee benefit obligations BERMEME 30 33,872 5,450
241,133 233,155
Current liabilities mENEfE
Trade payables, other payables B EIRIE S HAth
and accruals FE(TBRIE K & 517018 26 1,235,102 1,156,446
Financial guarantee contract HHIEREHN 35 36,831 36,831
Contract liabilities aHNa’E 162,962 165,173
Derivative financial instrument TTEERMTA 20 - 280
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 172,462 204,598
Sales refund liabilities HERMEE 193,516 201,727
Amount due to an associate I —K B A B IRIE 19 = 411
Bank borrowings IRITER 31 115,020 1,383,391
Gold loans =EEE 32 425,114 571,445
Current income tax liabilities BIHEAFTIRIR & & 125,424 188,284
2,466,431 3,908,586
Total liabilities HaE 2,707,564 4,141,741
Total equity and liabilities EmkaRiEzE 14,928,506 16,220,269

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in _Eii4sraEEEBRELAFEM M T —HHEIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the #REEFHREIVHES FR2023F6827 il
Board of Directors on 27 June 2023 and were signed on its behalf ~ EI&EH FESAKREE !
by the following directors:

3

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER BR&RIE
Director Director

EE EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

B E2023F3B31HIEFE

For the year ended
31 March 2022
As at 1 April 2021

#F20223831H
LLEE
RR2021F481H

Comprehensive income/(loss) ZEU A~ (§548)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations (Note 30)
Currency translation differences
Revaluation of financial assets

at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note

21)

Total other comprehensive

income

FmiEhl/ (518
HittZ2EWA (§548)

BERMEEN
B8 (f5£30)

ERER

ZAREFARMER
BWAZEREE
BEZ® (i=21)

Hitt2EAKA

Total comprehensive income/ ZE4EUA ~ (518)

(loss)

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid (Note 13)

At 31 March 2022

BBEEAZXS
BRE (iFE13)

11202243831H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
capital
fg A
HK$'000
FHET

58,710

58,710

RABERFEAE
Share

premium Reserves
e 1n s fE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Note 28)

(Mf5¥28)

2,494,040 8,771,915
- 1,392,364
- (4,191)

- 276,983
- (808)

- 271,984

- 1,664,348
- (910,017)
- (910,017)
2,494,040 9,526,246

Non-

controlling

Subtotal interests
NG IR R R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
11,324,665 (441)
1,392,364 27)
(4,191) -
276,983 -
(808) -
271,984 -
1,664,348 (27
(910,017) -
(910,017) -
12,078,996 (468)

Total
equity
RETRAREE
HK$'000
TR

11,324,224

1,392,337

(4,191)
276,983

(808)

271,984

1,664,321

(910,017)
(910,017)
12,078,528
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATEEITE AR

Share Share
capital premium  Reserves
A RBEE s

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FER FER FER

(Note 28)
(ptizE28)
For the year ended #F2023F3831H
31 March 2023 LLEE
As at 1 April 2022 20225%451H 58,710 2,494,040 9,526,246
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EU A~ (§548)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF, (BB - - 1,284,757
Other comprehensive Hith2@EWA  (5518)
income/(loss)
Remeasurements of employee (B2 &) SEH
benefit obligations (Note 30) SHEtE ([H5E30) - - 5,249
Currency translation differences  [& 5 =48 - - (502,167)
Revaluation of financial assets A A EFF AHMEE
at fair value through other WAZ EREE
comprehensive income (Note 2 BEEE) (fizE21)
21) - - 423
Total other comprehensive  Efth 2 E#44518
loss - - (496,495)
Total comprehensive income/ ZE4EUA ~ (518)
(loss) - = 788,262
Transactions with owners ~ BEFAZR S
Dividends paid (Note 13) 2ARE (H5E13) - = (645,818)
- - (645818)
At 31 March 2023 F2023%3831H 58,710 2,494,040 9,668,690

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  _E¥lt4R & #
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Non-
controlling Total
Subtotal interests equity

et JEfERRMEE  EEAE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FTET FTET

12,078,996 (468) 12,078,528
1,284,757 (30) 1,284,727
5,249 - 5,249
(502,167) - (502,167)
423 - 423
(496,495) - (496,495)
788,262 (30) 788,232
(645,818) - (645,818)
(645,818) - (645,818)
12,221,440 (498) 12,220,942
m BB R E AN M EE— (RIS -



For the year ended 31 March 2023
B E2023F3831HILEFE

Cash flows from operating activities &3&;5E1 2 IR&HE
Net cash generated from operations  ZEES ZIREFEE
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEAFER
Mainland and overseas income B A 8 INPRIEHR
taxes paid
Net cash generated from EEEMEL RS R
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities I8 & 5B ZIREHE

Purchases of property, BEYE -BEAERE
plant and equipment

Prepayment for purchase of BEMERZEZ
properties and equipment SN

Purchases of investment properties BEREYHE

Proceeds from other receivables SRIHE—KHNEBRE
arose from prior disposal of a B4z HiEWRERIE
subsidiary FriS I8

Proceeds from amount due from B F@‘X*%iﬁ}rﬁ“ﬁx
Hong Kong Resources Holding BERAE ((EBER
Company Limited (‘HKRH”) PERG)) RIBZ RS ARIE

Interest received = &S

Proceeds from disposal of property, H ’EV/J% B R
plant and equipment RAEBPTSRIE

Net cash used in investing activites ~ R & EEIFTA 2 IR F58

Cash flows from financing activities Fi & ;EEI ZIR&HE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERFAENIE

Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER
Proceeds from gold loans with LUIREHEEW
cash settlement =EGEMEMIE
Repayment of gold loans with BEMIREEEN
cash settlement =EEE

BEREEE (BEMNE)

Repayment of lease liabilities
(including interest)

Interest on bank borrowings and RITERREEEETR
gold loans
Dividends paid BKRE
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BAE EEIFTAE 2 IREF58
Net decrease in cash and cash HERNEEEMZ
equivalents AR
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April  IR4B1EZHES K
REEEY
Exchange differences PE 0 =2
Cash and cash equivalents M3B31AZERER
at 31 March REEEY

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read  F#liér&

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2023
Note HK$’000
B sE FAET
33 1,685,341
(7,001)
(336,869)
1,341,471
(107,280)
17 (99)
7,627
10 33,125
2,196
(64,431)
33 114,000
33 (1,382,371)
33 3,015,671
33 (3,102,977)
33 (294,158)
10 (12,846)
(645,818)
(2,308,499)
(1,031,459)
3,492,037
(112,927)
25 2,347,651

2022
HK$'000
TAET

1,133,859
(7,939)

(386,982)

738,938

(79,483)
(376,000)
(102,729)
41,575
27,080
87,344

2,426
(399,787)

1,015,000
(343,117)

2,509,970
(2,323,628)
(395,582)

(12,760)
(910,017)

(460,134)

(120,983)

3,546,349
66,671

3,492,037

REMEREABWN T —HEE
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as
a company with limited liability under the Companies Act
of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 27 June 2023.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative financial instruments), financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income and gold
loans which are measured at fair value, as explained in
Note 4.

NEEE (BERF) BRAR (TRAE])
1996 F9B3H T AR EREBEARE
REVEFMMIIABRRE  H5E M
ME M AVictoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda-e

AT REMBAT R TAER) £
ENFZERHSERRAEEMH 2K
BReh B AREERTEER-

RABRINI1997FSB6REERHE
RFZFRARRAT (TB3ZFT)) ER L

BRBEARBEI LSS MBRERY
L#ETT (TE7T)) 25 I B 2023565
THEEEFE ((EFT) #ETISE.

AL EREMBRRFFAERAZEE
S ERREN T -FRRBERAEN
EEBRECRITEZ2RFEERER -

KRB ZIEEMBREDREEEME
WREER (BEBYBREER) REB
NEFRBIE622E Z WEE R TE M X o IR
WIMIEEAPR RS » B T RAAERT AB@
ZEMEE (BETEERIH) BA
AEFARMEERAZEREERS
TEER/RANENEIN FEMBR
RIGEEAABEPIRE -
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(@)

Amendments to existing standards, improvements
and accounting guideline that are effective for the first
time for the financial year beginning 1 April 2022:

Annual Improvements  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
Project 2018-2020

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16, Narrow — Scope Amendments
HKAS 37
(Amendments)

Accounting Guideline  Merger Accounting for Common
5 (Revised) Control Combinations

The adoption of amendments to existing standards,
improvements and accounting guideline did not
have any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RREBBVBREERNER IR
EMEREABTECRETHRESG
B RARTREEERERRAAEES
STECEREFEL H B o W e s EFI B =
EEMENSEE 0 RBEEMBER
KBEANBRRNGEEE > EHEET

WEE -

(@ RAZEREST NERGESI
1220225481 BB EEFE
BREX:

FEEMEER 2018F E20205
BHRZEE
e
EEMBREER NEEE
ERFAGET
R 5516587
ER gL

$375% (BFT )
EREEELE S
(CHENS]

HEEREHZ
aHgstEE

WAEEABES]  E KRG 5HES]

HRERAEBOGEEGYHRRIL
BEAEAFE
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Certain new standard, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2022
and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Statement 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of in Accounting
Estimates ("

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current @

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with
covenants @

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback @

HK-Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

- Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause @

Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture ©

m Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2023

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2024

© To be announced by HKICPA

The directors of the Group will adopt the new
standard, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation when they become effective. The
directors of the Group are in the process of assessing
the financial impact of the adoption of the above
new standard, amendments to existing standards
and interpretation, none of which is expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

(b) BETFHIIEBIRBERZETKR
K& EEMER20228481
HEBNMBEEREER ER
EIRERN

EHRGHENE FHERZKEY

SREBMER

EHRERIEH R

(CRES)
g el githst 22 &
85 (1B5TA)
g el HE-QRZEENE
H12% (B5TA) ERESEBERMNE

JERRIEY

EBMBREEL REBREQ0

1758
g el BENEARBUIE
ER A RS I )
g el A ZEIERE

F15E (B5TEX) BE?
ERMBREER EROBAZHEERREY

F165% (E5T7)
ER-REE MBERRZEI-E
CHES) RAHEEZER
BEERZERE
Mz ntae

ERMBREER REFHAHBENRT

BI0RMKREE FeEhEzBz
B ERFE8E BEHEFHES
(CREN
0 R2023F 1 A1B Sz BBz FEBEE
5
@ R2024F1 A1z BB FEBME
5
@ BEBGHAAT LM

AEBESRAEMER REEANE
SRR ERBEMERMARMER EFT
kB AEBEREATERAL
MATER N IRAEANETT A REEN
MBERE BRI EHAERN AR
BERR RS HENGREHHFRERUKR
RRRRRRGEEEATE
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(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

(@ HEHBEH

AEBEXBEBEGSIARAR

BRBAHAE R

EEERDITERHEME
E-BE—RNBEATEE

WRERLE

) FPAIEBEENLNE

iy WHBEXRFESR

ANFREEER

(iy ANEBDETRARE

==

vy HEREZHMREE
ERHEERNEB/HQ

E &

V) BB R B R F

B B A 1
&e

EEBGHTMEERNAH
BEEURIAENEER
HABE NI UEREE
HEAR R ETE (D&
SMBIERIN) - REELIZIA
BEREE BAREBERLI
EREDFTGRIREER A
s Bl B E R ER LA RESE RS
WU R B RS R (E I IR AR 1

3 °

BEMHBEREARELERX

iH o
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(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]
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(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting after initially being recognised at
cost.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.8.
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-makers. The executive
directors and senior management, who make
strategic decisions, have been identified collectively
as the chief operating decision-makers, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
financial performance and positions of the operating
segments.

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised within
‘other losses, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.
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(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement on
a net basis within ‘other losses, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made on
assets under construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
their intended use. On completion, the relevant assets
are transferred to property, plant and equipment at fair
value or cost less accumulated impairment losses

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of the investment properties over
their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50 years. Where
the carrying amount of an investment property is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

(@)

k]
FEEREEREELZUT
STELERDE !

e HBREARESE
(Gt AEAfh 2 E KA
SEtAED 0 &

. BERBMmAHE

DEBURANEREETRE
ERRERBENHRRZE
BRI

HRBAREFEZEE
Wy et 5z 5 48R B 48 2 S HL Ath
EE W AS IR - BRI IR
FEEZRATAKE H
e BRI 2 52 [ 1 4] 2 B 538
R 2 A P e st = LR
ARESARMEERRAR
RERE AR

EHESHEEZSEEY
EBRABLEEHE  £E
BhgEMmoBREH IR



(b)

()

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in consolidated income statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified
its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in ‘other losses, net’, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in ‘other losses, net’ in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 22 and Note 24 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for other receivables and
trade receivables, respectively and see Note 3.10 for
a description of the Group’s impairment policies for
trade and other receivables.
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In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and AR IB R 2 BL4E BN R R IR AE 7R

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated IHoMIBRTRIEmRES MM
income statement, except to the extent that it relates RMEANREME2ERAERINE
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or BREaEEZIEEAMERIN -
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised EZIERT  MIBIRNG 2B HAih
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, EEBATEZNERAER
respectively.
(a) Current income tax (a) BDEAFRTSHR
The current income tax charge is calculated BNEAPR S MR Th 2 R & 1
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or RKEARB-EWB AR K
substantively enacted at the end of the —RBERDKRERELERE
reporting period in the countries where the FRRMAZBERDIEMHE
Company, its subsidiaries and an associate Bz EtE-BEE
operate and generate taxable income. EHFEMBERREBEERE
Management periodically evaluates positions FREZBRZMIBREM
taken in tax returns with respect to situations FREVIE B 0 W 5 R R TS 1 R
in which applicable tax regulation is subject EEBUERSITRERE
to interpretation and considers whether it is IR AEERKRD B
probable that a taxation authority will accept an NELERAHEE BEM
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures BHAEBERBARETE
its tax balances either based on the most likely AENBABEME) 5t 2
amount or the expected value, depending on HRIEMER

which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EIEFRIFM

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the FIEFREMA BB EENE
liability method, on temporary differences arising ENaERENTEERSHM
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities BHRRZIRAEEE TR
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated ERETHCTIRBE AW
financial statements. However, deferred tax HREREBEEEREEEZ
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from L HESD > B R F ISR o Bk
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred IEPRISINZRBTERZ (8
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises BEBGH PHEEXA
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a B2 F R MERZH
transaction other than a business combination AR BB W ERR &
that at the time of the transaction affects neither M ESIE Bl IR A EsCAR o IR
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred IEFTIS M AER S HARA
income tax is determined using tax rates (and EEAREEEMG LER
laws) that have been enacted or substantially RIZIRIEPTEMEBEES IR
enacted by the end of the reporting period and FIEFT SR B EE B RTER
are expected to apply when the related deferred RER ZME (RIRE) mE
income tax asset is realised or the deferred TE e

income tax liability is settled.
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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(a)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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()

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service amounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods.

The long service payment liabilities are assessed
by using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. The cost of providing the
long service payment liabilities is charged to
the consolidated profit and loss account so as
to spread the costs over the service lives of
employees.

The long service payment liabilities are
discounted to determine the present value and
reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Group’s defined contribution retirement scheme
that is attributable to contributions made by
the Group. Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are credited or charged
to other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise, respectively. Past service costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefit
become vested.
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods - wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
gold jewellery and gem-set of jewellery products
in the wholesale market. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
licensees/wholesalers, the licensees/wholesalers
have full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products and there is no unfulffilled
obligation that could affect the acceptance
of the products. Delivery does not occur
until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
licensees/wholesalers, and either the licensees/
wholesalers have accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for the
right of return goods are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses the
expected value method to estimate the credit
refund or return which best predicts the amount
of reliable consideration to which the Group
entitled.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
licensees/wholesalers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
licensees/wholesalers.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products. Revenue from
the sales of goods is recognised when the
product is transferred to the customer who
takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases
the gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products. It is the Group’s policy to sell
its products to the end customer with a right of
return within one year at an agreed discount on
the original selling price. A sales refund liability
and an asset for the right of return goods are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the sales refund or return which best
predicts the amount of reliable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks is recognised over
time on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreements. The
refund of credit to licensees when certain credit
refund criteria is met are considered as variable
consideration. The Group uses expected value
method to estimate the credit refund which best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised over the period in which the services
are rendered.
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(e)

U]

(9)

Interest income from bank deposits, gold
loan receivables and other receivables
Interest income from bank deposits, gold loan
receivables and other receivables is recognised
on a time proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments: (Continued)

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated
income statement. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

(@) Variable lease payments

Estimation uncertainty arising from variable lease
payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores, up to 100 percent
of lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms and there is a wide range of
sales percentages applied. Variable payment
terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(b) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in certain property and equipment leases across
the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 17). Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expenses over the lease term
on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with the expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.
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Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Note 7 provides further information on how the Group
accounts for government grants.

Gold loan receivables to be received by physical gold
are classified as assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
as the gold loans form part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives. Gold loans to be
repaid by physical gold are classified as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of the
Company.
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(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland, Macau, Canada, the United States,
Australia and Malaysia. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary items are cash and
cash equivalents denominated in RMB, which
are held by Group companies whose functional
currency is not RMB. In addition, certain Group
companies whose functional currency are
HKS$, have intra-group advances from their
subsidiaries denominated in RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
uses foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the Group companies’ functional currency;,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
Group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$10,072,000
(2022: HK$19,873,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB
denominated monetary items in entities whose
functional currency is not RMB.
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(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the gold loans receivables, other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary and
other receivables from licensees, which were
issued at fixed rates, and expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest
rate risk also arises from gold loans and bank
borrowings. Gold loans at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at variables interest rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group
does not enter into derivatives to address these
risks.

At 31 March 2023, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had increased/decreased by
50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$480,000 (2022:
HK$5,776,000) lower/higher respectively.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
jewellery. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant change in the prices of
gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group manages commodity
price risks mainly by hedging gold price
fluctuations through certain derivative financial
instrument-trading of gold contracts and gold
loans. Should the gold price go up, the Group
would charge a loss representing the increase in
gold price compared to the contract price, and
largely net against the increase in turnover of
gold products as a result of gold price increase.
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(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the notional amount of
contracts under daily trade was 547 kilograms
(2022: Same). As at 31 March 2023, if the
market price of gold had increased/decreased
by 5%, post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2023, due to changes in fair values of
gold contracts, would have been approximately
HK$11,277,000 (2022: HK$10,954,000) lower/
higher respectively.

The gold loans (Note 32) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months (2022:
1 to 6 months) from date of inception and the
fair value changes are immediately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2023, gold loans of HK$390,627,000
(2022: HK$497,513,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement. As at 31 March 2023,
gold loan contracts of 69 kilograms (2022: 153
kilograms) amounted to HK$34,487,000 (2022:
HK$73,932,000) are outstanding and involved
physical settlement.

As at 31 March 2023, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2023, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$17,774,000 (2022:
HK$23,913,000), lower/higher respectively.
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(iv) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions, trade receivables,
rental and other deposits, and other receivables,
mainly including other receivables arose
from prior disposal of a subsidiary and other
receivables from licensees and amount due
from an associate. Credit risk is managed on a
group basis. Management has policies in place
to monitor the exposures to these credit risks on
an on-going basis.

Risk management

Cash is deposited with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings and the Group has
exposure limit to any single financial institution.
Transactions involving financial assets and
derivative financial instruments are also executed
with counterparties of sound credit standing.
Given their high credit ratings, management
does not expect any of these financial
institutions will fail to meet their obligations.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continueq)

Management has performed recoverability
reviews on trade and other receivables regularly
and actively followed up the overdue balance
of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. In relation
to trade receivables related to retail sales,
retail customers normally settle in cash or
credit cards issued by major banks with low
credit risk, mitigating credit risk. The Group’s
concessionaire sales through department
stores and online sales platforms are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers, taking into account their financial
position, history of default and other factors. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly reviewed.
No material credit limits were exceeded during
the reporting year, and management does
not expect any material losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. For gold
loan receivables and other receivables, mainly
including other receivables arose from prior
disposal of a subsidiary and the receivables
from licensees, to manage credit risk, the
Group has considered the long-established
business relationship with the counterparties
and obtained security in the form of guarantees
and collaterals which can be called upon if the
counterparty is in default under the terms of
the agreement. As at 31 March 2023, these
receivables were fully performing, and the credit
risk is assessed to be insignificant. Refer to Note
22 and Note 32 for details respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheet. Except for the
financial guarantee given by the Group as set
out in Note 35, the Group does not provide any
other guarantee which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets and other item
Expected credit losses are unbiased probability-
weighted estimates of credit losses which are
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes and taking into account past events,
current and future conditions, on the ability of
the Group’s customers and creditors to repay
the debts.

The Group has derived the expected loss rate
by referencing to historical payment profiles,
credit rating analysis and external default data
to determine the probability of default of its
financial assets and other item and incorporated
forward looking information, including significant
changes in external market indicators which
involved significant estimates and judgements.

The Group has the following types of financial
assets and other item that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o Cash and cash equivalents;
o Trade receivables;

o Deposits and other receivables and
amount due from an associate; and

° Financial guarantee contract

All bank balances and bank deposits are held at
reputable financial institutions with sound credit
ratings and there is no significant concentration
risk to a single counterparty and there is no
history of defaults from these counterparties.
The expected credit losses are close to zero as
at 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continueq)

U)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. The
expected credit loss provision rates for
trade receivables are based on historical
payment profiles and historical credit
loss experience, adjusted to reflect,
where relevant and appropriate, current
and information specific to the debtors,
future economic and market conditions
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the debtors to settle the receivables that
the Group considers are reasonable and
appropriate.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Trade receivables relating to customers
with significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually.
These include receivables from
department stores in Mainland. As at
31 March 2023, there was a reversal
of HK$1,832,000 of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed
receivables (2022: provision for loss
allowance HK$1,964,000).

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated
by categorising the remaining trade
receivables based on the nature of
customer accounts sharing the similar
credit risk characteristics. These include
receivables from electronic payment
service providers, department stores
in Mainland, online sales platforms in
Mainland and individual wholesalers/
licensees. Trade receivables have been
further grouped based on the days past
due.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table presents gross carrying
amount of the trade receivables and the
loss allowance provision analysed by
aging band as at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022:

1-30

days

Current  past due

bl

As at 31 March 2023 14202353H31H EPRR 1-30%

Gross carrying amount  SREAA(E (T#7T)

(HK$'000) 188,883 12,157
Lifetime expected ZHRREERERE

credit loss allowance  (F#7t)

(HK$'000) = =
1-30
days

Current past due
Asat 31 March 2022 72022438311 ik 1-30%
Gross carrying amount  SRETAA(E (T#7T)
(HK$'000) 137,566 19,890
Lifetime expected 2RIEERERE
credit loss allowance  (F#7t)
(HK$'000) - -

As at 31 March 2023, the expected
credit loss rate is 0% (2022: 0%, for trade
receivables aged current to 180 days past
due, and 50% (2022: 50%) for those aged
over 180 days past due, respectively.
Expected credit loss is close to zero for
the trade receivables aged current to 180
days past as there is limited recent history
of default.
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31-60 61-90 91-180  Over 180

days days days days
past due past due past due past due Total
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item

(Continued)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
includes, amongst other, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan
within the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

The movement of loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2023 and
2022 is as follows:
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Opening loss allowance 4818 Z F¥EEEH

at 1 April

Reversal of/(provision for) ES1E#E ]~ (B f8)

of loss allowance

Closing loss allowance 3B 31 B 2 EREREHE

at 31 March

Reversal of loss allowance on trade
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$1,832,000 (2022: Provision
for impairment losses on trade
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$1,964,000) is included in the
consolidated income statement.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include deposits
and other receivables, mainly including
other receivables arose from prior disposal
of a subsidiary and other receivables
from licensees, and amount due from an
associate that are subject to the expected
credit loss model.

Deposits and other receivables were
mainly rental deposits and utilities
and management fee deposits. These
deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords and property management
companies in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland and other regions and are due
to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy
agreements and handover of the leased
premises. Management considered that
the risk of default for such deposits has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition, therefore, the impairment
provision, which is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit loss is
assessed to be close to zero.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continueq)

(i)

(i)

Other financial assets (Continued)
Management has closely monitored the
credit risk in relation to other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary
and other receivables from licensees. As
at 31 March 2023, certain guarantees
and collaterals from counterparties are
held to cover potential exposure to credit
risk. Furthermore, the risk of default of
the counterparties is assessed taking into
account their repayment history, financial
position, and other factors, including
the economic environment in which
the counterparties operates. As at 31
March 2023, these receivables were fully
performing, therefore management has
considered that the credit risk of these
receivables has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and the impairment
provision, which is determined based on
the 12-month expected credit loss, is
close to zero.

As at 31 March 2023, management has
assessed the expected credit loss arising
from the amount due from an associate of
HK$4,000 to be close to zero.

Financial guarantee contract

For financial guarantee contract, the
maximum amount that the Group
guaranteed under the respective
contracts was HK$1,075,000,000 (2022:
HK$1,075,000,000) as at 31 March 2023,
which represents 50% of the aggregated
amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2023, the bank
facilities utilised by the associate was
approximately HK$1,643,500,000 (2022:
HK$1,564,495,000) which is partially
secured by pledged bank deposits of
the associate of HK$836,140,000 (2022:
HK$803,179,000).
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets and other item

(Continued)

(i) Financial guarantee contract (Continued)
The credit risk on financial guarantee
contract represents the risk of default of
the associate. The Group assessed the
default risk and measured the expected
credit loss arising from such financial
guarantee contract. Details of the financial
guarantee contract are set out in Note 35.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and bank balances and
has available funding through adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet its working
capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

vy fEEER (&)

v)

THEERAMERBE

(#)

(i) HBERELH @
MHERGONEE
A AEE AT NE
KA - AEE ST
BEORBAFEZSE
PHEERGHNEEDN
TEHRE B - M5
RELWEEIBEH M
3¥350

MENE & E S

BEZADETRBEES
MR REERET RIRITHER
URhBBEBZEREREE
MEMER I HBAES

FERBZELAREFERS
NEREAME BERR
B EEEBURBERK
ERX AEREBRES
BERKIRTER WHER)
BUHBEESHER

FEBZBRAEMEEER
AIRFEMABEST TR U
HBRESEN RS RIRTT
MR RBEBENZEREE
ERMENSHERES  UE
THEEESRE-

TREAEETREERE
REEERRBBESHE
HBEZHTHBETIN
DEABHBEMER KA
REZREAEDREAEE
AEEREBRARZZFEH
SAEZGHARMEBEREMAE
(BREEBEINXFTERN
FBAIFR) °



(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) wENEERARE @&

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows B A 7T — KA R 20
HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1year  than2years 5years cash outflows
BiR-F BREmE  KMRERE
BREKRE —-FR  EMREE  EOREE B

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

As at 31 March 2023 142023538310
Trade payables and other payables &5 FE{TERIERE
ﬁgﬁ,ﬂﬁlﬁ - 1,028,033 - - 1,028,033
Lease liabilities HERG - 178,961 94,246 58,663 331,870
Gold loans with cash setlement  R&X \i‘J,\ SEE 390,627 - - - 390,627
Bank borrowings BIE 115,020 - - - 115,020
505,647 1,206,994 94,246 58,663 1,865,550
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1 year than 2 years 5years  cash outflows
Bih—f BBmE  AMRRE
EREREE —ER  BORWE  EIRRE  AHEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T#ER T#ER
As at 31 March 2022 1202238310
Trade payables and other payables &7 FE{TERIER E ft:
FEf1ERTE - 982,202 - - 982,202
Lease liabilties REaE - 208,188 118,844 40,575 367,607
Amount due to an associate EN—XHEARKE - 411 - - 411
Gold loans with cash settlement &R EZLEE 497,513 - - - 497,513
Bank borrowings RITER 1,383,301 - - - 1,383,391
1,880,904 1,190,801 118,844 40,575 3,231,124
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group 20234 7202238 31H »
issued corporate financial guarantee to banks FEFEPRKET —RBHE AT
in respect of bank facilities granted to an HIRTTRERRTEH AT
associate (Note 35). As at 31 March 2023, MR (H5E35) 522023
the maximum amount the Group could be FI3A31R  WiERzHFS
required to settle under the arrangement for the RERZTE NEERERE
guaranteed amount if the amount is claimed REBLHAEBETEES
by the counterparty to the guarantee was &= 28751,075,000,0004#
HK$1,075,000,000 (2022: HK$1,075,000,000). 7t (20224 : 1,075,000,000

BT ©
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v)
Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings and gold
loans with cash settlement subject to repayment
on demand clauses based on scheduled

MENE & B (5

2HR B o i — IRIREE R
MRIBZIRITERRIRERXE
EEBEZER (BERM

repayments including interest payables. FE) o
More than More than

1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless undiscounted
1year than2years than5years cash outflows
Bie—F BBmE RERAE
—£R BORRE BLRAEE A
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx TERT TERT FTERT

As at 31 March 2023 1202338318
Bank borrowings RITEM 115,246 - - 115,246
Gold loans with cash settlement  BETIESEE 390,801 - - 390,801
506,047 - - 506,047

As at 31 March 2022 1420223 H31H
Bank borrowings RITER 1,382,830 1,021 - 1,383,851
Gold loans with cash settlement ~ BELEEEHEE 498,009 - - 498,009
1,880,839 1,021 - 1,881,860
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 March 2023, there were no
outstanding derivative financial instruments for
the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at 31 March
2022 to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

As at 31 March 2022 R202238318
Foreign exchange forward contracts JMNEREI G4

~ Inflow —mA

- Outflow 7t

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade and other
receivables, deposits and amount due from an
associate and the Group’s financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

Within
1 year
—FR

HK$000
TR

54,267
54,547

(v) HEBHEZERE ()

R2023FE3H831H KEH
B EITENNTTE SR T

Ho

TRIBENR2022F3H31H

ZEBR MR ESNEIER

A E R R E S
ENTEESMIARER
BB AERET O KA
KENEEASSHRMIRE
ERE BARBRNTER
Ko 1218 B A B B BV A% %

B EREARAES

More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
but less butless undiscounted
than 2years  than 5years cash outflows
BiR—F BBAE  KUMRERE
BLRmE  BIREE  RHELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THERT
- - 54,267
- - 54,547
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4t an
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The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
values at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 March 2023 142023538310
Assets BE
Financial assets at NI EUN
fair value through other Hthz2mbAz
comprehensive income EHEE
Liabilities a8

Gold loans with cash settlement  REREESES

As at 31 March 2022 R202243R31H
Assets BE
Financial assets at BRRERA
fair value through other Hth2mbAZ
comprehensive income SREE
Liabilties af

Gold loans with cash settlement  HEXEEEEES
Derivative financial instrument TEEMIA

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Level 1
F—4
HK$000
TERT

788

Level 1
£
HK$000
FTET

365

TERARBHEEEHRRAET
BRNERIANDFT - ERENT
EARAIIOE :

s FEBENEREEIEDS
ERRE RERAE) (B—
) ©

s KRB —IRFTEEREN
EESBENTER BE
%) S (B BRI H) B
HFRFBEAE BZHR) o

o  WIFREUBRTBSHEE
EMEENERRHAME B
TR ERAB BE=H -

TEREAEEP20234F 522022
FIRSIABRAREFENEHE
ERTHEEe

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 B st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT FTERT

- - 788
390,627 - 390,627
Level 2 Level 3 Total
E Iy F=R 4t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET

- - 365
497,513 - 497,513
280 - 280
497,793 - 497,793



The following table presents the Group’s liabilities that
are measured at fair values at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023 142023%3A31H
Liabilities =L
Gold loans with physical BEVREES2EE
settlement

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at 31 March
2022,

As at 31 March 2022 1202235315
Assets BE
Gold loan receivables BhESEE
Liabilities afF
Gold loans with physical ENMEEERES
settlement

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3

during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

There were no significant changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

Level 1
F—4
HK$000
TERT

Level 1
£
HK$000
TET

TREY AERM20235F3531H

BRAREFENES
Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B B3t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FERT TR FERT

34,486 - 34,486

TREIAREER20225E3831H
BAREFENEEREE.

Level 2 Level 3 Total
i E= st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

58,517 - 58,517

73,932 - 73,932

FEENBRENRERNEBEZE
rEENBERAEZ AT AR
ARERBREBAMEL

B E20234F H2022FE3H31H IE4F
ERE—R FE_MEE=H
RS ST 4EE 1 fm] R 485 o

FRZEERMTEEEREH -
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@

(i)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the market share price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

o The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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(i) Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)
The fair value of gold loan receivables is
determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input, adjusting for the counterparty
credit risk inputs. For gold loans, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including bank borrowings and gold
loans) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, plus net debt.
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The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2023 and 2022:

ANEE B FR2023F F72022F3H31H
ZEREEITUWT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Bank borrowings (Note 31) IR1TE (M5E31) 115,020 1,383,391
Gold loans (Note 32) aa@ﬁ‘% (M5¥32) 425,114 571,445

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RESERIBEEEY

(Note 25) 5¥25) (2,347,651) (3,492,037)
Net cash FIRE (1,807,517) (1,537,201)
Total equity HBEm4BEE 12,220,942 12,078,528
Total capital WER 10,413,425 10,541,327
Gearing ratio BEEELE N/AFRER N/AAF 78 3

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

Zl—‘%@ HREAERFETCNER
o U AHESERERZERERM
Eﬁﬂi‘ihc’

EREEESMBERREMXAB 2GR
FlE > et RAEMER (81
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K ff5% o
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Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Interests in an associate and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.
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Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (i)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, after
reviewing the business environment as well as the
Group’s strategies and past performance of its
cash-generating units, management concluded
that there was impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$1,467,000
(2022: HK$1,610,000) and HK$1,407,000 (2022:
HK$7,854,000) respectively. Management believe that
any reasonably possible changes in the assumptions
used in the impairment reviews would not affect
management’s view on impairment at 31 March 2023.
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The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. Deferred income
tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland are recognised
based on the undistributed profit of those subsidiaries
in Mainland generated since 1 January 2008 which is
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
When the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and liabilities and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate
is changed.
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The executive directors and senior management collectively
are identified as the chief operating decision-makers
(“CODM”"). The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

The CODM considers the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland
ii. ~ Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland
V. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income and
costs, share of results of an associate and corporate income
and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in an
associate, certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets, income tax
recoverable and corporate assets, all of which are managed
on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude
deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, gold loans, financial guarantee contract
and corporate liabilities, all of which are managed on a
central basis. These form part of the reconciliation to total
assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.
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Revenue - at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue - over time
Royalty and service income
Consultancy fee income

Total

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of an associate

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year
Add: Loss attributable to
non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company
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Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
-
Al
Rigsh
HK$'000
T#ER

6,464,974

6,464,974
53,772

6,518,746

6,518,746
549,384

Retailing -
Mainland

gE-
At
HK$'000
FiEn

2,306,955

2,306,955
1,870

2,308,825

2,308,825
132,508

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE023F3RMALFE
Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
Hong Kong Mainland
& -
&% At
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEr
104,580 2,047,466
407 =
104,987 2,047,466
1,871,171 56,850
1,976,158 2,104,316
1,976,158 2,104,316
10,399 254,728
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Licensing

RITEH
HK$'000
FiEn

960,695
92,767

1,053,462
776,521

Inter-
segment
elimination

R
HKS'000
Fign

(1,983,663)
(1,983,663)

(1,983,663)

Reportable
segments
total

EE:br
st
HK$'000
Tin

10,923,975
407

10,924,382

10,924,382

960,695
92,767

11,977,844
1,723,636

1,723,636
138,266
(285,727)
1,576,175
33,125
(20,763)
(23,146)
1,565,391
(280,664)
1,284,727
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Year ended 31 March 2023

BE023F3ANBLEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retailing -  Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated Total
-
Ry BE- HE- -
Rigsh At &% st MR AR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEn T TEn TEn T TEn

Depreciation of property, NE BRRRENE

plant and equipment (14,515) (11,642) (892) (12,323) (9,554) (34,174) (83,100)
Depreciafion of right-of-use assets ~ BAEEEHE (256,844) (21,045) - (345) 4131) (5,359) (288,624)
Depreciation of investment properties  REWENE - - - - - (34,389) (34,389)
Provision for impairment on nE- -BEREEAERE

property, plant and equipment (1,467) - - - - = (1,467)
Provision for impairment on TREEERERE

right-of-use assets (1,407) - - - - - (1,407)
Net reversal of impairment loss SHEENESBRDTE

on financial assets - 1,832 - - - - 1,832
Additions of non-current assets FRBEERE (FRAE

(excluding right-of-use assets) (Note)  EREEE) (i) 39,826 23,478 796 20,846 14,991 102,439 202,376
Additions of right-of-use assets (Note) EREZERE (fi:5) 224,840 39,807 - - - 264,266 529,003
Note: B 5E -
During the year ended 31 March 2023, included in the additions of non- HZE2023F3AHIEFEE  IERIME E R EHE
current assets and right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment of BENAEFCSEREUR A ZEHEBE
HK$98,380,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$264,266,000 were transferred ARNEAYERNREESEEYE -BE KRB
from prepayments for the acquisition of several commercial properties located 98,380,0007% 7T K2 {82 F3 # & A2 264,266,000/ 7T ©

in Mainland for owner’s occupied purpose.

As at 31 March 2023

14202353A31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retailing- Wholesaling- Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated Total
FE-
FiE A g5 - #HE-
Rigs At &% st mAEEH A8 a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T#n &R TiEn Tin &R TiEn

Segment assets AREE 5,751,856 1,755,619 902,250 2,778,445 953,514 12,141,684
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRIET 925,396 925,396
Investment properties REME 1,127,727 1,127,727
Deferred income tax assets EEFERHEE 146,666 146,666
Income tax recoverable AKERER 19,724 19,724
Other unallocated assets HEthRAREE 567,309 567,309
Total assets agE 14,928,506
Segment liabilties AEE (534,371) (56,087) (90,447) (216,527) (834,070) (1,731,502)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFERaR (59,656) (59,656)
Current income tax liabilties HEFEREE (125,424) (125,424)
Bank borrowings FTER (115,020) (115,020)
Gold loans o8 (425,114) (425,114)
Financial guarantee contract HBEREH (36,831) (36,831)
Other unallocated liabilties EthkHERaE (214,017) (214,017)
Total liabilities nam (2,707,564)
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Revenue - at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue - over time
Royalty and service income
Consultancy fee income

Total
Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses
Profit for the year
Add: Loss attrioutable to
non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

WA - R EBE
HARRHE
HERH

PEEHE
HEBR

WA - —EESH
RERRBEEYA
BREWA

z@é+

o f

AERABEG
UERNBEBEEN
HREIRIT :

AERABES
LSO
ESITb

gl

FHBUA

MHER

P VNG
WAL AT R
iR

iR
m:ERRREGEER

FATREA ARG

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
oE-
BE RN
Koo
HK$'000
TET

4,880,879

4,880,879
143,554

5,024,433

5,024,433
146,299

Retailing -
Mainland
BE-
Akt
HK$'000
TET

2,527,026

2,627,026
2,343

2,629,369

2,629,369
215,469

Year ended 31 March 2022

HEN20FIFNBLEE
Wholesaling - Wholesaling -
Hong Kong Mainland
HE- HE-
&E At
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL
126,336 2,949,765
619 -
126,955 2,949,765
1,183,933 117,832
1,310,888 3,067,597
1,310,888 3,067,597
15,204 408,472
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Licensing

@HEET
HK$ 000
TER

1,122,526
130,662

1,263,178
964,435

Inter-
segment
glimination

HEBEHHA
HK$ 000
TER

(1,447,662)
(1,447,662)

(1,447,662)

Reportable
segments
total

A2HNE
st
HK§'000
TER

10,484,006
619

10,484,625

10,484,625

1,122,526
130,652

11,737,803
1,749,879

1,749879
143,540
(250,195)
1643224
87,344
23,007)
23,839)
1,683,633
(291,296)

1,392,337

27
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Year ended 31 March 2022

HE00EFIHLEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retaling-  Wholesaling - Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total
e
A U] TE- HE- "E-
Rigsh ki &5 At RIEER KB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TERT TR TER FEL TR
Depreciation of property, NE- -BEREENE
plant and equipment (31,167) (12,565) (743) (11,152) (9,294 (34,329) (99,250)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FRBEETE (304,021) (23,822) - (162) (4,379) 4,038) (336,422)
Depreciation of investment properties R EHEHE - - - - - (29,200) (29,200)
Provision for impairment on N BERRENERE
property, plant and equipment (1,610) - - - - - (1,610)
Provision for impairment on TREEEAERE
right-of-se assets (6,360) (1,494) - - - - (7,854)
Net provision for impairment loss SHEERMBREAE
on financial assets and financial BREEIE
guarantee - (1,964) - - - (9,831) (11,795)
Additions of non-current assets FRBEERE (FRA
(excluding right-of-use assets) (Note) ~ FEREEE) (&) 13,160 13,573 283 38,838 10,001 482,357 568,212
Additions of right-of-use assets FREEERE 315,629 26,655 - - - - 342,84
Note: P 5T -

BE20225383MALFE FRDEERE
BRERBANAM 2 S EREDEZRLRE
871,230,000 7T ©

During the year ended 31 March 2022, additions of non-current assets
included prepayments of HK$371,230,000 for the acquisition of several
commercial properties located in Mainland.

As at 31 March 2022

42022435311
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retaling-  Wholesalng-  Wholesaling -

overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total

L

BEVRM 2E- & #"E-

R it B A, eSS FAE izt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Segment assets NHEE 5,252,068 2,249,027 884,276 3,057,666 1,506,796 12,949,833
Interests in an associate R-ZBEAT 2R 23,146 23,146
Leasehold land and buidings RELHRET 931,627 931,627
Investment properties REME 1,007,606 1,007,606
Deferred income tax assets BEFRIHEE 158,023 158,023
Income tax recoverable A REIFER 23,057 23,057
Other unallocated assets EthkHEREE 1,126977 1,126,977
Total assets agE 16,020,269
Segment liabilties NHEE (557,331) (36.964) (105,020) (210,257) (818,410) (1,727,982)
Deferred income tax iabilties EEFRRAR (74,692) (74,69)
Current income tax liabilfies HEmERas (188,284) (188,284)
Bank borrowings SRITER (1,383,391) (1,383,391)
Gold loans HEfRE (571,445) (571,445)
Financial guarantee contract HBEREY (36,831) (36,831)
Other unallocated liabilities EfRPERER (159,116) (159,116)
Total liabilities aaf (4,141,741)
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An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which the
transaction took place is as follows:

Revenue A
Hong Kong 58
Mainland P it
Macau and overseas JBPI s

During the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue recognised
of HK$165,173,000 was included in the contract
liabilities balance as at beginning of the year (2022:
HK$150,802,000).

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, certain deposits,
prepayments (except for prepayments for purchase of
properties and equipment) and other receivables and
interests in an associate) by location of assets is as follows:

2023

Macau and

Hong Kong Mainland overseas

&2 mh  EFIRES

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiEn TR iR

Property, plant and equipment NE BEREE 475,69 354,482 88,382

Right-of-use assets BEEEE 141,418 395,508 133,132

Investment properties RENE 281,352 846,375 -
Prepayments for purchase of BENERREZBAORE

properties and equipment - 3,681 -

Gold loan receivables RhESEE - = o

Trading licence REHR 1,080 - -

899,546 1,600,046 221,514

The Company is domiciled in the Bermuda while the Group
operates its business primarily in Hong Kong, Mainland,
Macau and overseas. For the year ended 31 March 2023,
no revenue was generated from the Bermuda and no assets
were located in the Bermuda (2022: Nil).

BRI ZET MBS D 2 ZEBRAD
s

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
4,360,265 2,835,890
5,391,825 6,705,611
2,225,754 2,196,302
11,977,844 11,737,803

HE2023FE3H31HILEFEE BN
WA 165,173,000 T ESF AFETEDN
B &4 (20224F © 150,802,000 7T) ©

REEFMEMB D2 AEBRBIFRHE
EARORELRSENEE - BRARE
SIAEMEERAZEREE A TR
T FANERE BBEMEKRRBEZAMER
IBFRIN) REMEUEREBER I —REE
AR 2 #m) DRI -

2022

Macau and
Total  Hong Kong Mainland overseas Total
it &k m o EMRES a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn TERL TEL TEL TR
918,560 495,136 324,199 73,255 892,590
670,058 124,425 294,404 182,806 601,635
1,127,721 290,91 716,645 - 1,007,606
3,681 - 376,000 - 376,000
- - 41,798 - 41,798
1,080 1,080 - - 1,080
2,721,106 911,602 1,753,046 256,061 2,920,709

RABMRERE MAEETERS
B R BRI RBIMEEET - HE
2023FE3H3THIEFE  TENERE
EFEWA INEEEMRBRE (2022
G ) o

Annual Report 2022/23 R



Government subsidies BT fE AL
— Value-added tax (“VAT”) refund (Note ()  —IZEFR (MEER) B
(M3 2EG)
— Other government subsidies (Note (ii)) —H BT ERL (i)
— Employment Support Scheme (Note (i) ~ — MRt 25+ 20 (B 5 (i)
Rental income s WA
Others Hith
Notes: B 5E
[0] This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland. The amount (0]

of refund is based on the VAT payment made in excess of 4% of
the original input VAT. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are
imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

(ii) This mainly represents subsidies from a municipal government in (i)
Mainland.
(iii) The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under (iii)

Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees from
May to July 2022.
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2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
37,786 107,613
77,328 91,453
24,000 -
64,244 55,491
25,501 24,787

228,859 279,344

It 7 2R B POt AR 514 R 2 3R 70 o R AR 8RR
BB REREERABE L Z B ERTRE
HoHRAERR LERARFAZME
MEATER LBEARXFIED A%
EARERR

b E B2 A BT 3% i 2 Rk o

ZEEREBRITRERFRENZ T

BESRHUZHFERTEMM AR UE
B2022F58E7TRZTH



The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

Cost of sales (Note (i)
— cost of inventories sold
— cost of licensing business

Staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) (Note (i)

Expenses relating to short-term leases
and variable lease payments

Rent concession related to COVID-19

Commission expenses to
payment service providers
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 18)
Provision for impairment on property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Provision for impairment on
right-of-use assets (Note 18)
Advertising and promotion expenses
Other taxes
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on lease modification
Legal and professional fees
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

SHE R (5E()
—BEFEMZE
— R EF A A

ETMA (BREEEHD)
(Bf (i) )

DHAIEE RS2SR
islealEE R

kS % 1SR
HERR

ST IR ERS
Z A&

I TR R sk T EE
(M¥zE16)

KEYZ=EITE (MIsE17)

EREEETE (i5E18)

I R R sk R E B
(M¥zE16)
FRARESERERE
(HzE18)
ELEREERY
HinE
HEYE BERZEHZ
518
fAEBsT W=
FRENBEER
2B ENEN <
— IR
—IEBIZARTS

KR

2023
HK$’000
FERT

8,503,872
243,575

8,747,447

796,496
135,456
(10,576)
69,769
83,100
34,389
288,624
1,467
1,407
91,586
105,601
11,033
1,678

11,618

6,052
1,848

R T 7 EEBIUR

2022
HK$'000
TAT

8,245,503
258,473

8,503,976

730,053
135,040
(14,421)
58,662
99,250
29,200
336,422
1,610
7,854
80,146
88,886
385
1,143

16,093

5,945
1,274
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Notes:

Save as disclosed above, staff costs (including directors’” emoluments)
of HK$336,660,000 (2022: HK$385,739,000) are included in cost of
sales.

Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows:

(i)

Br BN SHEMABEEIRAE (8
EEEM2) 336,660,000 70 (20224 :
385,739,000 7T) °

i) ETRAEEREIWT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance BAHE FHE TCA KRR 1,028,408 1,046,075
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIRE LA — ERE G S
(Note 14) (FF5E14) 70,350 69,619
Long service payment (Note 30) RERB® (M5E30) 34,398 98
1,133,156 1,115,792
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET FAET
Net realised losses on derivative financial ~ T4 &/ T EZ &1
instruments (Note (i) EE1EEEE (MEEd) (8,191) (34,018)
Net realised gains/(losses) on gold loans ;-a%fi“)‘ BEIR
(Note 32) W (518) 7358
(MI5E32) 38,427 (53,101)
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on gold loans &£ & & 2 K&K (B18)
(Note 32) Wi P EE (fIE32) (24,236) 2,712
Net realised (losses)/gains on gold loan FEWESEEZEEIR
receivables (Note 32) (B518) W $ 48
(F$5E32) (32,569) 97
Net unrealised gains on gold loan FE=ESBEZREIR
receivables Wz R 28 - 5,545
Net realised gains on forward exchange ZENESHNZ BEIR
contracts (Note (ii)) Wz 228 (BT 5E() 5,408 1,039
Net unrealised losses on forward exchange & HBIMNE & 472 R &R
contracts (Note (i) 518358 (MI5EGi) - (280)
Net exchange gains PE 2 U 2 75 28 3,763 34,965
(17,398) (43,041)
Note: B 5E

Derivative financial instruments mainly represent gold contracts and
platinum future contracts. These derivative financial instruments are
not qualified for hedge accounting within the context of HKFRS 9.

(i) Forward exchange contracts are not qualified for hedge accounting
within the context of HKFRS9.

MEESHMTIRIERESAORBEHE
BRNEBYBRSENFIREDT &F
ESRTATHSE TGS ERK-

REBMHREERFOREF
SNESHRTEEITETERK

D}g HH

(i

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Finance income: HFEUWA
— Bank interest income —RITHI B A 29,197 76,784
— Interest income on amount due —BWEAERERK
from HKRH RIBZF B A - 2,500
— Interest income on other receivables —HMEWRBEZ
FEWA 3,329 5,144
— Interest income on gold loan receivables —FERESEE
FEWA 599 2,916
33,125 87,344
Finance costs: MHBER !
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —IRITERZFERX (8,837) (9,313)
— Interest expenses on gold loans —=m22BEZAERX (3,233) (3,201)
— Interest expenses on gold loans —M—REEEART
from a director EEFERX (776) (246)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities —MHEaEZfER% (7,917) (10,337)
(20,763) (23,097)
Finance income, net AAFEURA » 7R EE 12,362 64,247

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The first HK$2 million of estimated assessable
profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
estimated assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022:
Same). Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates

of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
Current taxation: BUHEATRIE !

— Hong Kong profits tax —BENER

— Mainland and overseas taxation — A KB INRIE

— Withholding tax on dividend declared in  —FAMEIRKEE 2

Mainland k)
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —BEFEREIE
CRE#EHE)

Deferred income tax (Note 29) IRIEFTSH (FY5E29)

BENBRIERAFETBELE (M
STREERTE M IR K 16.5% T IR B
HAREE—RWEBABRI ZABN
BMARBIFSREGEZ B - &M S
ANEZ(ESHERRER T B2EE BT
18.25% 2 IR > MRIGR1E 51 FER
M #216.5% 2 IR FEIR (20224 : 1]
) o /gsha A 2 MIBTH A E L5
s m MR EEEBAERRERFR

EE o
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
8,313 5,912
217,969 306,766
36,583 102,673

/

21,478 (5,902)
(3,679) (118,153)
280,664 291,296
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs KEBPRFIENANEH 2 RIBEFERE
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax BrafElafnmErenEEs:
weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the ZIBmEEERWT

consolidated entities as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
Profit before income tax FRPF1SIE A& A 1,565,391 1,683,633
Add: Share of results of an associate o EE—XEEAEEE 23,146 23,838
1,588,537 1,707,471
Tax calculated at domestic tax BERNE A& EF]
rates applicable to profits in the HNEMREFTE ZRIE
respective jurisdictions 242,448 277,663
Income not subject to taxation BIEFRRZ WA (9,338) (11,643)
Expenses not deductible ARz ZH
for taxation purposes 5,230 7,679
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERELRS
GBERH) 21,478 (5,902)
Tax losses of which no deferred REDIEIERIEBEEEY
tax asset is recognised TRIAET1E 3,034 8,732
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A UERERIRIEEIE
tax losses (3,768) (4,699)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of ~ PIthfift /&8 A T 2k 97k
the subsidiaries in Mainland wmA 2z FEHR 21,580 19,466
280,664 291,296
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on REXABATDBREBERAASIRRAFTE
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the AFEME A& B EF1,284,757,00078 7T
Company of HK$1,284,757,000 (2022: HK$1,392,364,000) (20224 : 1,392,364,000587T) MER
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2022: BETE BRI TI98587,107,850
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year. % (20224 : 587,107,8508%) st & ©
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March HRFREDSEHTREBETESREN
2023 and 2022 are the same as the basic earnings per TR WA E 20234 K202243 4 31
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares HIEFESREERIEERERR
outstanding during the years. FAE[RE o
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2023 2022

2022/23 interim dividend, paid, of HK$0.55 B 7k2022/234F FZ F A%

(2021/22 interim dividend: HK$0.55) per
ordinary share

2022/23 final dividend, proposed, of
HK$0.55 (2021/22 final dividend:
HK$0.55) per ordinary share (Note)

Note:

At a meeting held on 27 June 2023, the directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.55 each per ordinary share. Such dividend is to be
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
on 17 August 2023. The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend is
expected to be paid out of retained earnings at 31 March 2023, but not
recognised as a liability at year end.

EEREER0.558TT
(2021/225 &
FEARG B 0.5557T)

#R2022/23F FE R HARG
EEREER0.558TT
(2021/224F E K HARS
B 105587 (st

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FET
322,909 322,909
322,909 322,909

FMI5E -

R2023E6H27TART> @ L EERFIRTER
HREEREER0SSE T - ARKREEFRREE
NABR2023FE8BI7THRITZ RMERBEF AT Lt
o TEHAST RS B 487818 B 0202343831 H Z 17
BRAFIRT R ERSAERLEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Net contributions to pension plans charged MRiR&EERTFRZ
to the consolidated income statement RIKEETEIHRFRE 70,350 69,619

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

Cost of sales HE A

Selling and distribution costs HE RDIHER
Administrative expenses THER

Notes:

(i) The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its employees in Hong

Kong, under which both the Group and each employee make monthly
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2022: HK$1,500) per
month.

(i) The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland also contribute to retirement
plans for their employees in Mainland at a percentage of their salaries
in compliance with the requirements of the respective municipal
governments in Mainland. The municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland.

BRI R iREaBmRZ U T ERE

= -
o -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
27,980 30,889
36,734 34,075
5,636 4,655
70,350 69,619

5T

0] AEELEEBRER BTN AT S
B BREAEERSRBEHBREEZEE
BB ALSRES AMA HERBERE LR
1,500/ 7 (20224 © 1,500 7T) ©

(i AEBP A Z B AR IR ET AR A M
THREZRESERAMHNESIFHAE
HFE—EBD LRI BIHR - TEATR
BABAERRAMHNAAERE RRKER
KERZBINEFIEE
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The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the FREGERBDESE RESTH
directors and chief executive of the Company during ABZME4EEEMT
the year were as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET FET
Fees BE 1,705 1,705
Salaries e 13,081 27,346
Performance and discretionary BRIFWIEE R IE4L
bonuses 60,807 47,528
Contributions to pension plan BIREETEIMERR 538 505
Total directors’ emoluments, payable FE R B irE M7 ERE
and expensed in the consolidated Sz BRI SARER
financial statements 76,131 77,084
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a MEEAATHREARRBDRENWE
person’s services as a director, whether of the NEEFEHEWRINE :
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #E2023F3831HILLFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and BRERRNE HftERz  EX@BHER
chief executive EERBETHALS ik i ) VA (! Rl EHEREE B M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#x Fitn
WONG Wai Sheung (Note) BEE ) 55 5212 41,288 - - 206 46,821
TSE Moon Chuen B 55 1,470 941 - - 65 2,531
WONG Hau Yeung e 55 1,060 7,05 - - 4 8217
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy G 55 909 8,936 - - 40 9,940
CHAN So Kuen REE 55 4,070 2,587 - - 180 6,892
WONG Ho Lung, Danny =¥t 10 180 - - - - 200
HUI Chiu Chung SFBR 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TEE 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina® i 250 - - - - - 250
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen® =3 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* ERE 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Wai* SFRE 250 - - - - - 250
1,705 13,081 60,807 - - 538 76,131
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VEPN

W\

RATS R M 5L

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

(a

&)

15 %E&%#&%iikﬁ?ﬁﬂ&@ﬁ

) EERESTHASME (B

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B E2022F3831HLFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money contribution to
discretionary Housing ~ values of other aretirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  beneft scheme emoluments
Name of director and RRENE Atz EImEHER
chief executive EZRERAHASHS e i B2l tREE  EHENEE B = Henn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR T TR Tin TR Fin TR
WONG Wai Sheung (Note) 85 (%) 55 19,991 27,718 - - 193 47957
TSE Moon Chuen EEES 55 1,383 1,957 - - 61 3,456
WONG Hau Yeung 55 55 9% 7092 - - 4 8,187
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy ] 55 853 8071 - - 3 9,017
CHAN So Kuen RZH 55 3,823 2,690 - - 169 6,737
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BiER 110 180 - - - - 290
HUI Chiu Chung FBER 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung FEE 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina* B 250 - - - - 250
[P Shu Kwan, Stephen* g 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Ain* BAH 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Wai* EiTe 250 - - - - - 250
1,705 21,346 47,528 - - 505 77,084
# Independent non-executive directors # BIUERITES
Note: BdsE :
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is also the chief executive officer of the BRERENARAB ZITBHEH
Company.
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2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MIEBARRTH
receivable by directors in respect of EHWBATER
their services as directors, whether ~ RFEEMEZNEE
of the Company or its subsidiary FEUS BN S 4258
undertaking 1,705 1,705
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MAEMBEAATE
receivable by directors in respect of ~ EWB AT EH>
their other services in connection EEHMRB SN
with the management of the affairs ~ FEUR Z Bl 4228
of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking 74,426 75,379
76,131 77,084

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2022: Same).

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 March
2023 (2022: Same).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2022: Same).

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

FR(a)BFTINE 2 &+ MR AKREF
sHEIMERIN ) B ZE20235E3H31H
EFEE UTERARTDZEEH]
HESARIKRERBARDES
FriR i 2 BR 7% 2 19 H iR K& 7
(20224 : #8[A) °

REZE2023F3831HIEEE > #f
5 2 25 A of) e B WA B A 1T b B
BF (2022 : HBA) ©

REE2023F3H31HIEFE » &
NEMEBEANE=ZSRIREE
BEANDEBRMBZRB LT
AE (20224 : M) ©



No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity of
such directors at any time during the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: Same).

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes
to these consolidated financial statements, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Same).

Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2022: All)
of them are directors of the Company and the details
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding
paragraph.

The emoluments fall within the following bands:

HK$1 - HK$500,000
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000

17875 £500,00058 7T

500,001 75 % 1,000,000 7T
1,000,001 775 21,500,0007 7T
1,500,001 775 Z2,000,0007 7T
2,000,001 75 £2,500,00058 7T
2,500,00178 75 £3,000,00078 7T
3,000,00178 75 £3,500,00078 7T

Senior management represents senior management

staff who are non-directors.

REE2023F3831HIEFERNE
AIREE AR HEKBA B
FEIIUNANBDESE ZEESR
ZERELEREESREAY T
ZEF ALUERKEMEEZH
(20224 : #8[A) °

RZEREMBRRMEE M
DT Z R F I R AT LS
AREBERITUARNDERENE
hEEAEENEEERBNE
F2023FE3831HIEFEAARRFTL
EREAFBERZEHEMEAR
G TR A (20224 : AB[F) ©

A2 ESHMALTE D 25
(2022%F : 288) AKXATESE
WEZMEHBER EERIRE-

REZBME N F AR

2023 2022
1 1
2 1
- 1
3 3

EREEERFEFEZaMERE
ANBe
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Furniture

and fixtures
Land and Leasehold and computer Plant and Motor  Construction-
buildings  improvements equipment machinery vehicles  in-progress Total
8% K RER
THREF R Bz BERHES "E EEIR ag

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
TEn T TEn TER TiEn T TiEn

At1 April 2021 120215481R

Cost 72:N 857,923 524,198 206,355 49,138 25,934 14927 1678475

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 23t TERHE (92,506) 451,305) (161,272) (43310) (23176) - (771,659

Net book value REFE 765,327 72,893 45,083 5,828 2,758 14,927 906,316

Year ended 31 March 2022 BEN2ERANALFE

Opening net hook value ENEERE 765,327 72,893 45,083 5828 2758 14927 906,816

Additions HE 194 22,123 19,666 5,568 1,101 30,241 79,483

Disposals HE - (38) (2,769) 6) - - (2811)

Depreciafion charge (Note ) FER () 07,570 5,33 (01.261) (3834) 1,259 - (99.250)

Impairment losses (Note (i) AEEE (150 - (1610) - - - - (1610)

Exchange ifferences ERER 7,644 515 987 174 21 621 9,962

Closing net book value EXRESE 745,595 49,151 41,707 7,721 2,627 45,789 892,590

At 31 March 2022 #2022%3A318

Cost 779 867,590 541,914 219,463 56,636 21,732 45,789 1,753,124

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  E3HTERHE (121,995) (492,763) (177,756) (48,915) (19,105) - (860,534)

Net book value RESE 745,595 49,151 4,707 7,721 2,621 45,789 892,590

Year ended 31 March 2023 HE023FI/NALERE

Opening net book value ERESE 745,505 49,151 41,707 7,721 2,621 45,789 892,590

Additions HE 98,380 49,133 35,146 6,011 1,266 12,341 202,217

Disposals HE - (1,778) (5,444) m - - (13,229)

Depreciation charge (Note () WELH () (29,944 (26,151) (21,611) (4,011) (1,383) - (83,100)

Transfer to investment properties ERTHENE (58,213) - - - - - (58,213)

Trangfer ap 39,781 = = = - (39,781) -

Impairment losses (Note () MBS (65H) - (1,467) = = = = (1,467)

Exchange differences ERER (9,696) (765) (1,935) (554) 92) (7,256) (20,298)

Closing net book value EREEIE 785,903 62,123 47,863 9,160 2418 11,003 918,560

At 31 March 2023 12023538318

Cost (77 929,825 491,295 217,952 57,494 20,809 11,093 1,728,468

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ EtERAE (143,922) (429,172) (170,089) (48,334) (18,391) - (809,908)

Net book value REFE 785,903 62,128 47,863 9,160 2418 11,003 918,560

Notes: B -

0 Depreciation expense of HK$3,563,000 (2022: HK$4,132,000) 0] #7899 523,563,000 7T (20224F : 4,132,000
has been included in cost of sales, HK$72,687,000 (2022: HE7t) Bt ASE R A~ 72,687,000 7T
HK$87,226,000) in selling and distribution costs and HK$6,850,000 (20224 : 87,226,000/ 7T) E5t AHE
(2022: HK$7,892,000) in administrative expenses. e384 & F3 526,850,000/ 7t (20224

7,892,000 7c) Bt ATTEE ©
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Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

)

As at 31 March 2023, net book amount of retail store assets
represented property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets amounting to HK$61,626,000 (2022: HK$32,495,000) and
HK$307,260,000 (2022: HK$$321,930,000), respectively. The Group
considers each individual retail store as a separately identifiable cash-
generating unit.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is in excess of
its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the recoverable
amounts were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the management’s forecasts covering
the remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such as
change in revenue, change in running cost, change in gross profit
margin and product mix.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the

recoverable amount of retail store assets are as follow:

Change in revenue: Based on projected sales estimated by
management which is dependent on the
historical sale pattern, gross profit and
product mix.

Change in running Based on historical information and

cost: estimated changes related to the Group’s

various cost saving measures.

Based on the historical data and assumed
no significant changes in gross profit
margin and product mix.

Change in gross
profit margin and
product mix:

As at 31 March 2023, land and buildings of HK$436,662,000 (2022:
HK$454,669,000) were pledged to the Group's bank borrowings.
Refer to Note 31 for details.

The market value of the Group’s land and buildings were
approximately HK$934,221,000 (2022: HK$928,334,000) as at 31
March 2023, which is carried at net book value of approximately
HK$785,903,000 (2022: HK$745,595,000). Such market value
is determined by an independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation
Advisory Limited who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of the land and buildings being valued, with comparison approach
(2022: Same).

Myt : (&)

(i)

(i)

)

R2023F3H31H SEEHEEZREA
SEEIE D BI61,626,0005 7T (20224 :
32,495,000 7T) %307,260,0003 7T (2022
£F 1 321,930,000 7T) % BE KB
UERFEAREE - AEBRASBERNSE
[ ABI A IREEEB L

HEEEHEEZIREEBD G
O A AMEEZ REEMREATR
Ee#H- ARG IRESESRESER
WER THEERNTER FARRRERE
TR ENEREEMEE Wt RBA
2y KERTEY ENXKERESE

BETEERo

TEEHEEJHRLSANEAEEHTE

FREAZ EEZRFMT :

LN RIEERE G ZHE
BISHE  HEURIE
EHEBRN BRI
Emfae

EE A RIFRAERE AR
REAFEIEARRERY
R & K fd 5t 2
o

EMERER RIGE L BIE R RR

HEEE): EMERERES

THEEBAREH

#202353A 318 » 31 K 185436,662,000
BT (20224F : 454,669,000/ 7T) BB 1EA
SRIRTER IR - FHEASRME3

R2023F3B31H  REEZ T h1E
FHEAL934,221,000%8 7T (2022
£ 928,334,000 7T) > HIEREFELN
785,903,00078 7T (20224 : 745,595,0007
7o) iR - BT ERB I GEMHE R E
HEBHERAR AR REBHAEEE
& MR PTG E T M RIS F 2 B R8RS
EEA T ERACER) R EEBUAEE E (20224 | #H
@) °
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At 1 April
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Year ended 31 March

Opening net book value

Additions

Transfers from property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Note (iii))

Depreciation (Note (i)

Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Rental income from operating leases
(Note 7)

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental

income

Fair value (Note (i)

2023

HK$’000
FEx
4818
B AR 1,132,360
RETITE (124,754)
1,007,606
HEHSIHLILEEE
FVREFE 1,007,606
NE 99
EEREYE BE KRS
DUREREEE
(B 5 (i) ) 224,977
#ree (FsE(i) (34,389)
fEREER (70,566)
FRIREFE 1,127,727
#3A31H
DN 1,362,672
REHITE (234,945)
1,127,727
2023
HK$’000
F#ET
KERB WA
(MFE7) 64,244
EFESWAZKEYE
FrEmr Bl Elx
(35,014)
2023
HK$’000
FExT
NFE FFEE)) 1,736,921

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2022
HK$'000
TAT

1,001,342
(92,258)

909,084

909,084
102,729

(29,200)
24,993

1,007,606

1,132,360
(124,754)

1,007,606

2022
HK$'000
TAET

55,491

(31,247)

2022
HK$'000
TR
1,658,502



Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The fair value of the investment properties was determined by an
independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation Advisory Limited, who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the investment
properties being valued, with comparison approach (2022: Same).

Depreciation expense of HK$34,389,000 (2022: HK$29,200,000) has
been recorded in administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group ceased to use
certain office premises classified as property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$58,213,000 (Note 16) and right-of-use
assets of HK$166,764,000 (Note 18). The Group intended to rent out
these offices premises and reclassified them as investment properties
accordingly.

Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
leases are as follows:

—FR

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

As at 31 March 2023, investment properties of HK$76,476,000
(2022: HK$79,630,000) were pledged to the Group’s bank
borrowings. Refer to Note 31 for details.

—FREABBALE

MsE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

KREMEZ AFEEBLGEEMHE B
X GEBHERAE ERFERI REME
EER WRAIEEZREYMEZUBERE
B EEA AR ACER) W EEBUAE E (2022
& AER) ©

FrEERI 34,389,000 T (20224 :
29,200,000 7T) BERTTEEAF AR

EE2023F3H31HIEEE  AEBABE
BETHEAYE - BRERZENABAT
BRMI{E58,213,00078 ¢ (fizE16) MERAEE
EIRE{E166,764,000 7T (Mi5£18) o AEE
RHBZEWR B TRILEEHDEAK
B

RET AT B 2 AEMIN R RBEZ RE
THEARERMT ¢

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
79,936 72,525
171,776 254,337
251,712 326,862

122023438310 » & EH)%£76,476,0007 7T
(20224 : 79,630,00078 7T) B AEAEE
RITEMHIEIR - ¥ IEE 2 RMIsE31 0
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As at 31 March 2023

Location

i

Office A on 10th Floor, Bank Tower,
Nos. 351 and 353 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

B A EE351 KR35
RIFPLI0BAE

Flat 3 on 10th Floor, Hong Kiu Mansion,
No. 313 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BENRE B R ZUES 13 EEAE
10123%

Luk Fook Jewellery Centre,

Jordan, No. 239 Temple Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BENREEHERH29R S REERD

Units 1506-1516 on 15th Floor,

and 22 car parking spaces, Metropole Square,

No. 2 On Yiu Street, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong
FEMA) HRB2R M ES1612
1506-1516% 2282 B (i

Unit 15 on 3rd Floor,

Guanghua Changan Building,

No.7 Jianguo Men Nei Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
REIIERmREE RN AR TR
NERZAEIIEISE

Use

R&
Commercial building

for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
and car parking
spaces for rental

BEAEREEALE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHE

§12023F3831H

Tenure

fas

Medium-term leases
AL

Short-term leases
yoR:iFisks|

Long-term leases
REAEA

Medium-term leases
HEIEA

Medium-term leases
HHEA

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEEE
e AR

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Location

i

Units 1907-1910 on Level 19,

Tower 1, Kerry Everbright City,

No. 218 West Tianmu Road,

Zhabei District, Shanghai, the PRC
HE BT R R X EERK218%
Z BRI S —E19181907-1910F

Units A1802 on Level 16, Fulllink, No. 18
Chaoyang Men Wai Avenue, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC

HEIL RSB E ARG K

185 S B EI51612A1802%

Level 32-34, Reith International Building,
Xinxiu Village, Xinxiu Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC
HEERE R mENEMBE
HENIRBEREAES2-3412

Use

R&
Commercial building

for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

R2023FE3831H (&)

Tenure

fas

Medium-term leases

IR

Medium-term leases

FEITRA

Medium-term leases

FEITRA

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEEE
e AR

100%

100%

100%
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As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Location

i

Units 2807, 28th Floor, Block 1,

Yongwei Times Centre, Zhangba Second Road and
Jinye First Road, High Technology Zone, Xian City,
Shaanxi Province, the PRC
FERAEAEZTaM e\ R RHE—R
BRI E 128152807 E

Units 1401-1412 on Level 14, Units 1501-1512

on Level 15, Units 1601-1612 on Level 16,

Units 1701-1712 on Level 17, Block B,

IBC, No. 3008 Buxin Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen City, the PRC
RIS &0 30085 K R EE A E
(IBC)BEE141£1401-1412F ~ 15181501-1512%  161%
1601-1612ZF ~ 171£1701-1712F

Unit 3101-3112 on Level 31,

Units 3201-3212 on Level 32, Units 3301-3312

on Level 33, Units 3401-3412 on Level 34,

Units 3501-3512 on Level 35, Block B,

IBC, No. 3008 Buxin Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen City, the PRC
BRI ™ %5 & 7 0 B 30085
KEBRERIHAE(BO)

BEEG1#83101-3112% ~ 32183201-3212% ~ 33123301-
3312% + 34183401-3412%F ~ 351%3501-3512%F

Use

R&
Commercial building

for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

R2023FE3831H (&)

Tenure

fas

Medium-term leases

IR

Medium-term leases

FEITRA

Medium-term leases

IR

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEEE
e AR

100%

100%

100%



Right-of-use assets EHEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE
Additions RE
Depreciation (Note 8) iEs (f15E8)
Transfer to investment properties EIRENEY =
Impairment losses (Note) BERE ()
Lease modification ME’EsT
Exchange differences PE R ERE

At 31 March W3831H

Notes:

The Group leases various retail spaces and premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
1 to 5 years but may have extension options as described in Note
3.20(b). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The Group also
leases certain land use rights in Mainland. These land use rights are
leased for a period of between 16 and 51 years on which plants and
buildings of the Group are situated on.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases
across the Group. Most extension options in property leases have not
been included in the lease liabilities, because the Group considers
these terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing contracts and assesses the exercise of extension options
on a periodic basis. During the year ended 31 March 2023, there
were no revisions of lease term due to the exercise of extension
option (2022: Nil).

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and no leased
assets are used as security for borrowing purposes.

For details of impairment losses on right-of-use assets, refer to Note
16.

2023 2022

HKS$’000 HKS$'000
F#Ex FET
601,635 595,194
529,003 342,284
(288,624) (336,422)
(166,764) -
(1,407) (7,854)
(365) (3,195)
(3,420) 11,628
670,058 601,635

5T -

FEDEESETEE[RYEURBE
HESNBERR/ESFZETEMHR HHEE
UNFI5ES.20(b)Ffr it B AR © 10 & 1R RS 1218 5
R BESERERR A - AER
TFRAMBEET LM ERE - ZF L HIE
2N F16ZE514 HAEERE K
1B PR AEM

FERNZEREHOFBERAKRKILERE
1o RER DY) XA E N BIIE A R 5
AHEER REAAEEDHZEHRNT,
BEREEGNTHRAREMRESEE
BRI WE MR T SR AE E R o N
F2023F3A31THILEFE > L mATEER
ERREMERAEGRR (20226F 1 &) -

HEMZL EENEARZRE EREEET

SREREZERR

ERERRAERESE S SN
H160
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The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amount relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE

Land use rights in Mainland (Note) PRz TR (5D
Properties leases MERE

Total right-of-use assets B EELE

Lease liabilities HEaR

Current TREN

Non-current JERED

Note:

The market value of the Group’s land use rights in Mainland
were approximately HK$428,458,000 (2022: HK$360,294,000)
as at 31 March 2023, which is carried at cost of approximately
HK$362,798,000 (2022: HK$279,705,000). It is determined by an
independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation Advisory Limited who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of land use rights in
Mainland being valued, with comparison approach (2022: Same).

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

HoEERRRZIUTERMA
BEZ®H:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
362,798 279,705
307,260 321,930
670,058 601,635
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
172,462 204,598
147,605 153,013
320,067 357,611

5T

2202353 H31H » AREBMMP A > T fE
P 2 H{E#9428,458,0007 7T (20224 :
360,294,000/ 7T) 532 A 24 £9362,798,000785
70 (20224 : 279,705,000 7T) 58k - EHE
UHEMHECEGEEZABGRAR (A

RAMABRREER > LR AMFTEEZ
THIE AN E KBRS EER I
58) L BUAEE (20224 | 48F) ©



The consolidated income statement shows the REERREINUTERMEESEZ
following amounts relating to the leases: B
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TAET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B EEFE
Land use rights in Mainland B Padth 22 - St ek AR 4 9,835 8,579
Properties leases MERE 278,789 327,843
288,624 336,422
Interest expense FMERZ GEAMKEER)
(included in finance costs) 7,917 10,337
Expense relating to short-term leases 52 HAFE SHRAR 2
(included in selling and distribution GTAHE R HER)
costs) 10,889 18,372
Expense relating to variable lease WEst AHEaE
payments not included in lease Al SNBSS
liabilities (included in selling and Gt AHE RDHER)
distribution costs) 124,567 116,668
Note: PEEE
For the year ended 31 March 2023, depreciation of right-of-use HZE2023F3A3THILEE  EREEER
assets of HK$288,624,000 (2022: HK$336,422,000) was included in 088,624,000 75 (20224F : 336,422,00075
selling and distribution costs. 70) st ASHE R D IEER -
For the year ended 31 March 2023, the total cash outflow for lease HE2023F3A3 1 HIEEE - HEGBZR
liabilities was HK$429,614,000 (2022: HK$530,622,000). S 7 HH 4858 4429,614,0003 7 ( 20224 :

530,622,000/ 7T) °
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As at 1 April (Note (i))

Share of results of an associate for
the year (Note (i) and (i)

Share of reserve movement of an
associate for the year (Note (jii))

As at 31 March

Amount due from an associate (Note (iv))

Amount due to an associate (Note (iv))

Particular of an associate of the Group as at 31 March 2023

is as follows:
Place of
Name incorporation
i B30 AR
China Gold Silver Group The British Virgin
Company Limited (‘CGS”) *  Islands (‘BVI")
HEERERERAR EEERRHS
(MREI&1R)) " (REEAR
=)

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled
by the third party, which holds the casting vote in the directors’

meetings.

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FAET

R4818 (I:E) 23,146 42,925
FHRELE—KBEAT

48 (MR R (i) (23,146) (23,8398)
FEREGE—RBE AR

) (ki) - 4,059

W3831H - 23,146
FEW— KB A BIARIE

(P =E(v)) 4 -
FE—KEHE A BIERIE

(M =E(iv)) - 411

FR2023F3H31H  AEB—FKEE R
BZEEIBUT

Particulars
of issued % of attributable interests
share capital held indirectly Principal activities
ERTRESHE RAESARGEZEAL IEER

2023 2022
USD3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising operations
3,334ETT of gold and jewellery products in

Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
RER RFRAHIEEEER
GEENEM DERBTLE

RIERERWH > ZARHAE=HEN &5
=HREFEERTRARER-
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

(vi)

The balance includes a shareholder loan of HK$100,000,000 granted
to China Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), in connection
with the acquisition of CGS, an associate, on 6 June 2014, of which
the Group and HKRH each agreed to provide HK$100,000,000
funding to CGS for general working capital and business expansion
purpose. Such loan was unsecured, interest-free, denominated
in HK$ and not to be repaid within one year after the end of the
reporting period.

Having considered the financial position and future business
development of CGS, it is not expected that this shareholder loan
will be demanded for in the near future and therefore the balance is
reclassified as part of interest in the associate during the year ended
31 March 2020.

The financial year of this associate is not conterminous with that of
the Group and the financial statements used for equity accounting are
for the 12 months period ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. This
associate uses 30 June as its financial year-end, which is conformed
with its holding company’s reporting date.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, share of loss and other
comprehensive loss of an associate of HK$40,021,000 (2022: Nil) and
HK$15,266,000 (2022: Nil) respectively was not recognised by the
Group as such loss exceeds its interests in an associate.

Amount due from/(to) an associate were trade in nature. Amount due
from/(to) an associate were denominated in HKS$, unsecured and
interest-free. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the amount due from/
(to) an associate were aged within 30 days.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group provided corporate
financial guarantee to an associate. Refer to Note 35 for details.

The Group’s associate did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

(i)

(i)

)

(vi)

ZEEBREIER 20146 B0 BRI E A
BPEEIRERBRAS (THEER) Mm%
¥ o Bl & $R AV A% B8 B 71100,000,00078 7T » H
FAREEREBSERERSBRRATE
#R124100,000,0008 TE % fEA—RE
EESRERERRR - ZENDERE
RENLUBTHHE BBARKRSHERE—
FEREERE-

REBPETRZ BRI ARRERE
EE xEERRAZERRERRTERE
MM ERE R > R ZAERRIN2020638
SIHLFEENOESN—KHBEQATZ
a2 —& e

ZMERB M BREERAEETRE  HEY
BRRDEBRD G 0L MERE2022F
F22021 123310 L1218 B #AfE - Z M E 2
BIRA6A0A A EMBEEFMHE U
SHZERABRE AR

HZE2023F3/31HIEFE  —RBE AT
PMEEEREMEEEE S 5 %440,021,000
I (20224 © 8) K 15,266,00078 7T (2022
F 8 AZEEEBRER —KKE Q5
BT RE AR EERER

e () — K& ABIRBBE 514
Fo Rl (FER) —REGE QA BIRELUB T
HE BEIEIFRE B c 1202345 5202245
3A318 > B (FEf) —REtE QB IRE
ZBRER A30H R ©

220234 2022438310 » AEEE—K
BE ABIRE P EMEER FIEAEL2E
5¥35°

75 52 [E AU B N B 12 20234 K2 20224E3 /3 31
B B M E RS AR RIE -
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2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’'000
TF#ET TAET
Current liabilities it p=Ri]
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note) 4MEZHAE XY (FiEE) - 280
Note: B EE -
As at 31 March 2022, the notional amount of the outstanding foreign R2022F 38310 R FRIIEEMENZHE
exchange forward contracts represented Renminbi (‘RMB”) denominated SHIEUARE (AR stEZIEEHEY
foreign exchange forward contracts of HK$54,547,000. 54,547,000/ 7T °
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FAT
Financial assets at fair value through BRAAREHFAHMEE
other comprehensive income BAZEREE
At 1 April P4818 365 1,173
Net fair value gain/(loss) recorded in equity P& AR Z A A EWE
(Note 28) (B518) /358 (MF5128) 423 (808)
At 31 March M3A31H 788 365
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive BAnEst AR 2EBAZ EMEE
income represent the Group’s investment in common IEAREREERBMERZMBRAR L
shares issued by a company listed on The Stock Exchange MZABMETZEBERIKRE EQ
of Hong Kong Limited. The financial assets at fair value AEFAHMEERA Z E/EEMNE
through other comprehensive income are denominated in TostE WA R EFER

HK$ and stated at fair values.
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Non-current JEBNHA
Rental deposits HeZs
Prepayments (Note (i) FaERIE (MIEE()
Other receivables arose from prior LHHE—KKBRE
disposal of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) B4z HEEWERIE
(PS5 (i))
Current EPHA
Rental deposits HeEEe
Value-added tax recoverable AU R ER
Prepayments AT ERIE
Subsidy receivables from a municipal BN H-ET 2
government in Mainland Wi 47 B
Other receivables HEUR RIS
Other receivables arose from prior EHHE—KIB AT
disposal of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) B4z HEEWERIE
(B 5 (i)
Other receivables from licensees (Note (i) 2R B fRh8rE =2 E M FE
WeBRIE (P 5E(i))
Other deposits Hithiz &
Notes: B 5T
(i) As at 31 March 2022, included in non-current prepayment is an (i)

amount of RMB302,798,000 (equivalent to HK$371,230,000), which
represents prepayments for the acquisition of several commercial

properties located in Mainland. During the year ended 31 March
2023, the Group transferred such property to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets for owner-occupied purpose.

2023
HK$’000
FERT

45,221
6,404

39,099
90,724

60,642
155,964
67,554

12,318
18,659

44,535

28,030
52,510

440,212
530,936

2022
HK$'000
TAT

42,625
378,943

70,452
492,020

63,198
153,566
58,668

32,623
14,090

28,181

27,748
25,477

403,551
895,571

20226331 BB UR Rt 2 %
B2 + %8 AR 1#302,798,0007t (18
E14371,230,0007% 7t) st AFEFRBTE(T BR
TH o 20233831 H ILFE » AEEE %
EYEESBEERYE BERZHERER

BHEE-
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Notes: (Continued) B 5E -

(i) The other receivables arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary (i)

represent the balances due from a licensee upon the completion
of disposal of a subsidiary in 2020. The receivables bear interest
rate at 5.50% per annum and repayable in 5 years by semi-annual
instalments. Such receivables are secured by collaterals including
certain properties located in Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s
retail shops and equity interests of certain private entities (2022:
Same).

(iii) As at 31 March 2023, trading facilities in aggregate of (iii)

RMB25,170,000 (equivalent to HK$28,543,000) were made available
to the licensees in purchases of inventories from the Group or other
destinated external suppliers (2022: RMB28,920,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,456,000)). The facilities bear interest rates at 6% (2022: from
5.50% to 9.26%) and are secured by collaterals including certain
properties located in Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s retail
shops, equity interests of certain private entities and cash deposits
received from the relevant licensees, which were classified under
‘trade and other payables’ (2022: Same).

As at 31 March 2023, the trading facilities utilised by the licensees
were approximately HK$28,030,000 (2022: HK$27,748,000). These
receivables bear interest rate at 6.00% (2022: 6.00%) per annum with
a maturity of 6 months (2022: 6 months) from the date of inception.
Such balances were pledged with cash deposits received from the
relevant licensees totalling HK$35,173,000, which were classified
under ‘trade and other payables’ (2022: HK$36,331,000).

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and BE T
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BEHE

denominated in the following currencies:

(€=))

SRIHE—RITBAREEZ HMEWRER
51520204 H & — Kt /B A 5] 58 Ak FF FE UR
— RGBS ZEWIRBREF X
5.50%5 B WARSFEREGFEDHHEE
BHREWERIBLUEIFR S (BFMAR At 25
THE REBETEERZEERETHLA
BE 2 BGHE) 1EIRIR (20224F 1 MBI ©

R2023F3831H mEmEAERNE
i ENBEHEBRBEEFER > BRHE
B MEEBEARK25,170,00075T (#8
E1028,543,000875T) (20224 : AR
28,920,0007¢ (1A E#235,456,000787)) © %
LR EIR6% (20224 © 5.50%%E9.26%) 2 K
B WLUERR (BEURAMZET
YME - REBTEFRIEFE - ETHRAE
BB IR HAEMREE KBRS RD)
EIRE HTyDiEA TE S R EMEIRE)
(20224 : #A[A) ©

R2023F3H31H migEmEAZEZmE
#7528,030,0007%8 7T (20224 : 27,748,000
BIT) o ZEMEUERIEIRET]Z6.00% (2022
£ :6.00%) st 2 BB BEAE6ES
(20224 : 6f@ B) FIHA - & R4S &5 LA B 48R
SRR U ER 2 IR & 1% & & 385,173,000/ 7T
EIRIE BTy D184 TE 5 R EME[ IR
(20224 : 36,331,000787T) ©

AN IRE R H At BRI Z BRE
LR RERE WA THEEHE:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
HK$ T 139,042 113,115
RMB AR 331,701 722,872
MOP BPITT 49,231 49,190
Other currencies Hhaik& 10,962 10,394
530,936 895,571
Details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from AEBAZSZHMEBWIREBEEEZE
other receivables, risk management and the expected credit SRk BAREENIEHREEHENG
loss assessment are disclosed in Note 4. 2B AN E -
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The inventories net of provision are as follows:

Finished goods & pk
Raw materials By vt

At 31 March 20283, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$817,762,000 (2022:
HK$792,209,000). As at 31 March 2023, the Group
recognised inventory provision of HK$81,776,000 (2022:
HK$79,221,000), resulted in inventory provision charged
amounting to HK$2,555,000 (2022: HK$19,809,000) and
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Trade receivables B S EWERIE
Less: Allowance for impairment

of trade receivables

The Group’s sales comprised mainly cash sales and credit
card sales to retail customers and sales to licensees.
Concessionaire sales through department stores, sales
through e-commerce platforms and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from 0O to
90 days.

HBEzFawT !

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
8,704,837 8,678,773
147,774 90,531
8,852,611 8,769,304

R2023F3H31H &R FET
IRZ1FE4%4817,762,0005% 7T (2022
£ 1792,209,00077T) ° 512023534
31H AEE B FE 81,776,000
HIT (20224F : 79,221,000 70) B
FER#ER 2,555,000/ 7T (20224 !
19,809,000/ 70) @ Wt AR &85
Z EHERA ©

B EWERER E R

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
214,022 189,742
(199) (2,031)
213,823 187,711

AERBHETZOENTERR RS
HERERAFHERNREBZHE -
BERGEFHE BB TAHEERRA
HEZFHEZEEH RN F0EWD
He
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The ageing of trade receivables, based on invoice date, is as
follows:

B RIRARER QI ZAREWNT :

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T FH7T

0-30 days 0ZF30H 188,883 137,566
31-60 days 31E60H 12,176 25,325
61-90 days 61ZE90H 9,727 14,370
91-120 days 91E120H 2,635 2,648
Over 120 days iBi®120H 601 9,833
214,022 189,742

Less: Allowance for impairment B B EWRIERERE

of trade receivables (199) (2,031)
213,823 187,711

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
MOP JBPY T

HEH

Other currencies

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss model for all trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables. Details
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from trade
receivables, risk management and the expected credit loss
assessment are disclosed in Note 4.

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired
receivables was charged to the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering the amount.

SRERREBEZREEREERRER

g
WL EEEHE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
13,872 12,465
181,392 165,756
14,484 6,597
4,075 2,893
213,823 187,711

AEERAEBUYHREENFORMG
LAt ERMEEEER HBffEES
FEUERIER B 2 ATR AR IRR AL - K&
B R H B 7 B W ARIB R A IR
meoREEMAR B RWIRIAEL
ZEERE RBEERBHREERR
Sl Z FFIB Y T 4P BR

5HR R B D] B R (B AU IR IE 2 S B TH
BAERRIG BB G TR
BN SR RSB ST U
o
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Short-term bank deposits, with maturites ~ ZIEFH/LHR3EL =2

less than 3 months EHERIRITIERR
Cash at bank and on hand RITIRERFBERE
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY

Maximum exposure to credit risk ReEERE
As at 31 March 2023, the cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, amounting to approximately
HK$1,464,612,000 (2022: HK$2,528,782,000), are held
by the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2023, short-term bank deposits
with maturities less than 3 months, amounting to
HK$252,783,000 (2022: HK$113,538,000) bear an average
interest rate of 2.083% (2022: 1.12%) per annum with
maturity in May 2023 (2022: in April 2022).

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
252,783 113,538
2,094,868 3,378,499
2,347,651 3,492,037
2,313,650 3,454,069

12202353831 H  UARBEZIR
S RIBEEBYE1,464,612,0008 7T
(20224 : 2,528,782,0005 7T) JH A
EERAMZIBABFTE BHZEU
AREHEZ R EAINE BB TS
B BT e B 1R =2 1B S AR B R 3R 451 o

72023438310 BIHAH D R3ER =2
FEHAIR1T1E F252,783,000% 7T (2022
& 113,538,000 7T) UFHEFFH
2.03% (20224 :1.12%) st B> Wi
2023458 (20224F : 20224E48) FHA o

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAET

Trade payables B ENIRIE 280,250 242,879
Deposits from customers and licensees KERPRMEEZZE 631,523 635,664
Salaries and welfare payables FET 37 & Ko @ 187,146 163,218
Other payables HAETIRIE 116,260 103,659
Accrued expenses FEst& B 19,923 11,026
1,235,102 1,156,446

Annual Report 2022/23 R



The ageing of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as B ENRIBREZEAHZRKRNOT !
follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
0-30 days 0&30H 237,281 204,743
31-60 days 31&E60H 40,471 28,734
61-90 days 61E90H 1,183 5,652
91-120 days 91&120H 1,063 1,917
Over 120 days Bi®120H 252 1,833
280,250 242,879
The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables B ENRE  EMENRBRETR
and accruals approximate their fair values. BREBEREQAAEREG-
2023 2022
No. of shares HK$'000  No. of shares HK$'000
Y E G TERT 8B TAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of EREEIBTZ
HK$0.1 each B 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
Ordinary shares of SREEIABTZ
HK$0.1 each TER 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
At 31 March 3B 31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
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28 RESERVES 28 (#f&

Financial

assets

at fair value

through

other

comprehensive

Capital income

Capital redemption revaluation Exchange Statutory Other Retained

reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserves eanings Total

BAREA

LEESTN

ZEREE
EXiE  ERREEE EftiE EREE EEEE Hitte REEF an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TEn TR TiEn TiEn TEn TER

Note)  Mote i) Note)  MNotefi)
GE) (Htz£0)) (GiE:0) (3E(in)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE2022F383 AL EE
As at 1 April 2021 1202154818 135,713 200 (10,851) 53,967 98,475 17,569 8,476,842 8,771,915
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Proft attributable to equity holders KARERREAEEET

of the Company - - - - - - 1,392,364 1,392,364
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 1 2EKA/ (548
Currency translation differences ERER - - - 276,983 - - - 276,983
Remeasurement of employee BEBABINENHE (H:H0p)

benefit obligations (Note 30(0)) - - - - - - (4,191) (4,191)
Revaluation of fivancial assets at fairvalue /AR EE AEHMAERA

through other comprehensive income ZERBERELEY

(Note 21) (bzE21) - - (808) - - - - (808)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) Ei2EAMA / (§B) - - 808) 276983 - - (4,191) 271,984
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
2020/21 final dividend 0001 EERHRE - - - - - - (293,554) (293,554)
2020/21 special dividend 02021 EERFIRE - - - - - - (293,554) (293,554)
2021/22 interim divicend paid Bff2021/2EERERE - - - - - - (322,909) (322,909)
Profit appropriations Besilbani - - - - 9,918 - (9918) -

- - - - 9918 - 01993 (810017)

At 31 March 2022 12022438310 135,713 200 (11,659) 330,950 108,393 17,569 8,945,080 9,626,246
Representing: &
Reserves (excluded proposed dvidend) i (FELIEEERIRE) 135,713 200 (11,659) 330,950 108,393 17,569 8,622,171 9,203,337
Proposed final dividend BRREBRE - - - - - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2022 1202035310 135,713 200 (11,659) 330,950 108,393 17,5669 8,945,080 9,626,246
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
As at 1 April 2022

Comprehensive income
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Currency translation differences
Remeasurement of employee
benefit obligations (Note 30(0))
Revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(Note 21)

HENBFIABLEE
12002%4B 18

2ERA
FRRRLFAE ARG ER

Rth2EUA/ (55
EREE
ESBAEANE

518 (Hf3E300)

BAREFALMRERA
JEREEEERY
(H3E21)

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) Ef2EAKA / (548

Transactions with owners
2021/22 final dividend paid
2022/23 interim dvidend paid
Profit appropriations

At 31 March 2023

Representing:
Reserves (excluded proposed dividend)
Proposed final dividend

At 31 March 2023

BREAZRS
Bff2021/2EERERE
Ef12002/23F ERHRE
B

120233318

&
fEf (FRERIRE)
BRABRE

[R202353A318

Capital
reserve

BB
HK$'000

FEn
(Note (i)
(GBI

135,713

135,713

135,713

135,713

Capital
redemption
reserve

ASREGE
HK$'000
TiEn

(Note (iv)
(HtzE ()

200

200

200

200

Financial
assets

at fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income
revaluation
reserve
BAREHA
Rh2ERA
A 1113
Efifi
HK$'000
TiEn

(11,659)

“m
m

(11,236)

(11,236)

(11,236)

Exchange
reserve

ER i
HK$'000
TiEn

330,950

(502,167)

(502,167)

{m.217)

{m.217)

{71.217)
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Statutory
reserves

-1 ]
HK$'000

TER
(Note (i)
(M5

108,393

3,922
3,922

112,315

112,315

112,315

Other
reserves

Eihfite
HK$'000
TR
(Note (ii)
(M3ki)

17,569

17,569

17,569

17,569

Retained
earnings

REER
HK$000
FEn

8,045,080

1,284,757

5,249

1,290,006

(322,909)
(322,909)
(3922)

(649,740)

9,585,346

9,262,431
322,909

9,585,346

Total

aE
HK$'000
TER

9,526,246

1,284,757

(502,167)

5,249

7]
788,262

(322.909)
(322909)

(645,818)

9,668,690

9,345,781
322,909

9,668,690



Notes:

(i)

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of the relevant Mainland
subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland.

Other reserve represents the differences between the fair value of the
consideration paid and carrying amount of additional equity interests
acquired in non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Group was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium paid on
repurchase was charged against the share premium of the Company.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained earnings to the capital redemption
reserve.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12 months

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
recovered after more than 12 months

Deferred income tax assets
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2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
107,350 119,808
39,316 38,215
146,666 158,023
(59,656) (74,692)
(59,656) (74,692)
87,010 83,331
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The net movements on the deferred income tax account are TIPSR 2 EHFERUT ©
as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
At 1 April R481H 83,331 (34,822)
Credited to the consolidated income fmeBmast A (1)
statement (Note 11) 3,679 118,153
At 31 March M3831H 87,010 83,331
The gross movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities FIERIBEEMBBERFRZ S E4EEE
during the year, without taking into consideration the (Rt RIBSEAERMB A AE RN 24
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as BR) U -
follows:
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed Accelerated
profit of tax
subsidiaries depreciation Total
MEAR
F kiR
2TEmnim RIS E M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT FERT FER
At 1 April 2021 2021F481H (152,879) (5,019) (157,898)
Credited to the consolidated HRAMERKEZ
income statement in respect BN AGRABER
to withholding tax on dividend
declared in Mainland 102,673 - 102,673
Charged to the consolidated RAEBEEFINR
income statement (19,466) 1 (19,467)
At 31 March 2022 and #20226£3A31A &
1 April 2022 20224518 (69,672) (5,020) (74,692)
Credited to the consolidated HRRAMERREZ
income statement in respect B AREER
to withholding tax on dividend
declared in Mainland 36,583 - 36,583
(Charged)/credited to the RizaBamk Mk /A
consolidated income statement (21,580) 33 (21,547)
At 31 March 2023 [4202353A31H (54,669) (4,987) (59,656)
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Decelerated
tax
depreciation
WERIENE
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April 2021 1202154810 36,742
(Charged)/credited to the & A1BER (08) /3t A
consolidated income
statement (1,333
At 31 March 2022 and 120225838318 &
1 April 2022 202254818 35,409
(Charged)/credited to the &R &1BE R (0F) /5t A
consolidated income
statement (1,401)
At 31 March 2023 142023534310 34,008

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$33,330,000 (2022: HK$40,510,000) in
respect of tax losses to be carried forward against
future taxable income. Cumulative tax losses of
HK$87,611,000 (2022: HK$93,084,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely; cumulative tax losses of
HK$71,032,000 (2022: HK$95,077,000) will expire (if
not utilised) within the next five years.

Unrealised

profit on

Tax closing
losses inventories Total

BRES
MEEE  ZREREN @
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT
59,193 27,141 123,076
26,168 10,112 34,947
85,361 37,253 158,023
(12,019 (2,063) (11,357)
73,342 39,316 146,666

BILFAISMEEN MEE NI
EEmER WAE R BHEBIE
BRI ERERIBR EEIR o 1Y
2023%3H31H > KEEBEBEXR
M SRR IE R I8 & & 133,330,000
BT (20224 © 40,510,000
7o) v BB FEELIRHEA
BEZRMIMAZRIEREIE - Rt
R IEE54887,611,00078 7T (2022
£ 1 93,084,0008 70) o] £ R #A4S
2 ; RtRIER1E71,032,0008 7T
(20224 : 95,077,000 7T) 1+~
A BRI R R ERER o
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Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Palace
Consulting Limited (2022: Same), using projected unit credit
method. (2022: Same)

(@  The amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

RERMEEZRE

REEB(RERG)  XEBAESER
ETERT RERFAERR VAT
ZETRERIEZEBRAEI G-
ME-EBNRENRFEREEZRE
HERRBERME  WHEFERR
AREABETRAERZHRBEZRE
oo AEETEREHERNEEFHE
A FTEEZET RNEEXNBRMR
BR EEAERZ FRBS AN
RERBE -

SERIEEMZHERERLQR (2022
&F R UTBFTEMEEE (20224 ©
HE) TREALAEREEMBER
2023F3H31H &202243831 HE G
R

@ RNREEEEBBRXRMENDBZAIE
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FET

33,872 5,450
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(b)

Movements in the long service payments recognised (b)
in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

At 1 April
Expenses recognised in the
consolidated income statement
Remeasurements recognised
in other comprehensive income

4818
MR ERmRERZAX

REMEEWARESEZ
S5t & (fi5E28)

(Note 28)
Benefits paid directly by employer BEBEZEZ (2B
At 31 March M3831H
Expenses recognised in the consolidated income (@)
statement is as follows:
Current service cost BNERRRFF &
Interest cost B A
Past service cost (Note) BERRFE A (HI5E)
(Income)/expenses recognised in the consolidated (d)

statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

Remeasurements of employees B E2EREENER

benefit obligations

RiFEEEERREIZRBAR

BeEEIT -

2023
HK$’000
FAT
5,450

34,398

(5,249
(727)

33,872

NN e

2023
HK$’000
FERT
755

114
33,529

34,398

2022
HK$'000
TET
1,291

98

4,191
(130)

5,450

2RI

2022
HK$'000
TAET
79

19

98

RiFE2EBARERED Z WA

SR
2023
HK$’000
FEx

(5,249)

2022
HK$'000
TAT

4,191
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The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 € H2023FEK%202253831HER
March 2023 and 2022 (expressed as weighted EEE®RS (UUMNEFEELE5)
average) are as follows: wr

2023 2022
Discount rate ARIRER 3.6% 2.1%
Future salary increment KR ESILIR 3.0% 3.0%
Return of MPF balances BB EEROIERE 4.0% 3.0%

Impact on employee benefit

obligations
HESEHNRENEE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
FE%=] 25 S RagiELD

Discount rate 0.5% Decrease by 7.2%  Increase by 7.9%

AR BDT.2% 12107.9%

Salary growth rate 0.5% Increase by 0.9% Decrease by 1.7%

HEEEX 1E1110.9% BIM.7%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change U EBRED IR RRES)

in an assumption while holding all other assumptions MPEEMEBREFT T EER B

constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and R IERAKRAREESE  —LE

changes in some of the assumptions may be LGB A AEAERA ©

correlated.

Notes: B st

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted the Employment 120226 A » B AEBUN 18 ( 2022 F & & K&

and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) BRRETENER GREEZHD (EED) 1541) (M

(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendments”). The Amendment 1EET1) © ZIEETH B E B BUTIEE 20254

will come into effect prospectively from 1 May 2025 to be appointed 5A18 (NBEEEH) EBEM - ZIETER :

by the Hong Kong Government (“Transition Date”). The Amendment

results in:

i) Change in the offsetting arrangement, such that the (i) BRUIRH R BREENREIM AR
accrued benefits attributable to the employers’ mandatory £ T BYsR I R E T’ E R
contributions under the Mandatory Provident Fund and certain HR RSB T B RIS AV FE 5T
employers’ contributions under the Occupational Retirement HAETEERITHENERER
Schemes would no longer be eligible to offset against the EHEEAHNERARSEE ) &
severance payment and long service payment accrued from
the Transition Date; and

(ii) Change of the calculation basis of last monthly wages for (ii) FHEEHBRARENRBRE
the portion of the long service payment accrued before the HAMRE—EATIENTEEE.

Transition Date.
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Bank borrowings, secured

=

Bank borrowings, unsecured IRTTER WmITE

As at 31 March 2023, bank borrowings of HK$115,020,000
(2022: HK$769,391,000) were secured by land and building
of HK$436,662,000 (2022: HK$454,669,000), investment
properties of HK$76,476,000 (2022: HK$79,630,000) and
corporate guarantees given by the subsidiaries, due for
repayment within 1 month (2022: within 1 month to 13
months) and are denominated in HK$. The interest rates
of bank borrowings ranged from 3.54% to 3.81% (2022:
0.74% to 0.91%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate
their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

IRTTE AR

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
115,020 769,391
- 614,000
115,020 1,383,391

2023 3H31H IRITEX
115,020,000 7 (20224F : 769,391,000
HB7T) Th U i R 12 5 436,662,00078 7T
(20224 : 454,669,000 7T) ~ B EY)
2£76,476,00078 75 (20224 : 79,630,000
B KRB ATRMIN AT EFRIER
BN —EBRNEE (20224F | —1@
BE+=MEAW) » BLUBTsHE - IR1T
BEREFZEA3.54%E3.81% (20224 :
0.74%%0.91%) °

HIRTTERNABRRIE BIREET
Ao HIE - RITERZEREELEZEAR
BEE-

Non-current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan receivables

Current liabilities
Gold loan liabilities, with
cash settlement (Note (ii))
Gold loan liabilities, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan liabilities

JERBEE
BEYEERNEEEE
(B 5£())

MENEE

BEYMEERBEEEE
(P E())

B =ETEERER

nEam

(B =)
= EEaEEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TET

- 41,798

- 16,719

- 58,517
390,627 497,513
34,487 73,932
425,114 571,445
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

As at 31 March 2022, gold loan receivables represent a loan of
physical gold of 121 kilograms borrowed by a licensee, a prior non-
controlling shareholder of a disposed subsidiary. The balances are
interest bearing at 5.50% per annum and repayable by semi-annual
instalments over 5 years from June 2020 with physical settlement,
which are secured by collaterals including certain properties located in
Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s retail shops and equity interests
in certain private entities related to the licensee. The balance of gold
loan receivables was fully settled during the year ended 31 March
2023.

Upon the settlement during the year ended 31 March 2023, net
realised losses on gold loan receivables of HK$32,569,000 (2022: net
realised gains of HK$97,000) have been recognised in ‘other losses,
net’ in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2023, gold loan liabilities are interest bearing ranging
from 0.63% to 1.00% per annum (2022: 0.65% to 1.00%), with
maturity of 1 month (2022: 1 to 6 months) from date of inception.

Gold loan liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. During the year ended 31 March 2023, net
unrealised losses on gold loan liabilities of HK$24,236,000 (2022: net
unrealised gains of HK$2,712,000) have been recognised in ‘other
losses, net’ in the consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the net realised gains on
gold loan liabilities of HK$38,427,000 (2022: net unrealised losses of
HK$53,101,000) have been recognised in ‘other losses, net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

5T -

(i)

(i)

122022638310 Bl E B EERES
(—REHEWBAT 2 Al FFERBE)
FrE > BYEE121A T SRR ERIE
5.50%%t 8 > i 8 B 202046 A iE5F A & ¥
FEUBYREENHEE HLURR SR (818
MIRAMZETYE REBZTEEES
A RIEEAERzETHABE R (F
IR o B 2023 FE3 31 HILFE  [EliES
BEZEREREE S

HE2023F3A31B I FELE TR BIR=E
HEENEBHREEF 432,569,000/ 7T
(20224 : BEIRWEI7,000587T) B4R
HURE RN TEMES S35 PR

2023438310 =& B E & E1%0.63%
F1.00% (20224 : 0.65%ZF1.00%) 2 F
MEFE DB ABHEBBBRES—EA
(2022  1ZE6ER) °

HEEEEBRNUBREH RN QAL E
BoEHFE2023FE3A31HILEE 2R EEE
B2 REIBE5187F 624,236,000 7T (2022
F L RBIR W FEE2,712,00058 7T) B4R
SERERANTEHAMEE  FEBIRRER

EHE2023F3H3IHIEEE E-HEAE
7 R IR F 2E38,427,00078 7T (20224
R IEE5E 5 2853,101,00058 70) BRES
BRRANITEMETE F 58 AR




Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated ()

from operations:

Profit before income tax

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)

Rent concessions related to
COVID-19 (Note 8)

Net realised losses/(gains) on
gold loan receivables (Note 9)

Net unrealised gains on
gold loan receivables (Note 9)

Net realised (gains)/losses on
gold loans (Note 9)

Net unrealised losses/(gains) on
gold loans (Note 9)

Net unrealised losses on forward
exchange contract (Note 9)

Finance income (Note 10)

Finance costs (Note 10)

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)

Provision for impairment on
property, plant and equipment
(Note 16)

Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 17)

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (Note 18)

Provision for impairment on
right-of-use assets (Note 18)

Share of results of an
associate (Note 19)

Provision for slow moving
inventories (Note 23)

Provision for long service
payment (Note 30)

Net (reversal of)/provision for
impairment loss on financial
assets and financial guarantee

Gain on lease modification (Note 8)

FRPTERATEF

HEME -BERREZ
518 (M95E8)

MERESEIEEEEERHT
(5

FEWNESEEZEEIREE
/(W) 5358 (aE9)

EIEEEE 2 REIR
Uz B 28 (95E9)

=2 BEZBEEIR (k&)
/B389 58 (19)

=eEEZ KBRS
/(W) 535 (aE9)

BHERSMNE S 2 REIR
5185 %8 (F1519)

WA (HEE10)

P ER (MEE10)

ME- -BERREITE
(MzE16)

M= BERRERE
#5 (f95E16)

REYEITE (H:E17)
EREEEITE (f:E18)
EREESENEREE
(ff$5E18)
FE(E—KEE A B 2EE
(f$5E19)
I E R (f95E23)
ERIRFG & B (15E30)

TREERMBERRE
518 () P

MEET W (H5E8)

2023
HK$’000
FERT
1,565,391
11,033
(10,576)

32,569

(38,427)

24,236

(33,125)
20,763

83,100

1,467

34,389

288,624

1,407

23,146

2,555

34,398

(1,832)
(1,678)

SR BEEEEZRENIR:

2022
HK$'000
TET
1,683,633

385

(5,545)
53,101
(2,712)
280
(87,344)

23,097

99,250

1,610

29,200

336,422

7,854

23,838

19,809

98

11,795
(1,143)
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Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated

from operations: (Continued)

Operating profit before working
capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in rental deposits

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amount due
from/to associates, net

Increase in trade payables,
other payables, accruals and
contract liabilities

Decrease in employee benefit
obligations (Note 30)

Net cash generated from operation

Significant non-cash transactions

N

)

BESE S BBATE N

B

Metke (1) /L
G e

B 5 BIARTE 12 F8 Y

BRI Ry Lt P IR R
()

P/ FE(T B E AR IA

(g R SRR
B 5 BRI~ HME (Y
BRIE N FEETRUE K
BRAMEEM
REGFNEERD
(Ff¥5£30)
EEEEZHE P

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$261,958,000, in respect of lease
arrangements for properties (2022: HK$341,258,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
had non-cash additions to property, plant and
equipment of HK$98,380,000 and right-of-use assets
of HK$264,266,000, in respect of transfers from
prepayments for the acquisition of several commercial
properties located in Mainland, which were included in
deposits, prepayment and other receivables.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
ceased to use certain office premises classified as
property, plant and equipment with carrying amount
of HK$58,213,000 (Note 16) and right-of-use assets
of HK$166,764,000 (Note 18) and transferred to

investment properties.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

SR BEEEEZRENIR:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FEIT
2,037,440 2,179,110
@1) 28,130
(520,760) (1,288,092)
(40,311) 115,843
(415) 1,180
210,155 97,818
(727) (130)
1,685,341 1,133,859
BARIFRER

HE2023FE3831HLEEE
AEBEMYEREZTHEIER
EhETHAEEERTEESE
#261,958,00078 75 (20224 :
341,258,000 %) ©

B E2023FE3831H IEEE » A5t
A& FANRIEREMERR
Y B PO 3 2 18 7 R W) 2 TR RRE
ZEE MIBNAEEYE - BE
F: 5% 1#598,380,0007# 7t K¢ 1 FB #E
& 264,266,000 T2 IEIR 2 H
Bo

B E2023FE3A31HILEEE &
EEFBERETYEAYE
BERZENRAIZHRIERDE
58,213,000/ 7T (Mi5E16) K 1E A
WEE EIREE166,764,00058 70 (Bt
5118) WEBE IR B EYE -



Significant non-cash transactions (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
entered into gold loan contracts with physical
settlement amounting to HK$99,499,000 (2022:
HK$73,932,000) and made settlement amounting
to HK$144,711,000 (2022: HK$108,765,000). Such
borrowings and settlements, which are delivered
by the inventories, are included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows as non-cash transactions.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
received repayments of gold loan receivables with
physical settlement amounting to HK$30,316,000
(2022: HK$1,689,000). The repayments included in
the inventories in the consolidated statement of cash
flows as non-cash transactions.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

Gold loans with cash settlement
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

IRTTEM
HE&R

ReRAEEEE

BRIFRERF (B

B E2023F3A31HILEEE &
EEFTII £ 58799,499,0008 7T
(20224 : 73,932,000 1) B9
EVEEESEE REESHE
#A144,711,0008 75 (20224
108,765,000/ 7T) NEWEE =S
5. ZEBEREEUNEER
T EBIERERFTAGERS
MERNES-

HE2023FE3HA3THILEEE » &
SEWREEREYEE=ESMEE
B30,316,00078 7T (20224 :
1,689,000/ 7T) ° ZiEMIEAIEIR
ERGHAAGERETERAN

MEEZPELENERYEK

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
390,627 497,513
115,020 1,383,391
320,067 357,611
825,714 2,238,515
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MELZHEENERYEER (@

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)
activities (Continued)

Liabilities from financing activities

MEIHELENER
Gold loans
with cash Bank Lease
settlement borrowings liabilities Total
REXEH
kA RITER HEafR B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THT TET FTERT
Net debt as at 1 April 2021 12021548102
LR 268,755 711,508 420,428 1,400,601
Net cash flows — ReEmE$8—
financing activities REEE 186,342 671,883 (395,582) 462,643
Additions "B - - 341,258 341,258
Fair value change of gold ~ REXEELEE
loans with cash settlement 2 A AELS 42,416 - - 42,416
Unwinding interest s ERES! - - 10,337 10,337
Rent concessions related o MR mE &5
COVID-19 BERSEE - - (14,421) (14,421)
Lease modification HAEE - - (4,338) (4,338)
Exchange difference R =L - - (71) (1)
Net debt as at 1#20226£3A310 &
31 March 2022 and 202254R182
1 April 2022 LT 497,513 1,383,391 357,611 2,238,515
Net cash flows — ReEms$E—
financing activities MEEH (87,306) (1,268,371) (294,158) (1,649,835)
Additions "B - - 261,958 261,958
Fair value change of gold ~ HE&XEESEE
loans with cash settlement 2 /A A {EEE) (19,580) - - (19,580)
Unwinding interest EOEF & - - 7,917 7917
Rent concessions related o~ B REEE
COVID-19 HEHESRE - - (10,576) (10,576)
Lease modification HAEEET - - (2,043) (2,043)
Exchange difference ERELR - - (642) (642)
Net debt as at 1#2023%3A31HZ
31 March 2023 EBPE 390,627 115,020 320,067 825,714
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Contracted but not provided for: BETAERELEE
— property, plant and equipment e EN T
— investment in financial assets —RKERANESA
at fair value through other Hthe2mBAZ
comprehensive income SRIEE
Total capital commitments contracted B E]&IBRIEHBEE 2
but not provided for B RIEARER

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

As at 31 March 2023 the Group had entered into
properties lease agreements in respect of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$50,252,000 (2022:
HK$38,033,000) which are contracted but not yet
commenced.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had commitments
under short-term leases of HK$1,467,000 (2022:
HK$10,091,000) which will be recognised as an
expense in the forthcoming consolidated income
statement.

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
16,491 16,779

6,350 6,866
22,841 22,645

20233831 H &20224E3H 31
H WEEREERTZ B K
o

R2023FE3831H » REBEBE L (E
FAREE EKHEE S 50,252,000
70 (20224 : 38,033,000 7T) 57 3L
MERERZ BERBRESITINE
EENGEEE

R2023FE3831H » AERE Z 45 H
THE K IE1,467,0005 7T (20224
10,091,0007 7T) &R BN T8 2
FAERRANERARS
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group issued corporate
financial guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000
(2022: HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50%
of the aggregated amount of bank facilities granted to
an associate. As at 31 March 2023, the bank facilities
utilised by the associate is HK$1,643,500,000 (2022:
HK$1,564,495,000), which is secured by its pledged bank
deposits of HK$836,140,000 (2022: HK$803,179,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recognised loss allowance
of HK$36,831,000 (2022: HK$36,831,000) in accordance
with expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9.

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 40.37% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the
founders and settlors of The WS WONG Family Trust (the
“Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust
was interested in 238,501,722 shares in the Company,
comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by
the Trust and (i) the 236,990,672 shares in the Company
attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust
indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Luk
Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the significant related party transactions are
disclosed as follows. The transactions with related parties
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business in accordance with terms agreed between the
Group and its related parties.

7R2023FE3831H » AEER — XK ¥
EATMIRITRRE 4838 250% M@ R 1T
21T FIER1,075,000,0008 7T
(20224 : 1,075,000,0005 75) ° i
2023%F3831H BE LB EH AR
TR E1,643,500,00058 75 (20224
1,5664,495,000% 70) » UE BB #HIR
1T178836,140,000% 7T (20224 :
803,179,000/ 7T) 1EHELH

R2023FE3H31H » AERIRIHEE B
BHREENEIRBE TN ZBABEER
BRI R EEE%36,831,0008 7T
(20224 : 36,831,000 7T) ©

KRB ZEEREAEER BIR
NE)(REER)) AR ABETRE
EFMmRIIzAT BEEELRAT
40.37% 1D o KA B BR T RS D EIF
:go

EREELRERERRLZLAThe WS
WONG Family Trust (M55E1) BIAIHEA
RETN =EFERE BERERLL &
EREAEREES LT AGEENEES
m A o [E5LHER AR B)238,501,7225% iR
PR BIE() EAREQABEFEZ
1,511,05088 B& 19 Kz (i) 7548 (25%) AR A
BIFE(E 2 A5 A F)236,990,6 7208 i85 © 15
SERIEIEGINE R BRARBAB=
PDZ—RERE (BI446.29%) It [FIE#
BARNE ) BRATNEAATF
BRI HEE R

BEREAE - BEREERERSRE

PRz e M B mMAR A MO FREEIN
ERHEAIRSZRBUO T -HEAZEA
TZRGPR—KRARBBEHBRETR
RAEFEREATHE ZIFRRUET -
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Name Nature 2023 2022
218 #HE HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
GS Tech Company Limited? License fees 1,827 1,074
EEENBERBRATH T RER
Maintenance services fees 3,303 3,638
HERBE
Rental income 167 167
RGN
New Merit Corporation Limited* Interest expenses of lease liabilities 190 279
METBRATN HEERZAERS
Addition of right-of-use assets - 11,951
NEFREEE
Pang Ching Renovation & Consultants Consultancy fee 360 363
BEEERER BERE
Luk Fook Financial Services Limited® Licensee fee 1,000 716
NEERREERATS BETRER
China Gold Silver Group Company Limited" Sales of goods 2,346 4,595
FRETHEEEERAT" HEAm
Purchase of goods 1,504 -
B
Sales return (263) (269)
HERE
Rental income 6,619 6,857
HEWA
Service fee income 315 96
AR EUWA
Management fee income 261 167
BEERA
# The company is 92% owned by a family trust of which Mr. # ZABHR%EmHEERLERE

WONG Wai Sheung and his family members are discretionary

beneficiaries. The remaining 8% is directly owned by Mr.

WONG Wai Sheung.

* The company is jointly controlled by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

and other two independent third parties.

* The company is owned by the father-in-law of Mr. Wong Ho

Lung.

The company is an associate of the Group.

The company is 50% owned by a corporation controlled by

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and other concert parties.

KEMER2EZ D AZRIKES
BH R T8rHERBEEEEEE

BHo

: =]
U E = HBER
=]

HEBAERSIIMBE

HIARERAEZ EREER -

: ZNABBAEBZHBE QT

@ ZNATEE0%EmAERE S E R
—BITBA TR ERES -
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group H E2023F3H31HIEEE &

borrowed physical gold of 300 kilograms (2022: SR REEBEABYES
106 kilograms) amounting to approximately 300A fr (20224 : 106AFF) »
HK$135,556,000 (2022: HK$48,121,000) with £ %8497135,556,0003% 75 (2022
interest bearing at 0.58% to 0.60% (2022: 0.58% to F 148,121,000/ 7T) » HEFF=
0.65%) per annum from a director. Such borrowings 0.58%%0.60% (20224 : 0.58% %
were fully settled on 31 March 2023 and the related 0.65%) 5t B c Z B E B 120234
interest expense on gold loans of HK$776,000 (2022: SHB1EEHEERE B EMEA
HK$246,000) is included in finance costs, net (Note A B BZ776,0007 7T (20224
10). 246,000787T) st AMBER  $58

(Mt5E10) ©

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Amount due from an associate FEW— KB A BIBRIE
(Note 19(iv)) (MFEE19(v)) 4 -
Amount due to an associate FEN — B QB ARIE
(Note 19(iv)) (MFEE19(v)) - 411
Rental deposit received B—xE=ZEAEIWEZ
from an associate MHeZs 789 789
Rental deposit related to BRE—%BEEALTZ
a related party HeEs 1,050 2,550
Lease liabilities related to BR—%BEEALZ
a related party HE&R 4,132 8,142
Key management includes directors (executive FECEEOEAERESE BT
and non-executive) and senior management of the KRIEHITES) hahEEAS.
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key MEERBENRENEESIE
management for employee services is shown below: 20T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYF @
benefits-in-kinds 15,812 29,911
Performance and discretionary BRIBMNIBE 24
bonuses 63,228 51,074
Contributions to pension plan IRIREFH AR 660 619
79,700 81,604
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At 31 March 2023, the Company had the following principal R2023F3H31H KRB Z2FEWE

subsidiaries: NENWT
Proportion of
ordinary
Particulars of shares
Place of issued share Proportion of held by non-
incorporation/ Principal capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment activities capital held by the Company interests
E3E1 3
ML/ BETRE/ Ry EiER
2] FRIL 2 TEER MERHE SREMFEERLA i)
Directly Indirectly
B g
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited ~ The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
REAAREE  REER 2B
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 -
RERBETTLOERAE &H ERER 2B
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 - 100 -
RIEREBRAT &4 BEYE 1210087
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 N
K2 @R BRAR 58 products 100%7T
SHGREENTEER
Jewelworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
GEURERAT HEERRES provision of software 8,000,000 7
development and services
relating to internet
REER RUERHRERL
ER R el
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
GEMR &8 BRAF B8 provision of software 1007
development and services
relating to internet
RELER RUERHRERL
SERPERRE
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 N
NEESHERAT &H BEMSHK 14,000,000%7%
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of management HK$2 - 100 -
NEEEERAF 5B services to group companies 28T

and wholesale distribution of

gold and jewellery products
REEERETER IR

YNBRERGEER
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Name

e

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Australia) Pty Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(HK) Company Limited
NEGEST (@8 FRAT

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Macao) Company Limited
NEKEST (2 ARAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(USA) Company Limited

Luk Fook 3D Management
Company Limited
VEDEREBRAF

Max Forum Development Limited
HEEREERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

Australia
b

Hong Kong
A

Macau
il

Canada
IR

Singapore

M

USA
*H

The BVI
ZEEMRES

Hong Kong
&4

Principal
activities

IEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Australia

RENEEERHFEERS
EX%

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products

EERAEERTERH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Macau

REPNEEERGEERS
EX%

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Canada

KNEARERERFEER
BELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Singapore

REREEe RGEER
TEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in USA

REEUSRERKEERT
EX%

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
SIS

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
ARESHE

AU$100,000
100,000 7

HK$100
100% 7T

MOP1,000,000
1,000,000 70

CA$100
100MMEATT

$$1,000,000
1,000,000% M7

UsD100
100%7T

HK$1
1T

HK$100
100%7T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F3000 4+
S ER
in7]



Name

e

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

EHECXARAT

EMHBEHERAF

AEREEHRD (R BRA

TMefimRs (BR) BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

Hong Kong
&4

PRC
el

PRC
e

PRC
el

PRC

el

PRC
el

PRC
hE

Principal
activities

IEEH

Manufacturing and wholesale
distribution of jewellery
products

RERMEIHEREER

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Wholesale of polished diamond
in PRC
KA LT E 28R

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Bejiing, PRC
RAEELRHEEERKERE

mEEXH

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RAEH SEREE ARk
BEERBURRHESEETE
%

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RPEHEEREE AR
ERREURRHEEETE
%

Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
and jewellery products in PRC

RAEREREREEZSR
HEER

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fks/
ARESHE

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000%7C

HK$35,000,000
35,000,000%7%

USD200,000
200,000%7

HK$200,000,000
200,000,000 7

HK$60,000,000

60,000,000%7%

HK$8,000,000
8,000,0007E7C

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000%7%

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F320 4+
S ER
in 7]
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Name
&g
NEREEL (EB) BRAT:

BEABUZKKEMIBRAR

ERNZRKERNARAR

MEHE (B BRAH

BN BEHRERRA:

ARNEHERRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

PRC
el

PRC
el

PRC
el

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
e

PRC
el

Principal
activities

IEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in PRC

RPEHEEERHEERT
EX%

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
KRR SHEREE ARk
BEERBURRHESRETE
%

Manufacturing of gold products
in PRC
RPEREEEER

Wholesale of jewellery products
in PRC
ROEHEREER

Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
and jewellery products in PRC

RAEREREREEZSR
HEER

Manufacturing of gold and
jewellery products in PRC
ReERERERGEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in PRC

RPEHEEERGEERT
EX%

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
ARESHE

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000%7%

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000%7c

RMBS5,000,000
A #5,000,00070

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007

RMB65,500,000
AN #65,500,0007

RMB5,000,000
5,000,007

RMB5,000,000
N E#5,000,00070

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F3000 4+
S ER
in7]



Name

e

fuik]

BB/ ERTEHARL

T
K=l

]

—

Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) SDN.

BHD.

Luk Fook Prestige Jewellery
Company Limited
NELIHEERAT

EETRREZERAT

EETRYESRRAT

EETREEZERAT

EETALEERARAT

EEMAEEESERAT

EETIENERARAT

EETHEEZARAT

EETZEESRRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

PRC
el

Malaysia

BRAS

Hong Kong
A

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

PRC
hE

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

Principal
activities

IEEH

Electronic retailing of gold and
jewellery products in PRC

RPEHERERHEERE
FTERELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Malaysia
REREEHERERGEE

BEEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Hong Kong

REBSRERKEERT
EE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fks/
ARESHE

RMB5,000,000
A E#5,000,0007

MYR?2,000,000
2,000,000
ERAZRE

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000%7%

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E 1,000,007

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company

FARMGE R
Directly Indirectly
E# itk

- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F320 4+
S ER
in 7]
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Name

e

Bright Bilion Corporation Limited
EIETERAT

Green Rich Corporation Limited
ERERAF

Talent Up Corporation Limited
B2BERRTE

Ultra Power Corporation Limited
HaEBRAR

~ERE @R BRA

ol

BN BERERAT

EMEHE NSRRI BRAR

Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited

NMRERERAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
Y

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
g4

PRC
el

PRC
e

PRC
el

Hong Kong
&4

Principal
activities

IEEH

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBRENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBSBENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBRENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBSBNE

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RAEREEREE ARR
BEERBURRHESEE
it

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination service in PRC
RAEREHREE ARR
EERENRREHESET
o3

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RAEREHREE AER
ERMENRRHESETE
%

Provision of handling services on
diamond subcontracting

RUEERDORERS

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
ARESHE

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

RMB1,000,000
A E 1,000,007

RMB10,000,000
10,000,007

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

HK$6,120,000
6,120,007

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F3000 4+
S ER
in7]



Name

e

Green Rich (Macao) Limited

Talent Up (Macao) Limited

Ultra Power (Macao) Limited

AT EHEZBRAT

AMITEEEZERAT

Max Enterprises Company Limited
AHLEBRAT

Luk Fook E-Commerce
Company Limited
NEETHERRAR

Luk Fook 3D Investment Holding
Company Limited
NEEEREEEERAT

~EKE (H8) BRAT

T+

EETRTMERERAT

EETREMERARAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B
ATRIE

Macau

il

Macau
il

Macau

il

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

Hong Kong
g4

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&4

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

Principal
activities

IEEH

Property holding in Macau
RRMIFENE

Property holding in Macau
RRMRENE

Property holding in Macau
RRMIFENE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Provision of export customs
services of diamonds in
Hong Kong

REBREEREORARS

Electronic retaling of gold
and jewellery products in
Hong Kong

REASEERFEER
B7SELH

Investment holding
REER
Property holding in PRC

RAERANE

Property holding in PRC
RERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fks/
ARESHE

MOP25,000
25,0002

MOP25,000
25000857

MOP25,000
25,0002

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

HKD10,000
10,000%70

HKD10,000,000
10,000,000787C

HKD100,000
100,000 7T

RMB70,000,000
AR #70,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company

FABMFEERLA

Directly
E#

Indirectly
itk

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F320 4+
S ER
in 7]
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Place of
incorporation/ Principal
Name establishment activities
Bl ATy
&g ATk TEER

EEMRSHEZERAT PRC Property holding in PRC

HE RPERENE
BEETRERERERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
HE REERENE
EENRRZEZERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
HE RPERENE
BEETRAMERZERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
HE REERENE
EENREREZERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
HE RPERENE
EEMESSERERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
HE REERENE
FImEEREZERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
HE RPERENE
Note:
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises

in PRC.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group re-assessed whether the
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests are considered
material to the Group based on their relative size in terms
of total assets, total liabilities and profit/(loss) before
income tax, and considered that they are not material, and
accordingly, the summarised unaudited financial information
of these subsidiaries are considered not necessary.

Proportion of

ordinary
Particulars of shares
issued share Proportion of held by non-
capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
capital held by the Company interests
El3ndi 3
BaRs/ S ER
B TAFFRFLERLA ]
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
A #1,000,00070
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AR 1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
A 1,000,00070
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AR 1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
A 1,000,00070
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AR 1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -

K 1,000,007

st

+ ZE

MB AR BN REMRILZ 2INERZE-

EXRD LRAIEABEWNBATE
EHAFEXEBATENREAEER
EEFEZIBHD -EFRR M
HMNBABZHBFESERRARNT

Eo

7R2023FE3H31H  KEEIRIKEEAIE
ERERZIB AR ZEEME A&
BB R BRFT SRR (B518) 28
HRE BMTEZENB AR HAE
EMsEtBEN IRANETAE
XA ZEWB R B Z KK EIZH
BERBMERR AL EMNE -
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ASSETS
Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserve attributable to the
equity holders of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves (Note (i)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accruals
Bank borrowings
Gold loans

Total equity and liabilities

"HE

JERBEE
RSB AR Z #Em

MENEE
FEUR RS BB A BIBRIA
W& RIRTTHEER

HaE

s

FABEETE ARG
B R#AE
R
R EE

it (5EG)

afR

mEIRE
FESt IR
IRTTE™

BEEEE

xRk e RAEH

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board on 27 June 2023 and was signed on its behalf by the

following directors:

Wong Wai Sheung
HER
Director

B=

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
3,138,225 3,138,225
834,559 1,273,671
7,987 112,558
842,546 1,386,229
3,980,771 4,624,454
58,710 58,710
2,494,040 2,494,040
1,106,813 1,054,528
3,659,563 3,607,278
1,231 1,865

- 606,000

319,977 309,311
321,208 917,176
3,980,771 4,624,454

KRBz EEERRIDBAEEFN2023
FeRATHMEL LR TIEETARE
=N

Chan So Kuen
RERIB

Director

B%
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The reserves movement of the Company is as follows:

st

Contributed
surplus
BRRRG
HK$’000
F#ET
For the year ended #H F20235%3H310
31 March 2023 IEEE
At 1 April 2022 202254818 298,687
Profit for the year FREF] -
2021/22 final dividend paid B192021/22F ERERE -
2022/23 interim dividend paid BE1{32022/23F E AR B -
At 31 March 2023 #2023E3H31H 298,687
Representing: i
Reserves (excluded proposed {## (T EIEHIKAR )
dividend) 208,687
Proposed final dividend BURKREARR S -
At 31 March 2023 #2023E3H31H 298,687
For the year ended #H FE202253H310
31 March 2022 IEEEE
At 1 April 2021 R2021FE481H 298,687
Profit for the year FEREF =
2020/21 final dividend paid T {2020/21 4 EE A HA MR & -
2020/21 special dividend paid E132020/21F EHF 5 IR B -
2021/22 interim dividend paid BE{32021/22F EH AR B -
At 31 March 2022 7202243 H31H 298,687
Representing: 15
Reserves (excluded proposed f&## (T EIEHIKAR 2)
dividend) 298,687
Proposed final dividend BORARHEARR R -
At 31 March 2022 7202283 831H 298,687

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of Luk Fook
Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company during the
Group’s reorganisation in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, its
issued share capital and its share premium. At the Group level, the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of
the underlying subsidiaries.

Subsequent to the year end date, the Group acquired
commercial properties located at Shenzhen and
Wuhan with aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB512,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$581,000,000.
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200 755,641 1,054,528
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Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP
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Jones Day
Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (Hong Kong)
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Certified Public Accountants
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22/F Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
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No.2 On Yiu Street, Shatin
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2308 1218

Fax: (852) 2374 1696
E-mail: group@Ilukfook.com
Website: lukfook.com

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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